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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Lok-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chan, Sze-wan (Chairman)

Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai
Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai
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SOLICITORS

Baker & McKenzie
Sidley Austin
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Chong Hing Bank Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

26th Floor, MassMutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building, 69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM08, Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax:  (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A R&E X

OFFICES IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA F# ARHAMEIRER
Beijing Office: R FRE -

Room 202, Oriental Place PRI R TG E

No. 9 East Dongfang Road RERIALE

North Dongsanhuan Road R JT RO

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC R BIRKE202%E

Post Code: 100027 4 100027

Tel:  (8610) 6466 0638 T (8610) 6466 0638
Fax:  (8610) 6466 0238 f#E: (8610) 6466 0238
Shanghai Office: FERERE

Room B103, Evergo Tower FEESTRERR

1325 Central Huaihai Road YEB 8132558

Xuhui District, Shanghai, PRC EXSANEBIOZE

Post Code: 200031 4R 200031

Tel:  (8621) 6445 8945 T (8621) 6445 8945
Fax:  (8621) 6445 9710 EE:  (8621) 6445 9710
Shenzhen Office: RN FELE -

Rooms 1-3A, South Gong, 6th Floor REERSE

Lowu Commercial Plaza I T AR W =

25 Railway Station Square N BB UL 5 B 2558

Luohu District, Shenzhen ZE T EW

Guangdong Province, PRC 6/FErRH1-3AE

Post Code: 518001 4 518001

Tel:  (86755) 8234 7139 T (86755) 8234 7139

Fax:  (86755) 8234 0012

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

BE:

#41t

(86755) 8234 0012

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE R 10 1K 5%
127 127

BOARD LOT BEEEN
500 shares 5008%
INVESTOR RELATIONS REEZBER

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact: BERBREEREZEH B
Tel:  (852) 2866 6999 W (852) 2866 6999
Fax.  (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833 ME: (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail: investor.relations@chineseestates.com FHE :  investorrelations@chineseestates.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Sze-wan, aged 37, joined the Group (the Company together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2002 and has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. She acts as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since November 2015 and also acts as
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She is also the chairman
of the investment committee of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor
Degree of Business Administration from University of Management and
Technology, United States of America. She is responsible for the Group's
overall and day-to-day management including overseeing the Group's
properties’ sales and leasing affairs. Ms. Chan has over 13 years of
experience in sales and marketing, management and operations. She is
the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an associate
of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (a substantial shareholder and a controlling
shareholder of the Company).

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 31, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department and also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business and Management (Marketing) from Brunel University
London and a Master Degree of Science in Communication, Information
and Society from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
She is responsible for the Group's marketing affairs, overseeing the
Group's cosmetics business, including Two Girls products, and participated
in the Group's properties’ sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over
7 years of experience in sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an associate of Mr. Joseph
Lau, Luen-hung (a substantial shareholder and a controlling shareholder of
the Company).

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 60, joined the Group in 1989 and has
been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012.
Mr. Lam is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Company and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a member of the investment committee of the Company
and acts as the chief investment officer. Mr. Lam was a non-executive
director of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (now known as Common Splendor
International Health Industry Group Limited) for the period from 14th
August, 2012 to 7th March, 2013 and LT Commercial Real Estate Limited
(formerly known as Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (up to June
2013) and LT Holdings Limited (up to June 2014)) for the period from
7th February, 2013 to 6th February, 2016 respectively, the shares of these
companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
and holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the University
of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has over 38 years of experience in
auditing, finance and accounting industries.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEfE/

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 35, appointed as a Director of the Company
since 2006 and has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board in
2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from King's College
London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School of Economics
and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy in Laws from
King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and
Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining the Company. Mr.
Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a CFA (Chartered
Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the son of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung (a substantial shareholder and a controlling shareholder of the

Company) and the nephew of Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai.

The discloseable interest of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong is set out
in Directors’ Report under the sections of “Directors’ and Chief Executives'
Interests in the Securities of the Company and Associated Corporation”
and “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of the Company”

of this annual report.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 63, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-executive
director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. She is registered with the Royal
College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario, Canada and a practising dentist
in Ontario. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor
Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is
the younger sister of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (a substantial shareholder
and a controlling shareholder of the Company) and the aunt of Mr. Lau,

Ming-wai.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 57, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman
of the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member
of the nomination committee, special committee and investment
committee of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration from the Monash University, Australia. He is also
a member of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute. He has over 36 years of experience in finance
and accounting industries. Mr. Chan is currently a director of High Progress
Consultants Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of
China Investments Holdings Limited, Far East Consortium International
Limited, National Electronics Holdings Limited and Tern Properties
Company Limited respectively, and was an independent non-executive
director of Junefield Department Store Group Limited for the period from
31st December, 2002 to the conclusion of its annual general meeting
held on 29th May, 2013, the shares of all these companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 51, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2006. She is the chairman of the
nomination committee, a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and special committee of the Company. Ms. Loh holds a
Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from
1990 to 1997, and has since become a practising barrister-at-law after
she was called to the Hong Kong Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and the United Kingdom (1991), and is
also a barrister and solicitor in the Supreme Court of the Australian Capital
Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh is a CEDR (Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution) Accredited Mediator. She was appointed Deputy District Judge
in 2014 and 2016.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 50, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee,
special committee and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has over 28 years of
experience in auditing, finance and accounting industries. He is currently a
director and the general manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited.
Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and a Master of
Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business Programme), both from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a Master of Science Degree
in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries respectively.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
BRITHRAEEHN

Ms. Connie CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 48, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2007 and is
the Head of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor. She
holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws,
both from The University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Cheung worked in both law firm as a solicitor and public sector as an in-
house legal counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing the legal
aspects of the Group's various businesses, including project development,
commercial investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over 24

years of legal experience.

Mr. Alec KONG, Chi-ming, aged 52, joined the Group in 1994 and is
the Head of Business Development. Mr. Kong holds a Bachelor Degree
of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
Master Degree of Arts in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a Master
Degree of Business Administration, both from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Mr.
Kong is responsible for overseeing the Group's business development in
Mainland China and overseas. He has over 25 years of experience in the

property field.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 47, joined the Group in 2000 and is
the Senior Manager— Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 25 years of

relevant experience.

All of the above senior executives hold position as a director in one or
more of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this annual

report.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2015 (the “Year") to
the shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was HK$7,727.2
million as compared to HK$8,744.9 million for last year. The decrease
in profit for the Year was mainly arising from decline in attributable net
rental income as a result of the disposals of the Company's wholly-
owned subsidiaries that ultimately held the properties known as Silvercord
and The ONE in January 2015 and July 2015 respectively, decline in
attributable property sale profit, no dividend income from the Group's
investee company in respect of property development and trading and
decline in net gain on disposals of subsidiaries, despite increase in gain
recognised on securities investments, increase of fair value gain on
investment properties and share of gain on disposal of subsidiaries by an
associate. Earnings per share for the Year was HK$4.05 (2014: HK$4.58).

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$4,785.1 million (2014:
HK$3,877.4 million) are excluded, but the realised fair value changes
together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of investment
properties from the Group and its associates in current year recognised
loss for the Year of HK$154.6 million (2014: HK$0.3 million) is retained
and the accumulated realised fair value gain together with their respective
deferred tax on disposals of investment properties from the Group and
its associates recognised in prior years of HK$13,843.7 million (2014:
HK$55.0 million) is included, the Group will have a core profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the Year of HK$16,785.8 million (2014:
HK$4,922.5 million) and a core earnings per share of HK879.9 cents
(2014: HK258.0 cents), which were both 3.4 times to those in the year of
2014.

The major non-cash items represented the attributable unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$4,785.1 million (2014:
HK$3,877.4 million).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&EE

DIVIDENDS

During the Year, the board of directors of the Company (the “Directors”
or the "Board”) had paid an interim dividend of HK30 cents per share
(payment date: 14th September, 2015) (2014: HK30 cents per share)
and special interim dividends of (i) HK$4 per share (payment date: 13th
January, 2015), (ii) HK$2.6 per share (payment date: 15th July, 2015)
and (i) HK$1.2 per share (payment date: 14th September, 2015) (2014:
HK$2.55 per share) and declared a conditional special interim dividend of
HK$2 per share which was paid after completion of a disposal transaction
occurred in January 2016 (payment date: 20th January, 2016). As the
Company has paid substantial interim dividends during the Year, the Board
has recommended the payment of a nominal final dividend of HK1 cent
per share for the Year (the “Final Dividend") (2014: HK1 cent per share).

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 19th May, 2016 (the “2016
AGM"), dividend warrants will be posted on or about 6th June, 2016 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 26th May, 2016.

As stated in the Company's circular dated 15th January, 2016, the Board
may declare and pay one or more special cash interim dividend(s) in
anticipation of the completion of the major and connected transactions
regarding, inter alia, disposal of wholly-owned subsidiaries that ultimately
held the property known as Windsor House (which is scheduled to be
on or before 31st December, 2016) subject to the then financial and

cashflow position of the Group.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Hﬁ /%\

REAFEN ARRERE([EF]H[EFE])
EXMPHEEERI0EN(RER: ZT—AF
NA+IEA) (ZF—MF: §R30B1) & FF5l
FHRE(DEBR4BT(RER: ZE—RF—A
+=0) (iI8k26BT(RER: ZT—HF
A+RA)EGHERI2BT(OREHR: ZFE—RHF
NA+TMA) (ZZ2—MF:-gR2558T) kS
EM B 2 SRR B B BRR2B T R — <
F-AHERIRRBRMN(RERA =T —XF
—AZ=Z+H8) BARARAEAFERERMNEEZ
PHRES BESCRRREAFEZREMERPR
BERIVAWL(TREBRE]) (Z=—0HF:5R1E

BR-_E—AR"FRATNLBETZ
3 g([ZE—XR"FRRRFRE]) L
A BREEFN T —A"FNANARRKRTE
FRZZE-—AFRAZFTAABINARBBREAM
ZRRE -

BUOARREA - T—R"E-ATHAAZER"
EEeNenEYAR (AT R LERREES
REEREZMEZZ2EHREMBRARZEEREE
BRPER(BR_F—R"F+-_A=t—HA=HZ
Al BFAREERZHBERRSRAR  EIRK
MRS XN — R Z R R HIRR -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHREE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS TERERRELCFE

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote ~ ABEREHE T —NEFRRAFAS TR E E
at the 2016 AGM, and entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend, RZEHER  REREZ KRR ERNERN - RNQF#H
the register of members will be closed during the following periods % BIF T 51| £5  H {= 4 3R A% B8 & v F 48

respectively:

(1) For ascertaining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM:

MABREHE -2 AFRREFASANRS LRROERK:

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration 13.5.2016
AR (Bl A7 38 P S LA VE B AT B B 1R B R 16:30
Closure of register of members 16.5.2016 — 19.5.2016
HiEMEREELFE (both days inclusive) (B IEEEMX)

(2) For ascertaining entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend:

(2 AREEKESZRHRENEFR

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration 2452016
B[l A7 38 P S A VE B AT B S 1R B R 16:30
Closure of register of members 25.5.2016 — 26.5.2016
TERERRELFE (both days inclusive) (B2 #F EHEMX)
Record date 26.5.2016
Eakze=

To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM, and to qualify for RHAAERHE_Z-—"EFREBFRGITNE L
the recommended Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfers %% ' REREZ AR E  AEEZNORMNHBF X
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged — 13& R & B iR R WA L it 5 548 BA Y & 18 By IR Al
for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office in  ZXEARRNBEZBFELIBRBEETRESE
Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, a2 BRRAGE] - it REBE S 2/F BR85S M
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road A/ 17#1712-17165% #f ©

East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as

stated above.

—F-nEEHR  FABEEE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group is one of the leading property developers in Hong Kong and
its core businesses comprise property investments for rental and property

development for sale as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

The Group specialises in developing high-end and luxury residential
properties in prime locations in Hong Kong; and enjoying profit
contribution and cash inflow from property sales to achieve long-term

sustainable growth and developing a brand name in the market.

In Mainland China, the Group invested in office properties, shopping
arcades and hotel business in the prestigious areas to generate stable and

recurrent rental income.

Other than property investment and development in Hong Kong and/
or Mainland China, the Group is actively grasping the opportunities for

acquiring properties in the United Kingdom.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows

the Group to weather the cyclicality of the property business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major
sources of our income. The overall occupancy rate of the Group's retail
portfolio was 97.42% during the Year. The high occupancy rate was
attributable to the prime locations of the majority of the Group's retail

properties.

The Group's attributable overall gross rental income from Hong Kong
including the performance of non wholly-owned properties was
HK$1,090.1 million for the Year, recorded a decrease of 35.23% as
compared with last year. The rental income from retail portion recorded
substantial decline of 50.80% while the non-retail portion recorded
steady growth of 7.09%. The decline of rental income from retail portion
was mainly due to the disposal of the companies holding Silvercord
and The ONE in January 2015 and July 2015 respectively. Although
Mainland China tourists’ spending in Hong Kong is yet to be recovered
and the local consumption demand was still weak, as the Group's retail
properties located mainly in prime shopping areas and were highly praised
and appreciated by tenants, therefore retail rents were generally raised.
However, rental rates for certain retail business sectors have shown the

indications of reaching their peaks.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place was approximately 85.82% excluding those disposed of.

The overall rental income of Windsor House was raised 5.24% for the
Year as compared with last year. During the Year, its average occupancy
rate was approximately 93.85%. Windsor House provides shoppers a cozy
shopping environment with a diversified trade mix. Various marketing and
promotion activities are held in Windsor House from time to time which
boost shoppers’ flow and thus increase tenants’ business turnover. As a
result, Windsor House recorded steady rental growth and high occupancy

rate.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was

approximately 99.59% during the Year.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was

approximately 60.37% during the Year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Investment (Cont'd)

The occupancy rate for the Group's office properties maintained at a
high level throughout the Year. During the Year, the average occupancy
rates of Windsor House, MassMutual Tower and Harcourt House were
approximately 95.61%, 99.65% and 99.38% respectively, bringing the
approximate occupancy rate of the overall office portfolio to 97.93%.

In November 2015, the Group entered into a disposal agreement to
dispose the company holding MassMutual Tower and the transaction was
completed in January 2016. In December 2015, the Group entered into
a disposal agreement to dispose the companies holding Windsor House,

such transaction is expected to be completed in 2016.

Hong Kong Property Development

In general, the Group's development projects have been progressing

satisfactorily.

No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, located in Mid-Levels East, is a traditional
prestigious location for luxury residential project in Hong Kong. A luxury
residential tower which provides a total residential gross floor area of
around 40,726 square feet will be redeveloped. Superstructure work is in
progress. Completion of the project is re-scheduled to the fourth quarter
of 2016.

One South Lane is located in the Western District and enjoys close
proximity to the HKU MTR Station. It will be redeveloped into a luxury
residential/retail tower with a total gross floor area of around 41,353
square feet and consists of 92 residential units. Superstructure and
fitting-out works are in progress. Completion of the project is tentatively
scheduled for end of the second quarter of 2016. Since its pre-sales
commenced in September 2014, 88 units were presold up to 31st

December, 2015, representing 95.65% of total units.

The Group has a two-phase redevelopment project in Wanchai (87.5%
interest) undertaken with the Urban Renewal Authority. All residential
units of The Zenith (Phase | project) were sold. One WanChai (Phase I
project with preservation of the core elements of Wanchai Market) is a
residential/commercial complex development with total gross floor area of
approximately 159,700 square feet which provides 237 residential units
and retail properties. As at 31st December, 2015, all residential units of

One WanChai were sold.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (Cont'd)

55 Conduit Road (70% interest) is a luxury residential development in
Mid-Levels West with total residential gross floor area of around 87,800
square feet which provides 35 residential units. The occupation permit
and the certificate of compliance were issued in March 2015 and
November 2015 respectively and it has been launched in December
2015. As at 31st December, 2015, 11 units were presold, representing
31.43% of total units.

The Hermitage (25% interest) is one of the Group's joint venture
development projects in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 964 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet. As at 31st

December, 2015, 99.79% of total units were sold (2 units remaining).

The Coronation (15% interest) is another joint venture development
project of the Group in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 740 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 650,600 square feet. As at 31st

December, 2015, 99.86% of total units were sold (1 unit remaining).

Kwun Tong Town Centre Project (Development Areas 2 and 3) (10%
interest) is a joint venture development project of the Group awarded by
the Urban Renewal Authority. Its total site area is approximately 234,160
square feet. Total gross floor area of around 1,853,561 square feet will
be developed. Foundation work is in progress and the whole project is

expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2021.

Mainland China Property Investment

During the Year, the 79 retail outlets with a total area of approximately
29,000 square feet in Lowu Commercial Plaza, Shenzhen were fully let

out.

Evergo Tower, located at Central Huaihai Road in Shanghai, is a 21-storey
office and shopping complex and has a gross floor area of around
263,708 square feet. The average occupancy rates of the office and retail

spaces for the Year were approximately 78.06% and 95.40% respectively.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Mainland China Property Investment (Cont'd)

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), having 503 rooms, average occupancy rate

was approximately 76.21% for the Year.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton
Beijing, average occupancy rate was approximately 97.88% for the Year.

In August 2015, an associate of the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose the company holding Platinum (50%
interest) in Shanghai and the transaction was completed in September
2015.

Mainland China Property Development

In July 2015, the Group disposed the companies holding the property
projects known as Splendid City, The Metropolis and Chinese Estates
Plaza, all located in Chengdu.

During the Year, the Group has disposed a company holding The
Coronation (25% interest), a commercial and residential project located in

Chongging. Completion of the transaction occurred in October 2015.

Overseas Property Investment

River Court is a Grade A freehold office building situate at 116-129 Fleet
Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area of
approximately 431,324 square feet, together with certain car parking

spaces. It was fully let out as of 31st December, 2015.

Securities Investments

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for

treasury management.

The gain recognised on securities investments for the Year was HK$860.3
million. Details of the performance of securities investments are disclosed
under “Financial Operation Review” of this annual report. The Group
will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities investments to

achieve satisfactory returns.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

TEIREERE (8)

I RABEEBE (5500 ) @ RAS03EARE ' ©
RNEF 2 FHYAMERL ABT621% °

R BB KRE (1550%% %) @ 31b 2= 7% B E G 5 A
W—IEESI0ERAE RAFEZ FHLEEY

£97.88% °

R-TF-—RFNA RNEEZBERRATL—NE
EE N D ERFALN D82 #H X KE (155000#

RIZAR MEXHGERE-—HAFNATK-

PEABYEER

R-Z-—AFtHA AEECHERERRES
TR EE  HEFENFEERSZMERAZQ
Al PR R B BRI R o

NAEER AEEBDHE-—HEBEHERE (15
25%%51) (IRBEEMZREEB)ZAR #ZX
G -_E—RE+AXK-

N ERE

River Court/ — &7 72 % B @ F Fleet Street 116-129
SR KA EETR RS T - River Courti2fit 8=
FEIEANA31,324F 7R BERETREML-R-F
—AF+-A=+—8 BB EAME-

BERE

AEENKBEESEAREBENTEER-

REFEEFILE 2 BRI /860,300,000 7T © &
HFRARBZABEATRY BEFLBENEE-
AEBBEETYEREFFREMRE UBE2
AmE R[5 o



OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of a Subsidiary holding The ONE - Major and Connected
Transaction

The Group has on 12th December, 2014 entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in relation to, inter alia, disposal of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company that ultimately held the property known as The
ONE located in Tsimshatsui, Hong Kong to the company wholly-owned by
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau"), a substantial shareholder
and a controlling shareholder of the Company, at the final consideration
of approximately HK$5,020.6 million (“The ONE Transaction”). The
ONE Transaction constituted a major and connected transaction of the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) and was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company (“Independent
Shareholders”) at the special general meeting of the Company held on
23rd January, 2015. The ONE Transaction was completed on 15th July,
2015. Details of the The ONE Transaction were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 12th December, 2014; circular dated 7th January,
2015; and announcements dated 15th July, 2015 and 13th August, 2015.

Disposal of Gemstar Tower Car Parking Spaces

On 23rd June, 2015, the Group entered into a provisional agreement
for sale and purchase in relation to, inter alia, disposal of the roof and
50 car parking spaces at Gemstar Tower, Hung Hom, Hong Kong held by
the Group to an independent third party at a consideration of HK$90.0
million. Completion of the disposal took place on 21st December, 2015.

Disposal of Subsidiaries holding Chengdu Projects - Discloseable

Transaction

14th July, 2015, the Group entered into an equity and debt transfer
agreement in relation to, inter alia, disposal of the Company's wholly-
owned subsidiaries that ultimately held, inter alia, the property projects
located at Chengdu, People's Republic of China (“PRC") known as
Splendid City, The Metropolis and Chinese Estates Plaza, together with
an investment in a PRC partnership which was set up mainly for the
purpose of long term capital investment, to an independent third party at
a consideration of HK$6,500.0 million (“Chengdu Transaction”). Chengdu
Transaction constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Details of Chengdu Transaction were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 14th July, 2015. Completion of
Chengdu Transaction took place on 30th July, 2015.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Disposal of a Company holding Platinum by an Associate

An associate of the Group (50% interest) has on 7th August, 2015
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to, inter alia,
disposal of a company that ultimately held the office building namely
Platinum located at Shanghai, PRC to an independent third party of the
Company at a final consideration of approximately US$322.5 million.

Completion of the disposal took place on 30th September, 2015.

Disposal of a Subsidiary holding Chongqing Project - Discloseable

Transaction

On 19th October, 2015, the Group entered into an equity and debt
receivable transfer agreement in relation to, inter alia, disposal of the
Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, which in turn owns 25% of the
company that ultimately held the entire interests in the property project
located at Chongging, PRC known as The Coronation, to an independent
third party at a consideration of HK$1,750.0 million (“Chongging
Transaction”). Chongging Transaction constituted a discloseable transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of Chongqing Transaction
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19th October,
2015. Completion of Chongging Transaction took place on 27th October,
2015.

Disposal of a Subsidiary holding MassMutual Tower - Major

Transaction

The Group has on 12th November, 2015 entered into an equity and
debt transfer agreement in relation to, inter alia, disposal of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company that ultimately held the commercial
property known as MassMutual Tower located in Wanchai, Hong Kong
to an independent third party, at the final consideration of approximately
HK$12,448.3 million (“MMT Transaction”). MMT Transaction constituted
a major transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. MMT
Transaction was completed on 15th January, 2016. Details of MMT
Transaction were set out in the Company's announcement dated 12th
November, 2015; circular dated 3rd December, 2015; and announcement
dated 15th January, 2016.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Disposal of a Residential Unit of 55 Conduit Road - Connected

Transaction

As announced on 21st December, 2015, the Group accepted a tender
submitted by Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai, a non-executive director of the
Company, to purchase a residential unit together with a car parking space
of the Group's luxury residential development located in Mid-Levels
West, Hong Kong, namely 55 Conduit Road at the purchase price of
HK$124,118,000. The transaction constituted a connected transaction of
the Company under the Listing Rules and is expected to be completed on
or before 29th April, 2016.

Disposal of Subsidiaries holding Windsor House - Major and

Connected Transactions

As announced on 23rd December, 2015, the Group has on 23rd
December, 2015 entered into sale and purchase agreements, in relation
to, inter alia, disposal of the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
that ultimately held the property known as Windsor House located in
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong to the company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph
Lau at a consideration capped at HK$12,010.0 million in total (“Windsor
Transactions”). Windsor Transactions constituted major and connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules and were approved
by the Independent Shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 2nd February, 2016. Details of Windsor Transactions
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 23rd
December, 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 15th January,
2016. Completion shall take place on or before 31st December, 2016.

Acquisition of a Property in the United Kingdom

In March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to acquire a freehold property situate at
12/14 St. George Street, Mayfair, London at a consideration of GBP121.7
million. Completion of the acquisition shall take place on or before 15th
April, 2016.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ISSUES

The Group is aware of the importance of corporate social responsibility
and considers the fundamental success of corporate development is

attaching to corporate social responsibility.
Employment and Staff Care

The Group considers its employees as its important asset and strives to

attract and retain the best people for the sustainable growth of the Group.

As a caring company, the Group provides equal opportunity to employees
and prohibits discrimination on the basis of personal characteristic. In
order to sustain a safe, fair and respectful environment to employees, the

Group had established code of practices for employees.

The Group is committed to providing a fair and competitive remuneration
package in the form of basic salary, incentive pay (discretionary bonus),
mandatory and voluntary provident funds, and other fringe benefits, such
as healthcare benefits (including medical insurance, personal accident
insurance and employee compensation), paid leave for various purposes
(including annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave,
sick leave, examination leave and compassionate leave), and education

and training sponsorship.

Besides, employees are encouraged to have a good balance among work,
health and social activities which has been supported by adopting a five-
day workweek and arranging early release from work for festivals. During
the Year, the Group arranged a parent-child activity relating to organic
farming. The aims of the activity are to encourage parents and child to
experience green life through organic agriculture, to encourage employees
the participation of extracurricular activity with family members as well as

to advance parent-child activity.

Moreover, the Group's annual dinner is one of its most important
functions where the management and employees can meet together in
a relaxed circumstance. During the annual dinner, employees who have
completed at least 10 consecutive years of services will be given long
service awards in recognition of their commitment and loyalty; employees
who have participated the community services or volunteer activities for
more than 10 hours in the Year will also be awarded by the Group in

recognition of their commitment and contribution.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ISSUES (contd)

Health and Safety

The head office of the Group is located at one of the prime sites in
Wanchai with easy accessibility to work with well developed traffic
network throughout. The office is the self-managed property of the Group
with rather spacious working environment that affords the employees a

comfortable working place with good property management.

The Group emphasises to provide its employees a safety office for works
all the time. Notices are displayed in all conspicuous positions in the

workplace to highlight the action to be taken on discovering a fire.

The Group alerts the importance of the prevention of influenza. Over the

past years, free influenza vaccinations were arranged for employees.
Operating Practices

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of business integrity,
honesty and transparency in its business dealings and to respecting the

rights and interests of customers.

The Group endeavours to comply with the Residential Properties (First-
hand Sales) Ordinance, Chapter 621 of the laws of Hong Kong to protect

purchasers' rights and interests all the time.
Community Involvement

The Group is committed to making a positive contribution to the
communities in which it operates for all the time. During the Year,
the Group continued to actively support meaningful activities in the
community, and to encourage and promote volunteerism throughout the

Group.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH& =

BE - H8REREBE 1w

RERZZ

REBWATRNEFTZHE  ZBRAKRTE 7
EEETELE - WA T B AAEEERE
MEEEER REITIRHEFEMNIIES-

o

AEE-HFEERBTIRATELEZNORAZTIIE
MBETIESMERMLEDY EER B BB AE
B EBRERENTTE -

AEBRBEMHARTUHERENER L - BERF —
BEREELHRBIFREKE-

SEEN
ARBEE AR EEBERPERRRFROBEBRE

BENBRAE AEBFFEMNMAE -

AEER DB TRABHNEFBEFE21E (—F
EEMEHEED)  HAREBEREMNFF -

HESH

AEBE-—RBNAEBHELEREGER -RAF

B ARBEEEBIXHERARRIHLEEE I
BENEEAZBNRERE T

-

EA

[

£

]

—E-hEFRH



22

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ISSUES (contd)

Community Involvement (Cont'd)

The Company has formed a voluntary service team since 2007. The Group
together with its staff and/or voluntary service team had participated
in various community programmes, charitable fundraising activities
and volunteer services for helping the communities in need, suffering
people and children with special needs from time to time during the
Year. The Group continues to participate in (among others) circulation
of flag bags within the Group organized by Hong Kong Alzheimer's
Disease Association, “Dress Pink Day" organised by Hong Kong Cancer
Fund, “Pass-it-On" organised by Hong Kong Red Cross, “Oxfam Rice
Event” organised by Oxfam Hong Kong, “Olympic ‘Fun’ Run” organised
by Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China,
“Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon — ‘Run for Paralympians’
Charity Programme” organised by Hong Kong Paralympic Committee &
Sports Association for the Physically Disabled, “Hong Kong and Kowloon
Walk for Millions” and “Dress Casual Day” organised by The Community
Chest of Hong Kong, and “Skip-A-Meal” and “Used Book Recycling
Campaign” organised by World Vision Hong Kong. During the Year, the
Group had also participated in (among others) flag day organised by
Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong and "AVS Walk & Run for

Volunteering 2015" organised by Agency for Volunteer Service.

Moreover, the Group supports a barrier-free environment in the
community. Certain premises of the Group (including shopping malls,
commercial and residential properties) provide barrier-free access and
facilities for people in need including persons with disabilities such as
the installation of automatic door opening devices for the exit doors,
the provision of wheelchair lending services and premises with disabled

toilets.

The Company was awarded as “Caring Company”, being the ninth
consecutive year, by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service in

recognition of our good corporate citizenship.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ISSUES (contd)

Environmental Protection

The Group advocates environmental protection. The Group continued
to support World Wide Fund's global and local conservation efforts. The
Group played a part in their “Earth Hour” by switching off the exterior and
billboard lighting of certain properties under the Group for an hour on the
night of 28th March, 2015.

The Group is also committed to minimising the adverse impact that
its operations may have on the environment. The Group encourages
double-sided printing in office in order to save trees. The Group also
convenes meetings for directors/management who stay overseas by
mean of telephone conference in order to minimize the carbon footprint
from frequent overseas travel. The Group encourages reduction of light
pollution by switching off the unnecessary lights after its office and
shopping malls are closed. Traditional high energy consumption lights
at shopping malls were replaced by LED lightings since 2014. Over
the recent years, the Group's properties have been designed and/
or constructed with green ideas and features by maximizing the use
of natural renewable resources and recycled/green building material,
minimizing the consumption of energy, and reducing construction and

demolition waste in development projects.

The Group has undertaken a redevelopment project in Wanchai with the
Urban Renewal Authority aiming to preserve the Old Wan Chai Market
(the “Market"). The Market is a pre-war Bauhaus-style building constructed
in 1937 and rated as a Grade IIl heritage building in Hong Kong. During
the heritage conversion process, the Group adopted a “core elements
preservation” strategy approved by local conservation bodies, which
preserved the core and major components of the Market, including the
entire exterior and facade, the interior structure, and part of its original
appearance and successfully developed the site into a unique property
development namely One WanChai, a residential/commercial complex
with total gross floor area of approximately 159,700 square feet. Towering
above a significant historical landmark, One WanChai is the first such
redevelopment in Hong Kong and is well known as an iconic blending of

heritage and modern architecture.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to
ensure their thorough understanding of the Group's strategies and
business development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor

relations.

The Company maintains a Company's website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including
the dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc., to
facilitate its communication with shareholders and to provide important
information to the investing public on corporate governance structure,
policies and systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as

well as terms of reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company's website and welcomes
suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites them to
share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor,
MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email
at investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

PROSPECTS

The economic recovery in the United States continues to be modest
with the support of strengthening housing and labour markets. With
the modest interest rate increment, it is expected that the domestic
demand in the United States will be on the right track of steadily growth.
Meanwhile, despite the unprecedented amounts of monetary stimulus,
the economic recovery of the European countries is slowing and inflation
is retreating. It is expected that stimulus will be expanded to counter the
risk of low inflation in the European countries and it is hoped that the

global economy will continue to recover in the times ahead.
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PROSPECTS (contd)

The supply of residential units in Hong Kong is rising and it is inevitable
that the local market price for the residential sector is under pressure.
The Group's properties under development held for sale are located at
good hillside location. As the demand for certain local high-end housing
sectors should remain solid, the Group believes that the pressure could be
reduced and the Group is optimistic in its property development business
in Hong Kong. On the other hand, the performance of certain retail
business sectors has shown indications of reaching their peaks, especially
the tourists-related businesses. Although the Group's well-located retail
investment properties in Hong Kong leased well during the Year, the
Group will continue to closely monitor the changes in local consumption
patterns, refine its tenant mix, boost customer flow and spending for
its retail investment properties by organising various marketing and
promotional activities. The Group remains cautiously optimistic in the

rental income growth from its retail investment properties.

Subsequent to the disposal of the company holding MassMutual Tower
in January 2016, contribution of rental income from MassMutual Tower
to the Group in year 2016 will be significantly lowered. Meanwhile, it is
expected that the disposal of the companies holding Windsor House will
be completed in year 2016. As a result, rental contribution from Windsor
House to the Group in year 2016 will be maintained to such extent
right up before completion of disposal. As announced, part of the sale
proceeds from the disposal transaction of MassMutual Tower had been
distributed as conditional special interim dividend, and it is expected that
majority part of the sale proceeds from the disposal of companies holding
Windsor House will be declared as dividend. The respective gain/loss from
the disposals of MassMutual Tower and Windsor House will be recorded
in year 2016. With the sustained demand for quality commercial premises
in key locations, especially from Mainland Chinese enterprises, the Group
expects the leasing performance of remaining office investment properties

will continue to grow.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&E

PROSPECTS (contd)

With the implementation of economic transition, the economy in Mainland
China is more reliant on household consumption and services. Domestic
consumption’s contribution to Mainland China’'s GDP and total retail sales
of consumer goods has been increasing. Despite the economic growth
has slowed down in Mainland China, the “One Belt and One Road" policy
will promote economic growth and sustainable development. It is believed
that the economy in Mainland China is making headway its transformation
to a more sustainable growth model and the fundamentals of Mainland
China's economy remain strong. The Group expects retail and office
investment properties in Mainland China will continue to lease well and
will provide steady rental income. The Group will consider realising its

property interests in Mainland China if good opportunity arises.

River Court, the Group's investment property in London, will continue
making contributions through stable return. The Group has in March 2016

entered into a contract to acquire another investment property in London.

The Group will remain skeptically proactive and continue to monitor the
property markets of Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas closely, and
may replenish its land bank and identify potential acquisition targets to

expand its investment property portfolio at opportune times.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their

dedication and hard work.

Lau, Ming-wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th March, 2016
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RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue for the Year amounted to HK$1,542.4 million (2014:
HK$2,627.3 million), a 41.3% decrease over last year and comprised
gross rental income of HK$1,325.9 million (2014: HK$1,939.4 million),
property sales of HK$151.6 million (2014: HK$617.1 million), loss on
sales of investments held-for-trading on a net basis of HK$2.4 million
(2014: profit of HK$29.1 million) and others of HK$67.3 million (2014:
HK$41.7 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the

decrease in gross rental income and sales of development properties.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$1,286.9 million (2014:
HK$2,204.6 million), a 41.6% decrease as compared with last year which
was mainly due to the decrease in net rental income of HK$615.1 million

and profit from property sales of HK$268.8 million.

Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in retail section declined by
49.1% to HK$651.4 million while rental revenue in non-retail section
increased by 2.2% to HK$674.5 million during the Year. The total
rental income in revenue for the Year recorded a decrease of 31.6% to
HK$1,325.9 million as compared with last year of HK$1,939.4 million.

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
and an investee company of HK$196.0 million (2014: HK$221.2 million),
the total attributable rental revenue to the Group after non-controlling
interests amounted to approximately HK$1,520.2 million (2014:
HK$2,159.0 million), which representing a decline of 29.6% over last

year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$1,374.9 million, a

31.6% decrease over HK$2,011.0 million in last year.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Property Leasing (Cont'd)

The decline in attributable rental revenue and net rental income are
mainly due to the disposals of subsidiaries holding Silvercord in January
2015 and The ONE in July 2015, since then the results of those
subsidiaries were not consolidated to the Group. In addition, an associate
of the Group (50% interest) disposed of a company that ultimately held
the office building namely Platinum located at Shanghai, the People's
Republic of China (“Shanghai Platinum Disposal”) in September 2015.
Excluding the investment properties disposed of during the Year, the
attributable rental revenue and net rental income of the remaining

investment properties maintained stable performance over last year.
Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the attributable property sales revenue and the
relevant attributable profit from the Group and its associates recorded
a decrease of 87.9% to HK$248.2 million (2014: HK$2,056.6 million)
and a decrease of 90.8% to HK$66.0 million (2014: HK$715.0 million)
respectively, of which the attributable results from an investee company

was included for the year 2014.

The major components recorded in gross profit are sales of: Phase |,
Phase Il and parking spaces of Splendid City in Chengdu (100% interest)
generated profit of HK$0.4 million (2014: HK$6.3 million), HK$2.1 million
(2014: HK$41.5 million) and HK$7.7 million (2014: HK$124.8 million)
respectively and Tower 1 of The Metropolis in Chengdu (100% interest)
generated profit of HK$22.0 million (2014: HK$64.1 million).

Sales of One WanChai and parking spaces at The Zenith in Wanchai (both
87.5% interest) recognised during the Year had contributed an attributable
profit to the Group of HK$23.9 million (2014: HK$78.8 million) and
HK$4.7 million (2014: HK$5.9 million) respectively.

In respect of properties held by associates, Hing Wai Centre in Aberdeen
(50% interest) and The Coronation in Chongging (25% interest)
generated profit of HK$0.1 million and HK$5.1 million respectively (2014:
Kwong Kin Trade Centre in Tuen Mun (40% interest) and Greenville
Residence in Yuen Long (50% interest) generated profit of HK$3.6 million
and HK$0.1 million respectively) as reflected in the share of results of

associates.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Property Development and Trading (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014, sale of The Coronation in West
Kowloon (15% interest) had contributed HK$389.9 million to investment
income upon recognition of dividend income. No similar dividend income

was received during the Year from the Group's investee company.

As at 31st December, 2015, deposits received from stock of properties
contracted to be sold amounted to HK$527.5 million. Of which, deposits
of HK$454.8 million were received from presale of 88 units of One South
Lane in Kennedy Town (100% interest) with contracted sale of HK$467.3
million (after discount), together with deposits of HK$72.7 million were
received for 11 units and 11 parking spaces of 55 Conduit Road located
in Mid-Levels West (70% interest) with contracted sale of HK$1,454.3
million and its attributable interest of sales to the Group amounted to

HK$1,018.0 million.

In summary, the Group together with associates executed properties
sale agreements, including presale agreements to third parties and
a connected person, recorded an attributable contracted sales of
HK$1,457.1 million (those subsidiaries and associate disposed of up to
the date of completion of disposal) (2014: HK$1,159.3 million) during
the Year. Total attributable property sale profit recognised for the Year was
HK$66.0 million (2014: HK$715.0 million).

Securities Investments

The Group has closely managed the securities investments with a view to
yield enhancement. During the Year, the Group recorded a realised loss
of HK$2.4 million (2014: realised gain of HK$29.1 million) on disposal of
listed investments held-for-trading (the gains/losses of which was included
in revenue) with gross proceeds of HK$720.1 million (2014: HK$466.9
million). In addition, a realised loss from sale of bonds of HK$33.7 million
(2014: realised loss from sale of bonds of HK$140.3 million and realised
gain from sale of preference shares of HK$1.2 million) was recognised.
The net realised loss for the Year was HK$36.1 million (2014: HK$110.0

million).

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised gain of HK$333.5 million
(2014: unrealised loss of HK$402.5 million) representing the changes in
fair value of listed securities and bonds, which had no effect on the cash

flow of the Group.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During both years, there was no acquisition and disposal on listed equity

securities included in available-for-sale investments.

Summing up the above and adding the net income from dividend,
interest income, other net investment income and other finance costs
of HK$562.9 million (2014: net income from dividend, interest income,
other investment income and other finance income of HK$748.7 million),
the gain recognised on securities investments was HK$860.3 million
(2014: HK$236.2 million).

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below.
Listed Available-for-sale Equity Investments

The Group had not acquired and disposed any listed available-for-sale

equity investments for the years of 2015 and 2014.
Listed Investments Held-for-trading and Treasury Products

The listed investments held-for-trading and treasury products recorded a
profit before and after finance cost of HK$868.3 million and HK$860.3
million respectively for the Year (2014: profit before and after finance

income of HK$225.5 million and HK$236.2 million respectively).

Profit reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the Year comprised a gross loss from disposal of listed investments
held-for-trading of HK$2.4 million (2014: gross profit of HK$29.1 million),
a realised loss on bonds of HK$33.7 million (2014: realised loss on bonds
of HK$140.3 million and realised gain on preference shares of HK$1.2
million), an unrealised gain on fair value changes of listed securities and
bonds of HK$333.5 million (2014: unrealised loss of HK$402.5 million)
and dividend, interest income and other net investment income of
HK$570.9 million (2014: HK$738.0 million). Net relevant finance costs
for the Year was HK$8.0 million (2014: net relevant finance income of
HK$10.7 million) including interest expense of HK$17.3 million (2014:
HK$22.1 million) and exchange gain of HK$9.3 million (2014: HK$32.8

million).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the Year, which mainly came from net building
management fee income, asset management and maintenance services
income, property management services, leasing administration services
and property administration services income, advisory and consultancy
services income, rental services income and reversal of impairment in
respect of other receivable and interest thereon, increased to HK$134.9
million (2014: HK$95.2 million), representing an increase of 41.7% as

compared with last year.

During the Year, administrative expenses increased by 16.4% to
HK$344.8 million (2014: HK$296.3 million), the increase was mainly
due to the expenses incurred upon commencement of hotel operation in
Chengdu. Finance costs decreased by 19.8% to HK$316.9 million (2014:
HK$395.0 million) during the Year, including exchange gain of HK$9.3
million (2014: HK$32.8 million) on foreign currency loans hedged for
foreign currency securities investments. Other expenses amounted to
HK$0.3 million (2014: HK$122.1 million mainly consisted of interest on
sales deposits repaid to promissory purchasers of presold property units
under the La Scala project and pre-operating expenses incurred by the
hotel in Chengdu).

Other gains and losses recorded a net gain of HK$940.9 million mainly
comprised (i) gain on the One Disposal of HK$212.3 million and loss
on the Silvercord Disposal of HK$97.2 million (as disclosed in the
paragraph “Disposals of Subsidiaries to Connected Persons” below); (ii)
gain on disposals of the Group's entire issued share capital of Lucky
Benefit Limited and Rising Sheen Limited, both are indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and their respective subsidiaries (“Chengdu
Project Disposal”) of HK$707.5 million; and (iii) gain on disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Million Castle Investments Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company of HK$118.4
million. For the year ended 31st December, 2014, other gains and losses
recorded a net gain of HK$2,912.4 million mainly comprised gain on
disposal of the Group's entire share capital of Value Eight Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries of
HK$2,917.6 million.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Disposals of Subsidiaries to Connected Persons

(@

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 2nd
September, 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 23rd
September, 2014, (a) (i) Super Series Limited (“Super Series"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the
Company, being the guarantor of Super Series; (iii) Fly High Target
Limited (“Fly High Target"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph
Lau, Luen-hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau"), a substantial shareholder and
a controlling shareholder of the Company; and (iv) Mr. Joseph
Lau, being the guarantor of Fly High Target, entered into sale and
purchase agreements, namely “Silvercord First SP Agreement” and
“Silvercord Second SP Agreement”, pursuant to which Super Series
agreed to sell and Fly High Target agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Brass Ring Limited (“Brass Ring") and Union
Leader Limited (“Union Leader”) respectively, both are indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company; and (b) (i) Chinese
Estates, Limited (“CEL"), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; (i) the Company, being the guarantor of CEL; (iii) Coast
Field Ltd. (“Coast Field"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph
Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Coast Field,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, namely “Silvercord
Third SP Agreement’, pursuant to which CEL agreed to sell and
Coast Field agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Chinese Estates and Finance, Limited (now known as Silvercord
Finance Limited) (“CE Finance"), an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

The disposal of Brass Ring, Union Leader, CE Finance and
their respective subsidiaries (collectively “Silvercord Group")
(“Silvercord Disposal”) was completed on 13th January, 2015 at
a total consideration of approximately HK$7,656.1 million. Upon
completion, the Silvercord Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company and its consolidated results, assets and liabilities were

ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Disposals of Subsidiaries to Connected Persons (Cont'd)

(@

(b)

(Cont'd)

Upon completion of the Silvercord Disposal, the Group recorded
loss on disposals of subsidiaries of approximately HK$97.2 million.
The loss was mainly derived from the increase in fair value of the
investment properties of HK$93.2 million due to revaluation of
the investment properties as at 31st December, 2014 (which is
carried out in accordance with the Group's accounting policies on
revaluation of the Group's investment properties as at reporting
date) as compared with the property valuation under the sale
and purchase agreements of the Silvercord Disposal dated 1st
September, 2014.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 12th
December, 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 7th
January, 2015, (i) Rich Lucky Limited (“Rich Lucky”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (i) the Company, being
the guarantor of Rich Lucky; (iii) Market Victory Limited (“Market
Victory"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr.
Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Market Victory, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Rich Lucky agreed
to sell and Market Victory agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Asian East Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively “One Group”) (“One
Disposal”).

The One Disposal was completed on 15th July, 2015 at a
consideration of approximately HK$5,020.6 million. Upon
completion, the One Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company and its consolidated results, assets and liabilities were

ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Upon completion of the One Disposal, the Group recorded gain
on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$212.3 million.
The gain was mainly derived from the decrease in fair value of the
investment properties of HK$215.0 million due to revaluation of the
investment properties as at 30th June, 2015 (which is carried out
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies on revaluation
of the Group's investment properties as at reporting date) as
compared with the property valuation under the sale and purchase
agreement of the One Disposal dated 12th December, 2014.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Associates

The share of results of associates for the Year was a profit of HK$649.7
million as compared to HK$187.3 million for last year, the increase
was mainly attributable to share of an associate’s gain on disposal of
subsidiaries (net of tax) of approximately HK$514.1 million relating to the
Shanghai Platinum Disposal for the Year (2014: nil).

Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31st December, 2015 by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.
I. Appraisals”) and Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers
Appraisal”) whereas the investment property in the United Kingdom was
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”). B.I.
Appraisals, Vigers Appraisal and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent
property valuers. An increase in fair value on investment properties of
HK$4,689.2 million (2014: HK$3,777.1 million) was recorded during the
Year. The unrealised fair value changes will not affect the cash flow of the

Group.

PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND CASH PAYMENT RATIO

Profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was HK$7,727.2
million as compared to HK$8,744.9 million for last year. The decrease in
profit for the Year was mainly arising from decline in attributable net rental
income as a result of the Silvercord Disposal and the One Disposal in
January 2015 and July 2015 respectively, decline in attributable property
sale profit, no dividend income from the Group's investee company in
respect of property development and trading and decline in net gain on
disposals of subsidiaries, despite increase in gain recognised on securities
investments, increase of fair value gain on investment properties and
share of gain on disposal of subsidiaries by an associate. Earnings per
share for the Year was HK$4.05 (2014: HK$4.58).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND CASH PAYMENT RATIO
(Cont'd)

Core Profit

The Group disposed of an investment property and certain investment
properties through disposals of subsidiaries and associates during the Year,
the costs of which are stated at fair value. Before disposal, such gain/
loss on fair value change is unrealised and recognised at the end of each
reporting period, but excluded from core profit as non-cash items. In the
year of disposal, such unrealised gain/loss has become realised; and in
computating core profit, accumulated fair value gain/loss from prior years

and current year are included as cash items.

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$4,785.1 million (2014:
HK$3,877.4 million) are excluded, but the realised fair value changes
together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of investment
properties from the Group and its associates in current year recognised
loss for the Year of HK$154.6 million (2014: HK$0.3 million) is retained
and the accumulated realised fair value gain together with their respective
deferred tax on disposals of investment properties from the Group and
its associates recognised in prior years of HK$13,843.7 million (2014:
HK$55.0 million) is included, the Group will have a core profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the Year of HK$16,785.8 million (2014:
HK$4,922.5 million) and a core earnings per share of HK879.9 cents
(2014: HK258.0 cents), which were both 3.4 times to those in the year of
2014.

The major non-cash items represented the attributable unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$4,785.1 million (2014:
HK$3,877.4 million).

Dividends
Final dividend of HK1 cent (year ended 31st December, 2013: HK50

cents) per share in total amount of HK$19.1 million for the year ended
31st December, 2014 was paid in cash on 5th June, 2015.

Special interim dividend of HK$4 per share in total amount of HK$7,630.5

million was paid in cash on 13th January, 2015.
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND CASH PAYMENT RATIO
(Cont'd)

Dividends (Cont'd)

Interim dividend of HK30 cents (half year ended 30th June, 2014: HK30
cents) per share in total amount of HK$572.3 million for the half year
ended 30th June, 2015 was paid in cash on 14th September, 2015.

Special interim dividends of HK$2.6 per share in total amount of
HK$4,959.8 million and HK$1.2 per share in total amount of HK$2,289.1
million (2014: HK$2.55 per share) were paid in cash on 15th July, 2015
and on 14th September, 2015 respectively.

Total dividends of HK$15,470.8 million were paid in cash during the Year.

On 21st December, 2015, the Board declared a conditional special
interim dividend of HK$2 per share, which is conditional upon completion
of the Pioneer Time Disposal (as disclosed in section headed “Assets
Classified as Held for Sale/Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets
Classified as Held for Sale” below). Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the completion of the Pioneer Time Disposal took place
on 15th January, 2016 and the payment of the conditional special interim
dividend was made on 20th January, 2016 in total amount of HK$3,815.2

million.
Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's

share.
Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$16,785.8 million (2014:
HK$4,922.5 million) or HK879.9 cents (2014: HK258.0 cents) per share;
(b) cash final dividend for the Year of HK1 cent (2014: HK1 cent) per
share proposed; (c) cash special interim dividend of HK$4 per share was
paid during the Year; and (d) cash interim dividend for 2015 of HK30
cents (2014: HK30 cents) per share and cash special interim dividend
of HK$2.6 and HK$1.2 (2014: HK$2.55) per share were paid during the
Year, the ratio of such cash payment to the core profit is 92.2% (2014:
110.99%).
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NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group's total net asset attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately HK$40,247.6 million
(2014: HK$41,567.4 million), a decrease of HK$1,319.8 million or 3.2%
when compared with 2014. With the total number of ordinary shares
in issue of 1,907619,079 as at 31st December, 2015 and 2014, the
net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$21.10 (2014: HK$21.79). The movement in net asset value was
mainly due to (a) total comprehensive income for the Year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$6,520.6 million; and (b) final, interim and
special interim dividends recognised as distribution during the Year totaling
HK$7,840.3 million.

There was no transaction on the listed equity securities investments
categorised as available-for-sale investments for the Year. The carrying
amounts of the listed equity securities investments reserve as at 31st
December, 2015 and 2014 were nil.

Other than disposal of subsidiaries holding Windsor House (as disclosed
in the "Other Information and Events After the Reporting Period"
under Chairman’s Statement of this annual report), the Pioneer Time
Disposal (as disclosed in section headed “Assets Classified as Held
for Sale/Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets Classified as Held
for Sale” below), the commitment for investment in the Cayman
Islands Partnership (as disclosed in the paragraph “Unlisted Securities
Investments” below), acquisition of a property in the United Kingdom
(as disclosed in the “Other Information and Events After the Reporting
Period” under Chairman’s Statement of this annual report), the existing
projects and those disclosed in the final results, the Group did not have
material acquisition or disposal of assets and any future plans for material

investment or capital assets.

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

Listed Securities Investments and Treasury Products

As at 31st December, 2014, the carrying amount of the listed securities
investments and treasury products was HK$5,128.8 million. During
the Year, the portfolio was increased by a net purchase of HK$5,971.2
million. After adding the fair value gain of HK$333.5 million for the
Year, the listed securities investments and treasury products portfolio of
the Group became HK$11,433.5 million as at 31st December, 2015
representing 18.1% of total assets, which formed part of the Group's cash

management activities.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Listed Securities Investments and Treasury Products (Cont'd)

As at 31st December, 2015, the portfolio of HK$11,433.5 million (2014:
HK$5,128.8 million) comprised (a) listed equity securities (investments
held-for-trading) of HK$264.2 million (2014: HK$501.9 million) and (b)
bonds (financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss) of
HK$11,069.3 million (2014: HK$4,626.9 million).

Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group entered into a subscription agreement for commitment in
contribution of United States dollars (“US$") 100.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$775.0 million) in an exempted limited partnership
formed under the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”). As at 31st December,
2015, the Group has invested US$83.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$648.2 million) which was included in available-for-sale
investments.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

During the Year, Great System Investment Limited (“Great System"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shengyu (BVI)
Limited (“Shengyu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Evergrande Real Estate
Group Limited which is independent of and not connected with the
Company, entered into an equity and debt transfer agreement, pursuant
to which Great System agreed to sell and Shengyu agreed to acquire the
entire issued share capital of Pioneer Time Investment Limited (“Pioneer
Time") (“Pioneer Time Disposal”).

The Pioneer Time Disposal was completed on 15th January, 2016 at a
consideration of approximately HK$12,448.3 million (after adjustment).
As at 31st December, 2015, a deposit of HK$1,250.0 million has been
received by the Group and included in deposits and receipts in advance.
As a result of the Pioneer Time Disposal, the assets and liabilities of
Pioneer Time have been presented as assets classified as held for sale
and liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
respectively in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December, 2015 in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held

for Sale and Discountinued Operations”.

Details of the Pioneer Time Disposal were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 12th November, 2015 and the circular of the
Company dated 3rd December, 2015.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31st December, 2015 and
2014 were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group's bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$14,531.8 million (2014: HK$16,548.9 million)
(excluding bank borrowings presented as liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale). Cash and deposits at banks amounted
to HK$2,849.8 million (2014: HK$4,719.2 million) (excluding cash
and deposits at banks presented as assets classified as held for sale),
pledged deposits amounted to HK$202.8 million (excluding pledged
deposits presented as assets classified as held for sale) (2014: HK$868.7
million) and net borrowings amounted to HK$11,479.2 million (2014:
HK$10,961.0 million).

Total debt to equity ratio was 36.0% (2014: 39.7%) and net debt
to equity ratio was 28.5% (2014: 26.3%), which are expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings, and net borrowings, respectively, over the
total equity of HK$40,325.4 million (2014: HK$41,652.6 million). The
decrease in the total debt to equity ratio was mainly due to the decrease
in borrowings. The increase in net debt to equity ratio was mainly due to

the decrease in equity after payment of special interim dividends.

However, if the listed securities investments and treasury products of
HK$11,433.5 million (2014: HK$5,128.8 million) are included, the net
debt to equity ratio will be 0.1% (2014: 14.0%).
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DEBT AND GEARING (contd)

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group's bank and other borrowings of
HK$14,531.8 million (excluding bank borrowings presented as liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale), 59.5%, 1.2%
and 39.3% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years
respectively. Of which the Group's bank and other borrowings were
denominated in HK$ (52.1%), US$ (25.5%), Pound Sterling (“GBP")
(19.2%), Singapore Dollar ("SGD") (2.8%) and Euro (“EUR") (0.4%).
US$, GBP, SGD and EUR investment securities were hedged by US$, GBP,
SGD and EUR borrowings. The Group's bank and other borrowings in HK$,
US$, SGD and EUR were carried at interest rates calculated mainly with
reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate/prime rate/cost of funds;
bank and other borrowings in GBP were effectively carried at fixed rate
and with reference to cost of funds respectively. As at 31st December,
2015, about 81.19% of the Group’s borrowings were on floating rate
basis and 18.9% were on fixed rate basis. No hedging for interest rate is

subsisted at the end of the reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group had pledged the following assets

with their respective carrying amounts:

(a) The Group's investment properties of approximately HK$26,527.8
million (2014: HK$44,156.9 million) (including investment
properties presented as assets classified as held for sale), properties
of HK$505.5 million (presented as assets classified as held for
sale) (2014: HK$1,509.3 million), stock of properties of HK$958.0
million (2014: nil) and time deposits of HK$253.4 million
(including time deposits presented as assets classified as held
for sale) (2014: HK$857.9 million) were pledged to the Group's
bankers to secure general banking and loan facilities granted to the

Group.

(b) The Group's investments held-for-trading and bonds with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$11,433.5 million (2014: HK$5,048.7
million) and cash deposits of HK$8.6 million (2014: HK$10.8
million) were pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure
margin and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect of
securities transactions, of which approximately HK$5,389.8 million
(2014: HK$1,713.7 million) was utilised as at 31st December,

2015 as borrowings due within one year.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS (contd)

(¢) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

REPURCHASE GUARANTEE

As at 31st December, 2015, the repurchase guarantee no longer exist

upon completion of the Chengdu Project Disposal.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/
EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue, other income and investment
income (2014: included in revenue and investment income). Interest
income for the Year was HK$766.5 million, representing a slight increase
of 3.7% over 2014 of HK$739.0 million.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank loans, other loans and
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder; exchange difference on
translation of foreign currency loans; and arrangement fee and facility
and commitment fee expenses. Interest expenses for the Year amounted
to HK$290.0 million, representing a decrease of 23.7% over last year of
HK$380.3 million. Interest capitalised for the Year was HK$68.3 million
as compared to HK$142.3 million for last year, the decrease in interest
expenses and interest capitalised were mainly due to decrease in total
borrowings following certain disposals of subsidiaries during the Year.
The average interest rate over the year under review was 2.39% (2014:
2.53%), which was expressed as a percentage of total interest paid over

the average total borrowings.

REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group employed a total of 582 staff
in Hong Kong (2014: 624 staff) including about 269 staff (2014: 266
staff) employed under the estate management company in Hong Kong.
Following the Chengdu Project Disposal, there was only 4 staff in the
offices at Mainland China (2014: total 739 staff, which included about
197 staff of the estate management company and 370 staff of the hotel
in Chengdu).
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REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary
incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance. No

share option scheme was adopted during the Year.

The Company had adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme") in 2009. The Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward
certain employees for their contributions to the Group and to give long-
term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. Details of the Share Award Scheme were set
out in the Company's circular dated 23rd December, 2008. No share was

granted under the Share Award Scheme during the Year.

MAINLAND CHINA AND THE UNITED KINGDOM

Profit contribution from the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in gross profit, fair value changes on investment properties,
share of results of associates and taxation) for the Year amounted to
HK$1,340.6 million (including gain on disposals of subsidiaries (as
disclosed in the paragraph “Other Income and Expenses” above) and
share of associate’s gain on disposal of subsidiaries (net of tax) (as
above)) (2014: HK$155.2

million). Renminbi exchange loss included in other comprehensive

disclosed in the paragraph “Associates”

expenses amounted to HK$70.1 million related to subsidiaries and
associates disposed of during the Year, the remaining foreign operations
amounted to HK$51.5 million. The Group's net investment in Mainland
China as at 31st December, 2015 amounted to HK$1,772.9 million
(2014: HK$9,979.7 million) representing approximately 4.4% of the
Group's total equity.

Further, the Group's investment property in the United Kingdom with
carrying amount of GBP351.5 million as at 31st December, 2015
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,037.1 million) (2014: GBP390.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$4,720.1 million)) contributed
a loss of HK$392.7 million (2014: profit of HK$1,036.7 million) to
the Group for the Year. As at 31st December, 2015, the Group's net
investment in the United Kingdom amounted to HK$1,613.1 million
(2014: HK$2,078.5 million) representing approximately 4.0% of the
Group's total equity.
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LISTED SUBSIDIARY

The Group did not own any listed subsidiary at the end of the reporting
period.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group's investment properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China have been carried out by B.I. Appraisals
and Vigers Appraisal as at 31st December, 2015 and 2014, both are
independent qualified professional valuers. For the investment property in
the United Kingdom, the valuations as at 31st December, 2015 and 2014
were carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals, another independent qualified
professional valuer. Their valuations were based on investment method
and/or direct comparison method as the valuation methodologies and

were used in preparing 2015 final results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$30,598.9 million
(2014: HK$48,917.2 million) (including those presented as assets
classified as held for sale), an 17.1% increase over 2014 after adjusted
for the additions and disposals of investment properties and those
transfer to stock of properties during the Year. The increase in fair value
of approximately HK$4,689.2 million was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the Year. The Group also
shared an increase in fair value of investment properties of associates of
HK$82.0 million (adjusted deferred tax of HK$3.9 million) for the Year.
Development properties and non-investment properties of the Group
were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated financial

statements.

The increase in fair value of approximately HK$4,689.2 million was mainly
attributable to increase in fair value of MassMutual Tower and Harcourt
House, while most of the remaining investment properties showed a
decrease in fair value of properties in Hong Kong as a result of rental rates
of certain retail business sectors have shown indications of reaching their

peaks.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEELBRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are
committed to principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard

the interests of shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2015 (the "Year"), the
Company had applied the principles and complied with substantial
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) and certain recommended
best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code")
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors (“ED(s)"), two
Non-executive Directors ("NED(s)") and three Independent Non-executive
Directors ("INED(s)"), with INEDs representing more than one-third of the
Board. Changes of the composition of the Board during the Year are set
out in the Directors’ Report of this annual report. Names of each member

of the Board are set out in this corporate governance report.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors’
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the Profiles of Directors of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among

the Directors.
Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the
lead where potential conflict of interests arises. The Board has received
from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the date of this

annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors (Cont'd)

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group's businesses in a

timely manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders
at the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors (save for the
executive chairman and any managing director) shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed
for appointment of Directors (save for the executive chairman and any

managing director).

According to the Private Act for incorporating the Company as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda in 1989, it is stipulated
that the executive chairman and any managing director should not be
required to retire by rotation. However, in order to comply with the Code
Provisions, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the then Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ"), has
voluntarily retired in the annual general meeting held on 19th May, 2015
(the "2015 AGM") and re-elected as a Director by the shareholders.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four
regular Board meetings and nine ad hoc Board meetings were held
during the Year. Advance notices of not less than fourteen days were
served upon each Director for regular Board meetings. All accompanying
Board papers were sent to the Directors in a timely manner and at
least three days before the meetings (or such other period as agreed).
Adequate explanation and information were given to the Directors by the
management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making. Each Director
has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on any Board
resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors” appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Directors’ Training and Support

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other laws/

rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged two training sessions for the
Directors regarding compliance issue of Hong Kong listed companies
and directors’ responsibilities respectively. The trainings were delivered
by lawyers at the expense of the Company. On the other hand, Directors
had provided records of the trainings they received to the Company. The
Board considered the trainings attended by the Directors are sufficient
to discharge their duties. A summary of the trainings attended by the

Directors during the Year is as follows:—

Training Matters 33| =18

EEE W

EERJIRXE

ARBBBEEEHAZERT NI ABTERE -
BREBEEGTER R LR RIARE AR &P
SHRRAERBE 2 ANBRTETSES-

RAFE RARBR/EFRHTMAEIN - AT D5
ERBEBLTARARHMERESEEME %FH
HEMEEER BRBARAXN -S—HHE &
FERAARARARHEBIICE - EEGRR/EEM
SHEZBNIENBREFRTHEBRE - EENAFE
N2 R BIIREBWT : —

Business/
Economic/
Accounting/ Strategic
Corporate Tax/Finance Management
Governance Regulatory i/ mERE
Name of Directors EEpg TEER EERE B/ B RBER
Executive Directors HTES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan* PREFREZTT* a&b a&b - -
(CFO) (7TEA#3)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan* PREA R Tt a a - -
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MHFT & a&b a&b a&b b
Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan* EBALLTY - - - =
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai® ZINS 12 S A2 b b - -
(Chairman) (£/E)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai S 3o ag&b a&b - -
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai BREIE LA a&b a&b a&b b
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EEYLL a&b a&b = b
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BRELEE a&b a&b a&b a
Notes:— P& -
Training Method = p///Ji' =
a:  attending training session/seminar/conference a: BHIEj Hn?ﬁi/ﬁﬂ‘]tﬁ/’\%
b:  self-reading b: BfTBE
* Appointed as CEO on 1st November, 2015. * RZTE—AF+—A—BEZERITHER
* Appointed as ED on 27th July, 2015. * R-ZE-—RF+ A tt+HAEZERWMITES-
+ Resigned as ED on 27th April, 2015. * RZTE—AFMOA -+t HEEHNTES-
a Resigned as CEO and re-designated from ED to NED on 1st November, % RZTE—hF+— A — BB ETRER LhHH
2015. TERAERIFNTES

—E-EFEEH  FADEEE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the Code. Details of the respective committee’s terms
of reference are available at the Company's and the Stock Exchange's
websites. All the INEDs of the Company, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms.
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board
Committees with Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping acts as chairman of the Nomination Committee. The members
of Audit Committee possess appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise, which is higher

than the Listing Rules' requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, internal control and risk management. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the
presence of the representative(s) of the Group's internal audit department
(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion
on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior
management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:—

M

@)

3

4

€)

6

)

®

©

reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2014 and for the six months ended 30th June, 2015
respectively before recommending them to the Board for approval,
with the presence of the Company's external auditors (the

“Independent Auditors”) in the meeting reviewing final results;

reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during
2014, presented its findings and made recommendations for

consideration by the Board;

carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting

function, and their training programmes and budget;

discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters; fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

(18)

reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

related matters;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal

Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2016;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and monitored the progress of compliance of the Code;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees;

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for the Directors and senior executives; and

discussed the necessity of establishment of risk committee;
recommended the Board to engage independent professional
consultant to review enterprise risk management framework and

related policies and procedures.

In March 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results

and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (ii) the

Company's compliance with the Code during the Year and disclosure

in the corporate governance report; and (iii) the sufficiency of training

and continuous professional development of the Directors and senior

executives for the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors, the
engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical
rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent
Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to
scrutiny by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services from
Independent Auditors was established. The Audit Committee considers
whether there is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company
from that work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether
there is adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the
perception of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services
envisaged to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related
fee levels individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In
addition, a policy restricting the employment of employees or former
employees of Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial

positions with the Group has also been in place.

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to (i) annual review of continuing connected
transaction at a fee of HK$83,000; and (ii) three projects in relation to
disposal of subsidiary(ies) each at a fee of HK$600,000, HK$450,000
and HK$400,000 respectively. The audit fees of the Independent Auditors
for auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 was HK$2,429,000. The relevant
engagement letters had been reviewed and approved by the Audit

Committee.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the

nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible to review regularly and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of individual
EDs and senior executives as well as the remuneration of NEDs. It would
consult the Chairman and the CEO on the remuneration proposals

whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration
to attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high
calibre to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the
Company's business and development.

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year.

Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(1) assessed the performance of EDs, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the EDs' and senior executives' remuneration packages
for the Year;

(2) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees;

(3) recommended to the Board the remuneration package of the new
ED;

(4) recommended to the Board the remuneration package and the

terms of service agreement of the new CEO;

(5) recommended to the Board the remuneration package of the

Chairman after his re-designation from ED to NED; and

(6) recommended to the Board to fix the Director's fee of a NED for the

Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

In January 2016, the Remuneration Committee made recommendation
to the Board and the Board has approved the adjustment of monthly
salary of Ms. Chan, Lok-wan and Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai to HK$35,000 and
HK$168,500 respectively for the year ending 31st December, 2016 with
reference to their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group as

well as the prevailing market condition.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration
package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking
their reward with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
In determining guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to

remuneration surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
condition as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket

expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties.
Nomination Committee
Role and Function

The Nomination Committee is mandated to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge,
professional experience, cultural and educational background, gender
and age of the Board members and assessment on the independence
of the INEDs) of the Board at least annually as well as to select suitable
and qualified individuals to become Board members and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and on succession planning for the

Directors from time to time.
Meetings

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(

) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders" approval;

(3) identified suitable individual qualified to become ED and
recommended to the Board on the appointment of an ED based on
the nomination procedures, process and criteria and board diversity

policy stated below;

(4) recommended to the Board on the appointment of the CEO; and

(5) recommended to the Board on the re-designation of ED to NED.

After the Year end, the Nomination Committee made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2016 AGM"). It
also assessed the independence of INEDs, including those served more

than 9 years who are subject to re-election at the 2016 AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. A Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) has been adopted since September 2013. Elements of
the Board Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors.
The said elements have substantially been included in the current Board

composition.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,
as well as business development and requirements of the Company. In
evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers the character and integrity; skills and expertise;
professional and educational background; potential time commitment
for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and the elements
of the Board Diversity Policy etc. The Nomination Committee makes
recommendation to the Board to appoint the appropriate person among
the candidates nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s) shall be
appointed by the Board in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company

and the Listing Rules.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Special Committee had been established since 24th May, 2012,
comprising all the INEDs as members with written terms of reference
in place. It is empowered to handle all matters from the Company's
perspective arising out of the prosecution against Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung by the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic

of China ("“Macau") relating to the acquisition of a piece of land in Macau.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Investment Committee had been established since 15th April, 2014,
comprising Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (before 1st November, 2015) and Ms.
Chan, Sze-wan (on or after 1st November, 2015) as chairman, Mr. Lam,
Kwong-wai as Chief Investment Officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr.
Ma, Tsz-chun as members with written terms of reference in place. It is
empowered to manage the investment business of the Group (other than
real estate investment) (the “Investment”) and to make recommendations
and provide advice to the Board in relation to Investment or potential

Investment.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:—

EEHETE

BEFENEBZHFLEHRIIMT : —

Attendance Record of Directors E3 17 i1

No. of meetings attended/held in 2015 (Percentage of attendance in total) R =B - FE HiF /BT EHHA (L EREE)

Regular Ad hoc Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Special Investment Annual Special
Board Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting" Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting®
ENESE  HBRESE ENZBE #HZEE ReZEE  KRZEE  R4ZEg RRAF BRER%5
Name of Directors f 4.3 g3 6 g3 g5 g3 EE &3 A& Age
Executive Directors $17ES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan* CE e 4/4 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11 11 il
(CFO) (fiB5#%) (100%) (100%) TR TR TiER TR (100%) (100%) (100%)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan* LET b 22 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(1009%) (1009%) TER FER oyl TER TER TER FER
M. Lam, Kiwong-wai MR L 4/4 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 77 il 11
(100%) (100%) TR TR TiEA TR (100%) (100%) (100%)
Ms. Lui Laikwan* BEELL i1 0/ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent
(100%) (0%) iR MR TR TR MEH TR R
Non-executive Directors 35117 &%
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai’ Bl eyt 4/4 5/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 6/6 1 Absent
(Chairman) (£F) (1000%) (55.56%) TER TER TER TER (1000%) (100%) 33
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai AEERL 4/4 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A il 1N
(100%) (1009%) TR TR TiER TER TR (1009%) (100%)
Independent Non-executive Directors B F#7ES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai REELE 4/4 9/9 4/4 4/4 3/3 0/0 /i 1/1 il
(100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (0%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
s, Phills Loh, Lai-ping EEYLL 4/4 9/9 4/4 3/4 303 0/0 N/A 1/ 1/1
(100%) (100%) (100%) (75%) (100%) (0%) TER (100%) (100%)
M. Ma, Tsz-chun BEELE 4/4 9/9 4/4 4/4 33 0/0 /i N N
(100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (0%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Notes:— BiaE: —
* Appointed as CEO on 1st November, 2015. * RZTE—AF+—A—BEZERITHER
* Appointed as ED on 27th July, 2015. # RZE—AF+tA-Z++RABZERNTES -
* Resigned as ED on 27th April, 2015. * RZE-—AFENA-TtHBERTES-

= Resigned as CEO and re-designated from ED to NED on 1st November,
2015.

To avoid conflict of interests, some of the Directors were absent at
certain ad hoc Board meetings that they were required to abstain from
voting.

@ Held on 23rd January, 2015.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company,
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ERB|EE
mERPZEESH (8
ARRNMERHN—EEREBHTBESZH A

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
control in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The senior management is responsible for implementation of
such system of internal control. Internal Audit Department is responsible
for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, and reporting their findings and advice to the

Audit Committee.

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board are satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of internal

control of the Group and concluded that:—

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) aframework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were efficient

and adequate;

(4) significant risks that may influence the Group had been identified,
evaluated and managed through the ongoing monitoring process;

and

(5) material transactions were executed with the management's

authorisation.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (contd)

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:—

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

(2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee’s
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted six internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the works done by

the Internal Audit Department.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairman of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and
answer questions from shareholders at general meetings. The Chairman,
Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended
the 2015 AGM to answer questions from shareholders. Members of
the independent board committee were available at the special general
meeting held on 23rd January, 2015 approving connected transactions to

address shareholders’ queries.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Cont'd)

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put
forward to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are

available at the Company's website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate

the Group's information.

A corporate communications manual has been in place, which provides
guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information to
investors, analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the
Company's behalf, and outlines the responsibility for communication with

various stakeholder groups.

A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate
governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit
a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the
Company Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM") and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda

at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the "Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition
must contain the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written
Requisition must be deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda
at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda not less
than six weeks before the general meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the

general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company's expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual
Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.

DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as both the Chairman and
the CEO until 31st October, 2015. The Board considered that this
structure would not impair the balance of power and authority of the
Board. Following the resignation of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai as the CEO on
1st November, 2015, Ms. Chan, Sze-wan was appointed as the CEO.
The roles of the Chairman and the CEO have been separated since 1st
November, 2015 and their respective roles and responsibilities were set

out in writing.
Directors’ Insurance

The insurance policy had not been renewed upon its expiry in August
2012 due to the substantial increase in premium. During the Year, the
Company had obtained competitive premium quotations. Insurance policy

has been re-arranged in January 2016.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2015 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment
and development, brokerage, securities investment, money lending and

cosmetics distribution and trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on
the Group's future business development are contained in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 9 to 26 of this annual report. Description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 26. Furthermore, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note
5 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year are
contained in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 18 and 19 and in Note
52 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the Year using financial key performance indicators
is provided in the Financial Operation Review on pages 27 to 43 of this
annual report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, the Corporate
Governance Report and this directors’ report on pages 9 to 26, pages 44

to 61 and pages 62 to 80 of this annual report respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31st December, 2015 are set out in Notes 49 and 50 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 83 and 84.

The Board had declared and/or paid the following interim dividends
during the Year:—

1. declared and paid an interim dividend of HK30 cents per share
(payment date: 14th September, 2015) (2014: HK30 cents per

share);

2. declared and paid special interim dividend(s) of (i) HK$2.6 per
share (payment date: 15th July, 2015) and (i) HK$1.2 per share
(payment date: 14th September, 2015) (2014: HK$2.55 per
share);

3. declared a conditional special interim dividend of HK$2 per share
(payment date: 20th January, 2016); and

4. paid a special interim dividend of HK$4 per share (payment date:
13th January, 2015).

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1
cent per share (2014: HK1 cent per share) for the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on pages 241 and 242.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties of the Group as at 31st December,
2015 are set out on pages 243 to 248.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out

in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group acquired a leasehold property in Mainland
China for a total consideration of approximately HK$12,128,000 (2014:
HK$29,499,000). Investment properties (including those presented under
assets classified as held for sale) with an aggregate carrying amounts
of approximately HK$22,065,912,000 (2014: HK$68,434,000) were
disposed of during the Year.

Details of the above and other movements in investment properties
during the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

pages 88 to 91.

As at 31st December, 2015, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted to approximately HK$5,871,069,000
(2014: HK$2,963,515,000).

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of bank loans and other loans repayable within one year or on
demand and long-term secured bank loans and other loans are shown in

Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest capitalised during the Year by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$68,255,000 (2014: HK$142,287,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REWR

RAFERN REBEREREEA-EE
¥ @mREXNHE12,128,0008 L (ZF —MF:
29,499,000/ 7T.) oZKE@EAKEF‘*Wﬁ%%@ﬁEETE
#922,065,912,000/8 7T ( —Z — V04 : 68,434,000/
To) ZIREME ( a%%%%%ﬁuﬁwz%?ﬂ”ﬁﬁ%Zéf
EZIREME) -

ERREMBEDERRFEANZ BB FEHLE
B BmRME21 -

R

ARABZBARAKFERZEEIBEREREGRE TTE
R MIFEZ8 ©

&

AEBEZHFBERAFEAZEHBERANESBESR
91E -

RZE—RF+ZA=+—0 REERE—IN—
FREE (B ZREMtE AQa ] #S
R 2 40 A5,871,069,000/8 7T (=& — I F:
2,963,515,0005# 7T ) °

SEEERBRERNLZFE

AR—FARRBANEEZRTERAREMERZ
HBERAEMNERHRITERREMER 2 FHIEH

RirE I HRE W E36 -

NEBERAFEREIFTE AN 2 FE 4 A68,255,000
BT (T — U451 142,287,000 7T) °

BrBEERE

ARBNAREFMAL
BEGEBREIERRE-

BE HLEIEEAELQT
z

RAFER  ARRREEAMBARMERE  h
ERBEAARB ZERMETES

ZEDEE R ZAEY

ZLEmE



CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$591,000 (2014: HK$1,113,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total revenue for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 25% and 41% of the

Group's total purchases for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in

any of the Group's five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report

are.—

Executive Directors:
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on st November, 2015)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan (appointed on 27th July, 2015)
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan (resigned on 27th April, 2015)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
(re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive Director and
resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 1st November, 2015)

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr.
Ma, Tsz-chun will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting pursuant to Bye-laws 94 and 111 of the Bye-laws of the

Company and all being eligible will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31st December, 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company as recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the "SFO") or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Appendix 10 of Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the

“Listing Rules") were as follows:—

EENRBRSTHRAERAELQTRE
BEEzESER

RZZ—HF+ZA=+—HB EFRERTHA
BRARB 2R HERNDRESFTHRE 2R
FoRR  BARBIRBEBEPESTIEZHFLBAE
1&&B1 (17 %&%Eumn%ynMﬁﬁZ§£ﬁ%
HARBEBEEMERSMBER AR ([BAAT])F
EWRAN (T EMRAN DM +FrEl 2 (EmETA
BERETIEFRGNZETH) MERDE R
Fran T -

Percentage of

Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Shares Held Capacity Capital
EEpA RO EE 54 | ERTREABESL
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (“Mr. MW Lau") 1,430,700,768 & Beneficiary of trust 74.99%
FSERE ([2RELE]D) FrEX@mA
Note: Bt 5%
* These shares were indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which M.~ * SR —HRIEEEMEEREEG ZIKELRE

MW Lau was one of the eligible beneficiaries of that trust.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31st
December, 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31st December, 2015.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2015, so far as are known to any Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:—

Name of Substantial Number of
Shareholders Shares Held
TERRER iR &R
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,430,700,768 A

("Mr. Joseph Lau")
Bl A ([218 LA

Alto Trust Limited

DIRECTORS' REPORT EZE& &=

FTERRRAEAQF 2ESFER

BEENRBTBRAEMAZ R-_T—RHF+=
RA=+—B ARAREESLREEHEI3604E
Bl zELMAEAeRR S TG AR BAEXHE
BB SRR RER RN AR B BITRAS0 A L
BZ AT (BEEHABZITRABRIN DT -

Percentage of
Issued Share

Capacity Capital
54 | ERTREIBIE

Founder, beneficiary of trust and 74.99%

interest of children under 18
EREZBIA - REAR
Rm18EH T2 2 e

1,430,700,768 @ Trustee and interest in controlled 74.99%

corporation

ERARRZER AR 2 ER

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 W Beneficiary of a trust and interest 74.99%
in controlled corporation
—HEFEZEXHAR
REES A E 2 =

Global King (PTC) Ltd. 1,199,715,948 w Trustee 62.89%
FFEA

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments 230,984,820 W Beneficial owner 12.10%
Limited BEm#EA A

Notes: Bt 5

A

These shares were indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr.
Joseph Lau was the founder. Mr. Joseph Lau and his certain other family
members were eligible beneficiaries of that trust.

Alto Trust Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust held the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was regarded as
interested in the same parcel of shares held by Solar Bright Ltd.. Solar
Bright Ltd. held the entire issued share capital of Global King (PTC)
Ltd. and all issued units in a unit trust of which Global King (PTC)
Ltd. was the trustee and therefore was regarded as interested in the
same parcel of shares held by Global King (PTC) Ltd. as trustee of the
unit trust. Solar Bright Ltd. also held the entire issued share capital of
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and therefore was also
regarded as interested in the same parcel of shares held by Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited. As such, the 1,430,700,768
shares of the Company in which Solar Bright Ltd. was deemed to be
interested represented the aggregate of the 1,199,715,948 shares and
230,984,820 shares of the Company held by Global King (PTC) Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited respectively, which was
referred to in the interests of Mr. MW Lau as disclosed under “Directors’
and Chief Executives' Interests in the Securities of the Company and
Associated Corporation”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st
December, 2015, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

A REBRMNA-EBIBEEREEES  BIE LS
RZEFEZBISIA - BIZERE R EETHMK
KRB RZIEFTZEEBREEA

# Alto Trust Limited (#E/R —EMIEEFEZEFEA)
FE A Solar Bright Ltd.2 2B BT A » MU 1R
AYEA Solar Bright Ltd.fFrisa 2 R —HERR 5 2 1
% © Solar Bright Ltd.#5 7 Global King (PTC) Ltd.Z
ZEE B ITRXA A K& —IH A Global King (PTC) Ltd.
REFAZEMEEES 2 2B EITHAL
B R B A Global King (PTC) Ltd. (1EAZE
ERESZEREAN)PIRAE 2R —HLRH 2%
# ° Solar Bright Ltd. 75 #5 Joseph Lau Luen Hung
Investments Limited 2 2 &6 8 21T - B4R /&
#i 5 Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited it
58 2 R —#EiR 5 2 # % o F it - Solar Bright Ltd.
WAR R PEB1,430,700,7688 A X A&7 (5 Bl
Global King (PTC) Ltd.Fi$§% 2 1,199,715,948% &
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai had been a non-executive director of
LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (“LT") (a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange). LT was engaged in securities investment
and financing, property investment and property development businesses.
As such, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai was regarded as being interested in such
businesses which competed or were likely to compete with the Group.
Such businesses were managed by separate publicly listed company
with independent management. The board composition of such listed

company is different and separate from the Company.

During the Year, Mr. MW Lau had personal interests in private companies
engaged in property investment business and securities investment
business. As such, he was regarded as being interested in such
businesses, which competed or might compete with the Group. However,
when compared with the dominance and size of operations of the Group,

such competing businesses were considered immaterial.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a substantial shareholder and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, had through certain private companies
wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of York Place, Excelsior
Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also known as Wanchai
Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010 as well as certain floors
and car parking spaces constituted part of the properties known as
Silvercord and the properties known as The ONE from the Group in
2015 (collectively the “Private Properties”). Mr. MW Lau was director(s)
of or deemed to have certain interests in such companies (except for the
companies holding retail shops of York Place) during the Year. There might
be potential leasing competition for existing and prospective tenancies
between the Private Properties and investment properties held by the
Group. In order to manage such potential leasing competition, Mr. Joseph
Lau had provided certain undertakings and the Company had agreed
with the Stock Exchange to implement certain measures for monitoring
the compliance of such undertakings. Details of such undertakings and
monitoring measures were set out in the circulars of the Company dated
18th June, 2010, 23rd September, 2014 and 7th January, 2015. The
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"”) of the Company had
carried out an annual review on the compliance of the said undertakings
and monitoring measures and confirmed that such undertakings and
monitoring measures were duly complied with and considered adequate
monitoring measures were in place to avoid the potential leasing

competition during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (contd)

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are audit committee members of the Company, so that the

interest of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Company's businesses, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s

businesses.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreements disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions” below, there were no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Company's businesses, to which
the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had, whether directly
or indirectly, a material interest, nor there were any other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Company's
businesses between the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries

and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

Q)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 1st September, 2014, Data Dynasty Limited, Super Series
Limited (being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company)
and Chinese Estates, Limited (“CEL") (being a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as vendors and the Company
as vendors' guarantor entered into 4 sets of disposal agreement
with One Midland Limited, Fly High Target Limited and Coast
Field Ltd. (all being companies wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau)
as purchasers (the “First Purchasers”) and Mr. Joseph Lau as
purchasers' guarantor, in relation to, inter alia, the disposal of the
Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries that ultimately held
Moon Ocean Ltd. (former owner of a piece of land in the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China)
and certain floors and car parking spaces constituted part of the
property known as Silvercord, at an aggregated final consideration of
approximately HK$12,532.3 million (the “Moon Ocean Transaction”
and the “Silvercord Transaction” respectively, collectively the “First

Disposal Transactions”).

As the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules for the First Disposal Transactions on an aggregated
basis exceeded 25% but were less than 75%, the First Disposal
Transactions constituted major transactions for the Company;
and as Mr. Joseph Lau, a substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company, was a director and the sole
beneficial owner of the First Purchasers as at the date of the
relevant announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau and the First Purchasers
were connected persons of the Company and the First Disposal
Transactions constituted connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The First Disposal
Transactions were therefore subject to the reporting, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to the Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the

First Disposal Transactions was made on 2nd September, 2014.

The First Disposal Transactions were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting
held on 10th October, 2014. The Moon Ocean Transaction and
the Silvercord Transaction were completed in October 2014 and
January 2015 respectively. Details of the First Disposal Transactions
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 23rd September,
2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

)

On 12th December, 2014, Rich Lucky Limited (being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as vendor and the
Company as vendor's guarantor entered into a disposal agreement
with Market Victory Limited (being a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Joseph Lau) as purchaser (the “Second Purchaser”) and Mr. Joseph
Lau as purchaser's guarantor, in relation to, inter alia, the disposal
of the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary that ultimately
held the property known as The ONE, at a final consideration
of approximately HK$5,020.6 million (the “Second Disposal
Transaction”).

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules for the Second Disposal Transaction as
aggregated with the First Disposal Transactions exceeded 25% but
were less than 75%, the Second Disposal Transaction constituted
a major transaction for the Company; and as Mr. Joseph Lau, a
substantial shareholder and controlling shareholder of the Company,
was the sole director and the sole beneficial owner of the Second
Purchaser as at the date of the relevant announcement, Mr.
Joseph Lau and the Second Purchaser were connected persons
of the Company and the Second Disposal Transaction constituted
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Second Disposal Transaction was therefore
subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders' approval requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules.
An announcement in respect of the Second Disposal Transaction

was made on 12th December, 2014.

The Second Disposal Transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 23rd January, 2015 and was completed in July 2015. Details of
the Second Disposal Transaction were set out in the circular of the

Company dated 7th January, 2015.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

3)

Q)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 21st December, 2015, Conduit Road Development Limited (an
indirect subsidiary owned as to 70% by the Company) accepted
the tender from Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai, a Non-executive Director,
in respect of the purchase of a residential unit together with a car
parking space of 55 Conduit Road (the Group's property held for
sale) at the purchase price of HK$124,118,000. A formal sale and
purchase agreement was made on 29th December, 2015 and

completion shall take place on or before 29th April, 2016.

As the purchaser is a Director of the Company, the purchaser
was therefore a connected person of the Company. Hence, the
transaction contemplated under the acceptance of such tender
constituted a connected transaction of the Company. As one
or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
transaction contemplated under the acceptance of the tender are
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the connected transaction was
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but was
exempted from independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. An announcement in

respect of the said transaction was made on 21st December, 2015.

On 23rd December, 2015, Good Top Limited (being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as vendor and the
Company as vendor's guarantor entered into a disposal agreement
with Best Range Limited (being a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Joseph Lau) as purchaser (the “Third Purchaser”) and Mr. Joseph
Lau as purchaser's guarantor, in relation to, inter alia, the disposal
of the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary that ultimately
held the property known as Windsor House, as well as a club
membership subject to a cap amount of HK$12 billion. Meanwhile,
as part of the arrangement for that transaction, on 23rd December,
2015, China Entertainment and Land Investment Company, Limited
(being a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as vendor
and the Company as vendor's guarantor entered into a disposal
agreement with Magic Square Limited (being a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Joseph Lau) as purchaser (the “Fourth Purchaser”,
together with the Third Purchaser, the “Purchasers”) and Mr. Joseph
Lau as purchaser's guarantor, in relation to, inter alia, the disposal
of the entire issued share capital of Keep Speed Company Limited
(the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary) subject to a cap

amount of HK$10 million (the “Third Disposal Transactions”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

)

(Cont'd)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules for the Third Disposal Transactions as
aggregated with the Silvercord Transaction and the Second
Disposal Transaction exceeded 25% but were less than 750%,
the Third Disposal Transactions constituted major transactions for
the Company; and as Mr. Joseph Lau, a substantial shareholder
and controlling shareholder of the Company, was the director
and the sole beneficial owner of the Purchasers as at the date of
the relevant announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau and the Purchasers
were connected persons of the Company and the Third Disposal
Transactions constituted connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Third Disposal
Transactions were therefore subject to the reporting, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to the Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the

Third Disposal Transactions was made on 23rd December, 2015.

The Third Disposal Transactions were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 2nd February, 2016. Completion shall take place on or before
31st December, 2016. Details of the Third Disposal Transactions
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 15th January,
2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transaction

On 31st October, 2014, CEL entered into a contract for services with Mr.
Joseph Lau regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration services
(including without limitation matters relating to dealing with tenants,
rent collection and taking legal actions, but excluding any services in
relation to the referral of potential tenants and the negotiation with
existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms of lease of properties),
(ii) property management services (including matters relating to the
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repair of properties),
(iii) property administration services (including without limitation
accounting, recruitment, human resources administration works, taxation,
marketing and information technology services), (iv) asset management
and maintenance services (including property, household and other
management and maintenance services in relation to the properties and
assets), (v) rental services (including rental of motor vehicles, car plates,
vessels, car parking spaces, premises and such other rental services), (vi)
advisory and consultancy services (including general advisory, consultancy,
administration, liaison, personnel support services and such other services
ancillary and/or incidental thereto), and (vii) other ordinary services
(including without limitation securities and other financial services) to Mr.
Joseph Lau and/or his associates, commenced on Tst November, 2014
for 3 years (the “"Contract”). The cap of the service charges payable by
Mr. Joseph Lau to CEL for the year ended 31st December, 2015 under
the Contract was set at HK$128,000,000 (the “Cap"”) as disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 31st October, 2014.

Mr. Joseph Lau being a substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company was a connected person of the Company
and hence the Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the expected annual
caps for the transactions contemplated under the Contract exceeded 0.1%
but were expected to be less than 5%, the Contract and the annual caps
were only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions, the INEDs
of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
requirement to carry out an annual review on the continuing connected
transactions, confirmed that the transactions were made in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company (other than household
management and maintenance services under the asset management
and maintenance services, the property administration services, the
rental services and the advisory and consultancy services), on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the Contract governing them
on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole. Having considered the reasons
and benefits in respect of the provision of household management and
maintenance services under the asset management and maintenance
services, the property administration services, the rental services and
the advisory and consultancy services as mentioned in the Company's
announcement dated 31st October, 2014, the INEDs were of the view
that, although the provision of such services contemplated under the
Contract were not in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, the terms of such services were fair and reasonable so far as the
Group were concerned and on normal commercial terms, and were in the

interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that the
subject continuing connected transactions had received the approval of
the Board, were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company,
had been entered into in accordance with the Contract and had not
exceeded the Cap disclosed in the said announcement made on 31st
October, 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this directors’
report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the "Material Related Party Transactions” as
disclosed in Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions”
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the
relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the

Year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:—

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the "ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the “"MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their

respective trustees accordingly.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1st December, 2000. Contributions to
the ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based
on the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff
members are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with
accrued returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining
the retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group's mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December, 2015
amounted to approximately HK$10,576,000 (2014: HK$10,065,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer's contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$794,000 (2014: HK$1,173,000) was
utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year
and the balance available to reduce future contributions amounted to
approximately HK$100,000 (2014: HK$108,000).
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme") was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 14th January, 2009 (the "Adoption Date"). The Share Award Scheme
is a long-term incentive arrangement for the selected employees. The
purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward certain
employees of the Group for their contributions to the Group and to give
long-term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. It also intends to attract suitable professional
recruits to join the Group and to assist in the further development of the

Group.

The Board may from time to time, at its absolute discretion and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of
eligibility of each employee determined by the Board from time to time),
after having taken into account recommendations made by members of
the Group and assessment of individual performance pursuant to internal
appraisal system, select an employee for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a Selected Employee (“Selected Employee”) and determine
the number of shares which may be awarded to such Selected Employee
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Share(s)").
A Selected Employee shall qualify to be allotted and issued the Awarded
Shares after all the qualifying conditions have been fulfilled, unless

otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion.

The issue price for each Awarded Share shall, subject to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, be an amount equal to its nominal value and
shall be paid or satisfied in cash by the relevant member of the Group
engaging the Selected Employee or, if payment by the relevant member
of the Group engaging the Selected Employee is not permitted under
applicable law, any member of the Group, upon the allotment and issue
of the Awarded Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued in response to the
Share Award Scheme and any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 207,775,007, being
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the Adoption Date and
represents approximately 10.89% of the total number of shares in issue
at the date of this directors’ report. No granting of Awarded Shares was

made for the Year.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

The maximum number of Awarded Shares to be granted to each Selected
Employee under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall
not exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of such

grant.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date (i.e. until 13th January,
2019). As at the date of this directors’ report, the remaining life of the
Share Award Scheme is less than 3 years.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23rd December, 2008.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of

the Company’s business were entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

According to the Company's Bye-Laws, each director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act, 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the director's office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to INEDs since July 2014
by issuing a letter to each of the INEDs. With effect from January 2016,
the Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers' liability

insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Award Scheme, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreement for the Year.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam, Kwong-wai

Director

Hong Kong, 15th March, 2016
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 240, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2015, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT B Y #Z HEi R &=

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (contd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31st December, 2015,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: PO5467

Hong Kong, 15th March, 2016

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BEE 2 EE @

ERREBEETIZFABUSELRS M HRRATH
BELRBBEEFREMCERRE - BB ZREFAR
FREM A SRFGEESMERRZERE
REUR (T E mAEF RS ) Z R - FE1F
ZERBFGER ZBAEEERAARRUELEE
NP EINEEHBRREBIAIMEE - UBT
RERRFEEEZREF BXIFEERRFAR
ERROARRERR -ERAE BRI EMA
BETHR ZWEH' BERFEEMEEREEZ
BREE YHAAFBHRRZEBE27 T AELF
flre

igﬁﬁ HRIBHERERME EEMESRERE
/'\/l\A

=z

/%\

TERE- mﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁm/%’ﬁéﬂ%ﬁiﬁ
EAFRE EEER-_Z—HF+-A=1+—
B 2 B %A 0 A K %%l@?% BIEFEZH®
RERBeRE WEEBEBERATEI Z2HEE
kEZ RS-

BEEEHMERAARAR

BB ESEE

REH

HMEBERS  P05467

BB —ET—R"F=ZA+HH



Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Investment income, net
Administrative expenses
Costs of development recognised
in respect of property project in Macau
Other expenses
(Loss) gain on disposals of equipment, net
Gain (loss) on disposals of
investment properties
Fair value changes on investment properties
Finance costs
Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of associates

Profit before tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expenses
Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Fair value changes on available-for-sale
investments

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment related to
foreign operations disposed of
during the year

Share of other comprehensive
expenses of associates

Reclassification adjustment related to

disposal of associates

Other comprehensive expenses for the year
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income

for the year
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEHEBREBRR

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 BZ - E—AF +-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,542,397 2,627,288
(255,521) (422,694)
1,286,876 2,204,594
134,909 95,220
1,140,016 658,156
(344,790) (296,296)
- (6,503)
(317) (122,120)
(1,255) 638
17,679 (6,750)
4,689,224 3,777,138
(316,865) (395,018)
940,944 2,912,368
649,705 187,331
8,196,126 9,008,758
(476,395) (255,859)
7,719,731 8,752,899
(24,971) 21,802
(118,888) (265,250)
(882,250) -
(75,484) (16,873)
(105,054) -
(1,206,647) (260,321)
6,513,084 8,492,578
“E-RFEFHR EASEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HK$)
Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes

B &

20

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
1,727,208 8,744,927
(7.477) 7972
7,719,731 8,752,899
6,520,561 8,484,606
(7.477) 7972
6,513,084 8,492,578
4.051 4,584

RAVBHRRMENGAM BRI —#o -



Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Interests in associates
Advances to associates
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss

Advance to an investee company
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder
Other receivables
Deferred tax assets
Pledged deposits

Current assets

Stock of properties

Available-for-sale investment

Investments held-for-trading

Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Loans receivable

Inventories

Debtors, deposits, other receivables and
prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Time deposits, bank balances and cash
Sales proceeds held by stakeholders

Assets classified as held for sale

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B MR R Bk

At 31st December, 2015 RN =Z —

FREEE
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RS
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REBEE
MELFE
FENRE
FIEREEZIRE
BERBBREARKR
RNPEZEREE
JE U & R
FE
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Ho{h & W AR TR R R AN R IR
FE W38 75 2 5 AR IA M K
QIR EER BN
B EEER N
EHER RITESRERE
RE AR IHE TSR
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Notes

=

21
22
23
24
25
26
27

32
28
28
34
40
29(a)

30
27
31
32

33

34
29(b)

29(a)
29(0)

12

AF+=—A=+—8

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
21,941,263 39,528,923
50,540 1,768,327
322,938 322,938
3,770,476 2,484,767
55,482 1,754,641
743,649 239,233
798,489 379,010
413,579 228,800
14,908 14,908
3,998,358 -
4,280 11,237
24,557 438,994
32,138,519 47171,778
2,595,987 2,329,865
67,625 -
364,244 501,944
10,270,781 4,247,830
- 26

2,533 3,493
3,366,415 644,964
86,175 60,384
3,955 6,511
178,193 429,689
2,849,807 4,719,223
1,891,712 1,867,162
21,677,427 14,811,091
9,239,271 9,442,062
30,916,698 24,253,153
—E-hHEFR EASEEE
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CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals

Dividend payable

Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits and receipts in advance

Tax liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions

Financial guarantee liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Share capital

Properties revaluation reserve

Securities investments reserve

Statutory reserve

Other reserve

Special reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Translation reserve

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity
relating to non-current assets held for sale

Retained profits
— proposed final dividend
— others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  #R & Bt % AR S R &
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35

36
37

12

38
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2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
1,081,746 1,503,076
- 7,630,476
11,181 45,478
2,106,924 934,726
239,906 77813
8,651,773 6,707,935
1,249 27561
- 102
12,092,779 16,927,167
1,857,996 1,759,937
13,950,775 18,687,104
16,965,923 5,566,049
49,104,442 52,737,827
190,762 190,762
98,162 225,216
16,044 41,022
24,028 53,650
(2,407) (2,435)
2,499,685 2,499,685
138,062 138,062
(155,193) 1,026,504
127,054 -
19,076 19,076
37,292,327 373%75,812
40,247,600 41,567,354
77,762 85,239
40,325,362 41,652,593




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %% & B 76 AR 5% 3R &

At 31st December, 2015 R -ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihgz FET FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Borrowings BE 36 5,880,000 9,840,993
Provisions BiE 37 - 1,257
Amounts due to associates KB BN R FRIE 39 1,789,647 58,419
Amounts due to investee companies RABBEXEENRFE 39 27,085 27,085

Amounts due to non-controlling R G FEE IR IR R 1B
shareholders 39 523,768 489,639
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHBEEE 40 558,580 667,841
8,779,080 11,085,234
49,104,442 52,737,827

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on BEEEFER _T—NFZA+HBIERRES

15th March, 2016 and signed on its behalf by: m ITHTINEERREFTGES
Chan, Sze-wan PR 88 Lam, Kwong-wai M B
Director 5% Director EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R&MEHEM TG ETBHREN—2 5D -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERTEREFX

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE =T —AF +=ZA=+—HILFE

At 1st January, 2014

Profit for the year
Fair value changes on available-for-sale investments
- Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive (expenses) income of
associates

Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year
PRC statutory reserve

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Interim dividend for 2014 paid

Final dividend for 2013 paid

Special interim dividend for 2014 paid

Special interim dividend declared in 2014

At 31st December, 2014

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRARAREEAZEEREES
Properties Securities
Share  revaluation investments Statutory
capital reserve reserve reserve
mE &%
B Bk REmE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FET FET
(note (i)
(BizEG))
RZZ—NE—H—H 190,762 225216 19,223 41,760
AEEET - - - -
HERBZATEE
—¥LmEAE - - 21,802 -
BNEBRELECERZSR - - - -
BEMENRY
Hiz2mE (i) s - - ) -
AEERAME (XH) 8% - - 21799 -
FEETE - - - 11,890
EREERRR RS - - - -
ENZZ-MEREHRE - - - -
BENZZ-ZFXHEKE - - - -
ENZZ-MERFATHRE - - - -
RZZE-MEEERERFHEE - - - -
RZZE-ME+=A=1+—H 190,762 225216 41,022 53,650
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERARBEAZRERAES
Amounts
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve held for sale profits Total interests equity
BRERFHE
g% ZHERBEE RAER
Hit ks KRG RER#E & %A ZHE REBEF B FERES BE
HKg'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET TET TET TEL TEL TET TR
(note (ii)) (note (iii))
GEIO) (B 3E iy )
(2,501) 2,499,685 138,062 1,508,690 - 42,682,851 47,103,748 86,017 47,189,765
- - - - - 8,744,927 8,744,927 7972 8,752,899
- - - - - - 21,802 - 21,802
- - - (265,250) - - (265,250) - (265,250)
66 - - (16,936) - - (16,873) - (16,873)
66 - - (282,186) - 8,744,927 8,484,606 7972 8,492,578
- - - - - (11,890) - - -
- - - - - - - (8,750) (8,750)
- - - - - (572,286) (572,286) - (572,286)
- - - - - (953,810) (953,810) - (953,810)
- - - - - (4,864,428) (4,864,428) - (4,864,428)
- - - - - (7,630,476) (7630,476) - (7630,476)
(2,435) 2,499,685 138,062 1,026,504 - 37,394,888 41,567,354 85,239 41,652,593
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

At 1st January, 2015

Profit (loss) for the year
Fair value changes on available-for-sale investments
— Unlisted investments
Reclassification relating to non-current assets held for sale
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment related to foreign operations
disposed of during the year

Share of other comprehensive (expenses) income of
associates

Reclassification adjustment related to disposal of associates

Total comprehensive (expenses) income for the year
PRC statutory reserve

Release of reserve upon disposals of subsidiaries
Interim dividend for 2015 paid

Final dividend for 2014 paid

Special interim dividends for 2015 paid

R-ZE—H%—H—H

REEEM (FR)
BEREZDTEE
—FLTRE
RBEHEZFRDEEEN A
BONRBMELZELEZR
RAEERERHERNER 2
B EHE
BEmanREneE () E
ERUERERRZENRHE
REERE (M) ka2
REETE B
REERBRRARED 2 @R
ENZZ-RFTHRS
ENZZ-EERERS
EN—Z-RERHNTHRS

At 31st December, 2015 R-B-RF+ZA=+-H
Notes:
(i)  The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of

(i)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

China (“PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

The movement of other reserve for the year represented the release

of the negative reserve held by an associate of the Group upon the
disposals of the relevant properties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERARBAZREREAES

Properties Securities
Share  revaluation investments Statutory
capital reserve reserve reserve
LAEN EfbfE RERE EE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR THEL TET
(note (i)
GEION
190,762 225,216 41,022 53,650
- - (24,971) -
- (127,054) - -
- - (1 -
- (127,054) (24,978) -
- - - 2,587
- = = (32,209)
190,762 98,162 16,044 24,028

B &L :

®

(ii)

AEEREERBETEARKNE ([HE])
AEREBES - ARFEEESEHNER DS
o B Y B X BOAE B R $R AR MO BR B 1R 8 A - P
SRENMSEREE W B RRPTES 2 BRTLREF
Z10% FRoFEB BT BB A REMERZ
500 * AIERE N ERMBEFEER (10F) &
TR WREIBE AL BT M IA L R B
BRARZENR-

REFZEMHEEESH DEAEEN—MEZEQ
ARHEEMMERBROAFAEZAERE-



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERARBEAZRERAES
Amounts
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve held for sale profits Total interests equity
BRERFHE
N ZHERBEE RARER
2ttt KRG RER#E & %A ZHHE REBEF #E FERES BE
HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET TER THET TR TR TR
(note (ii)) (note (iii))
(PR EE i) (GEIO))
(2,435) 2,499,685 138,062 1,026,504 = 37,394,888 41,567,354 85,239 41,652,593
- - - - - 1,727,208 1,727,208 (7,4717) 1719,731
- - - - - - (24,971) - (24,971)
= = = = 127,054 - - - -
= = = (118,888) = = (118,888) = (118,888)
- - - (882,250) - - (882,250) - (882,250)
28 = = (75,505) = = (75,484) = (75,484)
- - - (105,054) - - (105,054) - (105,054)
28 - - (1,181,697) 127,054 7,727,208 6,520,561 (1.477) 6,513,084
- - - - - (2,587) - = =
- - - - - 32,209 - - -
- - - - - (572.286) (572,286) - (572,286)
= = = = = (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
= = = = = (1.248,953) (1,248,953) = (1.248,953)
(2,407) 2,499,685 138,062 (155,193) 127,054 37,311,403 40,247,600 11762 40,325,362

REE (AR FHEZ RS EENE b2
T Y g R R R e R AE A AN HE 2 2 SRR ©

(i)  Amounts represented “Amounts recognised in other comprehensive  (iii)
income and accumulated in equity relating to non-current assets held
for sale”.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& ISR EM TR AE M IEREH— 5 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERERX

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HZ T —RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

Operating activities R

Profit before tax B¢ Bl

Adjustments for: THNEIEZ AR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BB RRETE
Fair value changes on financial guarantees MBERZ A TTEES
Interest expenses MEFX
Interest income B A

EAEEETRERSEA

Dividends income from listed and

unlisted investments

Impairment losses (reversed) recognised BIEWE S5 FIE (BE) ERZ
in respect of trade receivables BIEEE
Impairment loss for HFEREZREEE
an available-for-sale investment
Unrealised gain arising on change in fair value FIFEBECREC AT EE
of investments held-for-trading EEZ RERWE
Unrealised (gain) loss arising on changes BEHFCATEHEHEEZ
in fair value of bonds 215 (k) B8

HEREME 2 (RE) BR

(Gain) loss on disposals of

investment properties

Loss (gain) on disposals of &R E 2 B
equipment, net (Ma) #58

Share of results of associates BhMERRER

Fair value changes on investment properties REMEZ N TFEES

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net S B AR 2 W F 58

Underprovision for rental guarantee HeBEREHTRE

Exchange gain, net b 5 W e 5 5

Costs of development recognised in respect of MRFIMEIBE 2
property project in Macau BRERKAR

hE s FE U R IR 2 R E R

Reversal of impairment in respect of

other receivable

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Notes

ot

41

2015
HK$'000
FHERT
8,196,126
55,832
58
289,989
(765,347)
(66,642)
(307)
3,899
(24,159)
(309,369)
(17,679)
1,255
(649,705)
(4,689,224)
(941,010)

8
(18,189)

(4.386)

2014
HK$'000
FHET
9,008,758
23,381
65
380,329
(738,243)
(459,101)
104
12,983
(44,009)
446,541
6,750
(638)
(187,331)
(3,777,138)
(2,917,579)
5,146

(28,652)

6,503




Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in stock of properties

Decrease in loans receivable

Increase in inventories

Decrease in debtors, deposits, other receivables

and prepayments
Decrease in investments held-for-trading

(Increase) decrease in financial assets designated

as at fair value through profit or loss
(Increase) decrease in securities trading
receivables and deposits

Increase in sales proceeds held by stakeholders

Decrease in creditors and accruals

(Decrease) increase in securities trading and
margin payable

Increase in deposits and receipts in advance

Decrease in provisions

Cash (used in) generated from
operating activities
Income tax paid, net

Net cash (used in) generated from
operating activities

Investing activities
Dividends received from listed and
unlisted investments
Dividends received from associates
Interest received
Payments for investment properties
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Payments for stock of properties
Proceeds on disposals of
investment properties, net
Proceeds on disposals of equipment
Proceed from withdrawal of
an available-for-sale investment
Deposit received on disposal of a subsidiary
Purchases of available-for-sale investments
Further contribution to an available-for-sale
investment
Net cash inflow on disposals of subsidiaries
Advances to associates
Repayments from associates
Advances from associates
Advance to an investee company
Advances from investee companies
Decrease in pledged deposits

Net cash generated from
investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEeRE&REXR
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

BEESEBRN 2 KERERE

B S
I M B Rl
FEEM

e BRIE - 122 - HbEUIRIA K
AN IR D
FIFEEZRERD
EERBBEEUARBRAFEZ
ERVEE (38hn) R

JE W8 77 22 5 BR IR R IF K

(S hn) A

RE AT 35 & P 1S SR N
JE AT BRIA I B 5t SRR A
ENEFR S HERREES

(i) 88 0
S R IR
B

(AR XREREEBK A

B PEHIFER

(AR)REBEXEB 2 REFHE

REXK
LRI ELETRE 22 HBE

=N AR )

2 A B

X EREMEFIA
BEME BFER&HE
XMEFEKIER
HEREMEMSHIRFH

& R B ATIS TRIR
HEfFERERSREA

BEREE-—HHBERARZES
BEFERE
HEEREFRE— IR

HEMBARZRERAFHE
QRN I WNC ]

B R ElE

QL= NCIE- T 8

BN —ERHZRERE ZHIA
AESRERBRRZ A

HIRER 2D

REREXB 2R FH

2015 2014
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FAET
1,061,150 1,737,869

41,364 224,052

- 3

(a65) (156)

54,334 246,442

161,859 436,881

(6,133,061) 7,044,943

(25,791) 5719

(24,550) (320,982)

(35,083) (264,613)

(34,297) 30,342

285,044 72,065

(22,577) (37,898)

(4,671,073) 9,174,667

(151,285) (368,836)

(4,828,358) 8,805,831

66,642 69,251

687 31,281

438,224 895,597

(171,033) (879,666)

(49,158) (240,860)

(205,915) (278,198)

89,958 65311

599 2,327

- 14,886

1,250,000 -

(648,214) (137,801)

(313,812) (7771)

41 3,540,455 1,460,046
(847,664) (52,693)

19,775 24,704

1,835,229 -

(184,779) (228,800)

- 14,250

603,937 331,897

5,424,931 1,083,761

—F-nEER

4+
it

rexem 93



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEeRE&FREXR
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHx FHT
Financing activities EE=E 3
Dividends paid [RENEEESN (6,641,966) (2,979,387)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders EINER & Pl ds) - (8,750)
Interest paid [=ENFAESA (412,514) (578,474)
New bank loans and other loans raised BRI ER N EMER 18,274,763 7,370,923
Repayments of bank loans and other loans EEEBTERREMER (13,680,140) (12,910,341)
Advances from non-controlling shareholders A FE5 AR AR SR 28 3R 2 FRIE 17,209 103,523
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEEB 2R FE (2.442,648) (9,002,506)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RePRESEEER
cash equivalents O 2) & inE5E (1,846,075) 887,086
Cash and cash equivalents at 1stJanuary HR—B—HAZHER
Re%EEA 4,742,903 3,881,250
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exggove (34,787) (25,433)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=-—A=+—-H2
31st December ReRASEHEER 2,862,041 4,742,903
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRREESEBBRAEARIM
cash equivalents
Time deposits, bank balances and cash FHFER - BITEGBIIRS 2,849,807 4,719,223
Bank balances and cash included BEENAFIELEZEEZ
in assets classified as held for sale RITHEBR IR S 12 12,234 23,680
2,862,041 4,742,903

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated 474 BfFMAM T VR A HBHRENH —LLH -

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M RRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 BZ - E—AF +-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual
report. Details of the substantial shareholders of the Company are
disclosed in “Substantial Shareholders' Interests in the Securities of

the Company” section in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all amounts are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise
indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set
out in Notes 49 and 50 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2015 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2014

except as described below.

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the

following amendments to existing HKFRSs (“Amendments”)

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA"), which are effective for current financial year of the

Group. The Amendments adopted by the Group in the consolidated

financial statements are set out below:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle

HKAS 19 (2011)

(Amendments)

Defined Benefits Plans: Employee

Contributions

1.

—REH

ARARR—HRBREIMR L2 ZHRAR
RE HEORBBBARZAAR AR (B
R LT ARRZEMMERREELE
WER U BN AER [ ARER] AR
AEERRZHABERAF R EFTERES
PIEERRRARAB 2EF ] A

RgaMBmR BT ([EBT]) 25 BTk
RARFEEMBAR ([KNEE])2EEE
¥ BERZAHBN AEREHNBRAAE
REEZ TR (TET) -

ARRB 2 TBEBRIREEB MEXZWE
NARBERR 2 TR EBD IR E49 %
50 °

R REBITBRYH
BREER ([BEMBHREE
AN RRE

BRTaEN 22 —T—HF+-_A=1+—H
LEFEZGAVBRRMER G BRE
REAEEBE_T-HNFE+-_A=+—H
HFEZEEMBHREMEREE -

RAFE AEFBCEREATIATESS
fhrg ([BEGEAE])BALTRAEE
RITMREFEERMZHRAEEEV B RS AE
Al ZERT ([1E8FT]) - REBER A LR A B %W
RFTRMZAERTEIINT -

U BRERER 2010F 22012F BHBES
(BET ) BRI BEREEEL
EENE
ERRBmEEL 2011EE2013FEBHER
CHES BB EREER
FENE

EBEIEAR I
(2011%) ({E3T%)

RERMHE R

s

—F-REEHR  FA

[
i
]

"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AND
DISCLOSURES (contd)

The application of the Amendments had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods are prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment has been required.

In addition, the Group has adopted the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules") relating to the disclosure of financial information with
reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
during the current financial year. The main impact to the financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosure of certain

information in the financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs and
amendments to existing HKFRSs (“new and revised HKFRSs") that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle!

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) (Amendments)

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative'

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation'

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendments)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AND
DISCLOSURES (contd)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2016

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1st January, 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2018

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The final
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in September 2014. It replaces
the guidance in HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” that relates to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss.
The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Investments in equity instruments (that are not held for trading) are
measured at fair values with an irrevocable election at inception to
present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income not
recycling. There is now a new expected credit losses model that
replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in HKAS 39.
For financial liabilities, there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit
risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for
hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness
tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the "hedged ratio” to be the
same as the one management actually uses for risk management

purposes.

2.

FER#HT RIS T BT
EHER ([BFEBMBREE
Al ) R E =

! RZB-RE-A-BRZEABRZFE
HiM AR

2 R-E-—RF-—A—BRZ2RFEARZED
FERBUBRE LW B RIER

: RZB-NF-A—BRZERBZFE
HAR A

‘ HWEBEE RSz BBz FERRE
pis

ERMBREENESR-EMITA

EEMBREENFORMASREERSH
BEZNE FERER -BRMBRSER
BORZBBIMAR —FE—NFN AR - %
HAMATESAEAFEIN [T A
REFE|PEHERIAZDERFTE 2T
Sl-BBPBMEENESERBEMLRES
AERAN YRIYSREE=-"MBEEFED
BBERET BEEMEEWEARBRAF
BEMEBEREARBRAFEINER - DELER
FERZEBEANREREEZANEESR
EREME -WRATARE GEEEER) AR
FEFE RVSREL AT RHE 2R EBQ
FEEH2I/TEKRZ A2 EKE D
BEHEEBERAERRTE G ERIE39
SARCEERRBERN - Y EHESRAE
MO BERFTEFEHER  HERERBBIERMN
R A FHESIRZ BE AR E M 2w RS
RAFEERRES - FEM K RE LR E9
SRR T ER AR ES VR T B R ¥
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AND
DISCLOSURES (contd)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from
the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or

joint venture.
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgments and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In September
2015, the HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a
one-year deferral of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to
1st January, 2018.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 484 Bt 3R &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AND
DISCLOSURES (contd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements.

The amendments clarify:
. the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

. that specific line items in the statement of comprehensive
income and the statement of financial position may be

disaggregated;

. that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they

present the notes to financial statements; and

. that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and
classified between those items that will or will not be

subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply
when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of

financial position and the statement of comprehensive income.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the new and revised HKFRSs but
are not yet in a position to determine whether the new and revised
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how the Group's results of
operations and financial position are prepared and presented. The
new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to

how the results and financial position are prepared and presented.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_—Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, these consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS

36 "“Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised into Level

1, 2 or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(a) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has
power over the investee; (ii) is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(i) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Total comprehensive income and expense of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group's accounting policies.
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is, reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost that is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(b)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs")
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.
On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of

goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(c)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not

related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(d)

(e)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties and investment properties

under construction and development

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction and development for such purposes and
land held for a currently undetermined future use. On initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise. However, if the fair values of
investment properties under construction and development
are not reliably determinable but expect the fair values of the
properties to be reliably determinable when construction/
development is completed, it shall measure that investment
properties under construction and development at cost, less
any impairment loss, until either its fair value become reliably
determinable or construction/development is completed

(whichever is earlier).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(e)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Investment properties and investment properties

under construction and development (Cont'd)

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property

is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be
occupied by the owner. Gain or loss arising from change in
fair value of the investment property upon the transfer is

included in profit or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties at fair value
when it is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accounted for as a revaluation increase or
decrease in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets,
the relevant revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land classified as finance leases (other than
properties under development) are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and leasehold land mainly comprise hotels and

office premises.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment (other than properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type Basis

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the
leases

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired period

of the lease and 40 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

()

(h)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties and
properties under development, which are held-for-trading, is

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units.
Net realisable value is estimated by the management of
the Group based on prevailing market conditions, which
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of properties under development held for sale
includes identified costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing costs capitalised,
material and supplies, wages, other direct expenses and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is estimated by the management of the Group taking into
account the expected price that can ultimately be achieved
based on prevailing market conditions, the anticipated costs

of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale and properties under development
held for sale is recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down or provision arising from an increase in net
realisable value is recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetic products and food and beverages held for sale in
hotel operation, which are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are
assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

0]

1)

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any
identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

such category of financial assets are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial asset is either held-for-trading or
it is designated by the management of the Group as such at

inception.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near future; or

(i) on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

(i) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

(i)  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

(i)  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

(iiiy it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in
investment income/expenses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including advances to associates/
an investee company/a non-controlling shareholder, loans
receivable, debtors, deposits and other receivables, securities
trading receivables and deposits, pledged deposits, time
deposits, bank balances and cash and sales proceeds held
by stakeholders) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as

any of the other categories under HKAS 39.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the securities investments reserve, when the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
securities investments reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

However, interest calculated using the effective interest

method is recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting

period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.
For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(i)  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

(i) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(iv) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial

asset's original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When available-for-sale financial assets are considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

in the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of securities

investments reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out

below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 8 sR &R M &

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Effective interest method (Cont'd)

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

other than financial liabilities classified as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit

or loss when the financial liability is either held-for-trading or it

is designated as such on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held-for-trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near future; or

(i) on initial recognition, it is part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

(i) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held-for-

trading may be designated as at fair value through profit or

loss upon initial recognition if:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on

remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or

loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on
the financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and accruals,
securities trading and margin payable, deposits received, bank
and other borrowings, amounts due to associates/investee
companies/non-controlling shareholders) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

1)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from properties developed for sale is recognised
upon completion of sales agreement and by reference to
the timing of the execution of deed of legal assignment or

delivery of property to the purchaser, whichever is earlier.

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the
execution of a binding sales agreement. Payments received
from the purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as
deposits received on sales of properties and are grouped

under current liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Revenue from hotel room rental, food and beverages sales
and other ancillary services is recognised when the relevant

services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Sale of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts and the profit and loss on trade in securities and
futures contracts are recognised on the transaction dates

when the relevant contract notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with
terms of respective agreements over the relevant period in

which the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetic products is recognised when

goods are delivered and titles have been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

(m)

(m)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

3. FESHHREEEw

)

(m)

(m)

BiE (48)

WARHRBRR —HHEERBW  ME
BIEXNHEEHMRAEERTIAAE
ZFH BRBEERRAEERBER N
EREEie

HE

REHGFRESHERA R ZBAM
DR & EREBEEEEA 2 HLHHT
RUBHEN -MBEEMENSBRESE
GEROR

FEEZHBA

BEEN2HSBASUERELERA
HOFHERSER - HARTHER
HHOBEE NP EERAGMARE
BEZREE WAEREREHFH
HER BRI o

A EEBAEA

REBLEZFRNEBN 2EE R NERER
ERBEOFHEBRDMER -FRFTLE
EHEOER 2D W RN S E AR
ERABEBHEAFHENE A XBRN
o

ShE

ERHEREEERZ B BERMKRE - U
BERMEERIINZEE (IMNE)EITZ
RHBRZXSGABMZERAR - R®RE
HIR - AN DB 2 B 1R B N3RS
RERBRZEXREHME - USNET
EXRAFEIRZIFEEIRB AEE
RPFEEABAZERSHRE - LA
BHEIL AR AF &2 FEHIAR
TEEHRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and will
be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of
the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(@)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence, the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences

is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(U]

()

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset or disposal group
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. The
management of the Group must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary

after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale (other than investment properties accounted for
under the fair value model in HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
and financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39) are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(s) Related parties (Cont'd)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

@

3

)

®)

)

)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services

or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

mEMBRRME

3. FESHHREEEw

(s) BAEAL(E)
(i) WRFE THIEME G AT EAR

EEARME:

() ZEBRASEAR -%H
ZHKE (BIE8RA B
NSIVACES ) YNGRl dE
RaE) -

2 EX—ERRE-EREOBZ
RAIKAERA (BB
BAKE AR ZEEE T
BARIZBMEDNRHNEER
a) e

(3) MEERORA-—EE=H
BmEBEDQA -

4 —EBEBRARE=FERZ
BERA ME—EBARZ
BE=ZFERBIBENR -

(5) HEBAAEERANEER
BERE B BEEBEER
I

(6) HEBZ(O)EATIMALIES
sk H R o

@) ROO)IBATILA T A ¥ Z
EREEAVENUBZE
B(IXZEREZIRAZ
FEFEAB-

MEALTRGRIEASERBEALY
MEBER REXEL THEEEIN

BRALH
# 52 55

ZAB R AL

BB EEAK B 2 5 81
BHAEEZENALTERE

TENFKEKE -

w



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

()

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it

will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist primarily
of investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
financial assets and other assets. Segment liabilities comprise
financial liabilities and other liabilities. The Group evaluates
performance on the basis of profit or loss from operations
after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash
items mainly are fair value changes on investment properties
and other properties together with their, if applicable,
respective deferred tax expense. No intersegment revenue
is accounted for as the intersegment revenue is mainly the

rental income for administrative purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(v) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where

appropriate.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the management of the Group has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)

Fair value and impairment of available-for-sale

investments

As described in Note 5(c), the management of the Group uses
its judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The Group's unlisted equity securities with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$68,544,000 (2014: HK$93,515,000) are valued
using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates.
The estimation of fair value of these equity securities also includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market prices or

rates.
Impairment loss in respect of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment loss in respect of trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on methods of
valuation which involve certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
reports, the management of the Group has exercised its judgment
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions, as detailed in Note 21. Should there be
changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions, the fair

value of the investment properties will change in future.

BRI HE K& @

FEREEE B HE (8)

BFEREZ A FEREE

AN FES(0) AT - R I AT E B T 05 (B
ZemMIA REEZEEER HHEHEAE
BEBGHAERIN - ERAZGHERIATHBAL
FIT 18 % 5 F - BRTE 1B £ 368,544,000 7T (=
T —P04 93,515,000 7T ) 2 AL EIE Lk
TR (W AT B8 ) AT RS 2 T35 (B A6 =k
MEFEIF2BRE - FRURRSRED i
ThE-ZERRBSF 2 A FEMGITEE—
LTI AR 2 TS ER S AR 2 B

E

BHERE G FBEREMERFEZBEER

REE A B B 5 508 M E A FEUR IR 2 B
BEERZ BERENE IR 2 W@ T g1 R ARk
DA RERE 2 HEEE - R AL E
FEMFRZ A& W EI B RE R EFHRKEH
B BREEEFPBAZEEEENRLE
HEREBEZP 2 MBOIORE ZMmEISS RS2
N 5RBE DB - BIFE 2L RSMNEHE -

REWHEZ L FE

REBZREMERANBYEXMGEMTTE
ZRFEAE - GEMORE X FER TRE
BERETHAZMENEET AEEZER
BRERGERSHCHEL T HE RRBRK
FHETEDRRTISER (IR E21
M) SRR S CEHBRRB T AED &
BEMEZ RNFERBERREES -

s

—F-REEHR  FA

[
i
]

"

131



132

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

4.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.
Deferred tax assets

As at 31st December, 2015, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$3,254,000 (2014: HK$18,632,000) in relation to unused
tax losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by the management of the Group on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying

the value-in-use calculations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 484 Bt 8 sR &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Write-down of stock of properties

In accordance with the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, the
Group performs regular reviews on the estimated net realisable
values of the stock of properties in order to assess if, when the
estimated net realisable values declining below the corresponding
carrying amounts, any write-down of stock of properties is required.
The management of the Group has taken into account of the
prevailing market conditions, valuations or estimated unit selling
price from independent property valuers and internally available
information and exercised considerable judgments in making these

estimates.
Impairment loss in respect of interests in associates

The management of the Group determines whether interests
in associates have suffered any impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable, according to their recoverable amounts
determined by the CGUs based on value-in-use calculations.
The determination of impairment indication requires significant
judgments, and the calculations require the use of estimates which

are subject to change of economic environment in future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
— Investments held-for-trading
— Designated as at fair value through

profit or loss
Loans and receivables (including time

deposits, bank balances and cash)

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

Financial guarantee liabilities

5. 2@ TH

(a) SWMITEEHR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
RmEE
HERE 811,274 239,233
BREBEEURBAFEZ
SRVEE
—REEECZREA 364,244 501,944
—HEERBIRIBE AR
NS 11,069,270 4,626,840
ER R EWFIE (BIEEBFR
RITHEBRIRS) 12,821,121 10,074,315
cRmes
BHH AR 20,017,099 19,558,932
WBEREE - 102

Note: The above table and the analysis below excluded the

respective items presented as assets classified as held for
sale and liabilities directly associated with assets classified
as held for sale.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, advances to/from associates/investee
companies/non-controlling shareholders, debtors, deposits
and other receivables, securities trading receivables and
deposits, pledged deposits, time deposits, bank balances
and cash, sales proceeds held by stakeholders, borrowings,
creditors and accruals, securities trading and margin payable
and deposits received. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure

relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk

0)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions,
and from recognised assets and liabilities. The
functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of
the transactions are denominated. The functional
currencies of those subsidiaries operating in PRC and
in the United Kingdom are Renminbi (“RMB") and
Pound Sterling (“GBP") respectively in which most
of their transactions are denominated. The Group is
mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect
of exchange fluctuations of HK$ against RMB and
GBP. The conversion of RMB into other currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the government of PRC. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(1) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Assets

United States dollars ("US$")
RMB

GBP

Euro ("EUR")

Singapore dollars (“SGD")

Liabilities
Us$

RMB

GBP

EUR

SGD

BE

ESAE D)

AR

R

BT (BT )
oo (T#hansoT])

=R
E
AR
B
BT
¥ T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

0)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to USS$, it is
assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between US$ and HK$ and therefore US$ is

excluded from the analysis below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translations at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to/
from foreign operations within the Group where
the denomination of the loan is in a currency other
than the currency of the lender or the borrower; but
excluding exposure resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the

Group's presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

0)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

A positive and negative number below indicates an
increase and decrease in profit respectively where the
relevant currencies strengthen 5% against HK$. For a
5% weakening of the relevant currencies against HK$,

there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

profit.

Impact of -2
RMB AR
GBP S

EUR B 7T
SGD s

There would be no material impact to the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended 31st
December, 2015 and 2014.

The net effect of the Group's sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets
and liabilities including advance to an associate, time
deposits, bank balances, sales proceeds held by
stakeholders and borrowings and is therefore exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate ("HIBOR"), prime rate (“Prime") or costs

of funds of financial institutions.

Sensitivity analysis

The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in
advance to an associate, time deposits, bank balances,

sales proceeds held by stakeholders and borrowings).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit before tax for the year
2015 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$36,662,000 (2014
HK$30,315,000). This was mainly attributable to the

Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate

ended 31st December,

borrowings.

There was no material impact to the other components
of equity for the years ended 31st December, 2015
and 2014.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in

net debt carries at variable-rate.

Price risk

The Group's investments classified as available-for-sale
investments, investments held-for-trading and financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
which are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period and expose the Group to price risk.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group held
investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.
High yield bonds are bonds that are typically rated
below investment grade or are unrated and therefore
are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as
they typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rate move upwards, the value of the bonds will
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z - —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd) 5. €T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAMEEBEZEREE (&)
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd) mEEE (&)

(iii)  Price risk (Cont'd) (i)  EBiEE b (&)

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different

risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a

REE 2 EIRE AR R R
KFEZREEAEERBER-
AN AEBEE R IR/ NEEE

special team to monitor the price risk and will consider BREME - WA ERE R+ E
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise. % o
Sensitivity analysis BURRE DT

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
profit before tax for the year ended 31st December,
2015 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$571,676,000 (2014: HK$256,439,000). This was
mainly due to the changes in fair value of investments
held-for-trading and financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
other components of equity for the year ended
31st December, 2015 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$3,427,000 (2014: HK$4,676,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-

sale investments measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties' failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2015 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's time deposits and bank balances are deposited with
banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China

and overseas.

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and
scrutiny of financials for non-rated counterparties are two
important criteria in the selection of counterparties. The
credit quality of counterparties will be closely monitored over
the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its financial
counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit

strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group was subject to
concentration risk as there was receivable from a single
debtor of approximately HK$6,808,466,000 presented
under debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
which represented a majority proportion of the Group's trade
and other receivables. A listed company acts as surety to
the debtor by providing guarantee for the payments of the

receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in debt securities are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparty with high quality.
When making decisions on investments in securities, the
management of the Group has also made reference to the
credit ratings of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which,
however, are not an assurance as to the issuers and/or
guarantors' creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability
of the security. Risks in particular specific to certain types of
bonds held by the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they
in general carry high credit risk as they are often subject to
higher risk of issuer default as they are typically rated below
investment grade or are unrated; and (i) perpetual bonds
— their coupon payments may be deferred or suspended
subject to the terms and conditions of the bonds and they
are often callable after a call protection period (related risk
is detailed in the liquidity risk below). Other than the above,
there may be additional risks associated with trading of
bonds over-the-counter (“OTC") because OTC transactions
are generally subject to limited regulation and therefore
less transparent in transaction details such as volume,
price formation, etc. There may also be additional risks for
investments located in an emerging market which may
involve certain risks associated with political and economic
uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the Group
has appointed a special team to closely monitor the risks as
disclosed in Note 5(b)(iii) above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and the
United Kingdom. As at 31st December, 2015, the Group
was subject to investment concentration risk as there were
bonds investment with a single issuer of approximately
HK$3,020,734,000 presented under financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss and
a listed equity security of a company of approximately
HK$310,753,000 presented under investments held-
for-trading which represented a majority proportion of
the Group's investment portfolio as determined by the
management of the Group. Investment concentration risk
may materialise when the market in which that bonds are
traded is constricted (related risk is detailed in liquidity risk
below), or when the fair value of that bonds/listed equity
securities are declined (related risk is detailed in price risk
above). The Group also monitors regularly to avoid over-
concentration (such as investment products and underlying

foreign exchange, etc) of the investment portfolio.

Liquidity risk

The Group's certain investments held-for-trading and bonds
were pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure
margin and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect
of securities transactions. Under adverse market conditions,
the Group may be called by the financial institutions upon
at short notice to make deposit to repay the margin loans.
If the required deposits are not made within the prescribed
time, the Group's securities may be liquidated by the financial

institutions without the Group's consent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Certain bonds held by the Group carry fixed-rate coupon are
accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and redeem
the debt securities early if interest rates fall. The Group may
face reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to
redeem the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds
may not have an active secondary market. In case of the
market in which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group
may run the risk of either having to retain the investment
until the end of the term or selling it before maturity at an

unfavourable price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €@ T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREAMREEBEEREE (B
(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) mEBELEE (&)
At 31st December, 2015
RZB-EE+ZA=1-H
Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within Within2to  undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
il 32 KBRS RAEE
ERA= —FR WEELE RELE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TER THERT
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 S HAE
Borrowings - 2.04% 8,842,668 5,990,808 14,833,476 14,531,773
Creditors and accruals ENREREHTE - 1,081,746 - 1,081,746 1,081,746
Securities trading and margin EREFZHEER
payable RES - 11,181 - 11,181 11,181
Amounts due to associates REHENANE - - 1,789,647 1,789,647 1,789,647
Amounts due to investee companies  RBEXRERFE - - 21,085 21,085 21,085
Amounts due to non-controlling REFERRR
shareholders B
- Interest-free %8 - = 523,768 523,768 523,768
Total ag 9,935,595 8,331,308 18,266,903 17,965,200
At 31st December, 2014
RZZ-ME+-ZA=+-H
Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within Within 2 to undiscounted carying
rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
METESH FURHE REE
BRA % —4R" REZRE NELHE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign Fign T Fign
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3174 $HE &
Borrowings = 3.20% 7167837 10,454,356 17622,193 16,548928
Creditors and accruals ENRE R HE - 1,503,076 - 1,503,076 1,503,076
Securities trading and margin ERNESXPRER
payable REs - 45478 - 45478 45478
Amounts due to associates REEERT - - 58419 58419 58,419
Amounts due to investee companies R E &5 &ﬁ AW IE - - 27085 27,085 27,085
Amounts due to non-controlling REFHi ?J&%ﬁ
shareholders FB
- Interest-bearing -8 11.25% - 200,893 200,893 180,578
— Interest-ree -%8 - - 309,061 309,061 309,061
Financial guarantee liabilties UHEREE
- Current —nEE - 323172 - 323112 102
— Non-current —FRHHE - - 526,092 526,092 -
Total ag 9,039,563 11,575,906 20,615,469 18,672,727
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(

Fair value measurements

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analysed the financial instruments which

are measured at fair value into the three-level hierarchy.

Financial assets/ Fair value
financial liabilities Fair value hierarchy
SREE/SRER AYE AFERRH
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THARL TERT
Financial assets
tREE
Listed equity securities 364,244 501,944 Level 1
presented as investments £
held-for-trading
2ABEEEZREZ
FHRAES
Bonds presented as financial 11,069,270 4626840  Level 1
assets designated F-&
as at fair value through
profit or loss
2 REEABRER
URBATEZ
SREELES
Unlisted equity securities 68,544 93515 Level 3
presented as available-for- ]
sale investments (note (i))
2IIRFEREL
FETRAES
(PEEG))
11,502,058 5,222,299
Financial liabilities
SREE
Financial guarantee liabilities - 102 Level 3
BHBERAR £=4

5. @M I H»
() 2AFESE

URFEFSEZZMTA

TREBALNTEAEZEMIAZ =R

DR AT

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERNREIEHE

Quoted prices
in active markets

ERTSZRE

Quoted prices
in active markets

ERTSZRE

Discounted cash flow:
forecast dividend income,
discount rate and contract
terms (if any)
BRBETE:
BRZBREMA BRER
AHER (0E)

Trinomial Option Pricing Model
(note (i)

“EAHREERA
GEION

-z

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXFTERESE

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

Forecast dividend income taking
into account management's
experience, dividend records over
the past years and the estimated
terminal value (note (ii))

BAZREMATIZRERE
B BEEEZRERSE
RfbE 2 ZEEE (H )

Discount rate ranging from 1%
below Prime to Prime (note (ii))

HRERNTRERFE
HIEZ&ERHE (M)

Volatility ranging from
4.54% to 28.12% in 2014
(note (iv))
RIE-MERHHEE
$14.5490%28.12%
(P EEGv))

EEFH FEAEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  The carrying amount as at 31st December, 2015 mainly
comprised 6.475% equity investment in New Hong Kong
Tunnel Company Limited (“New Hong Kong Tunnel”) of
approximately HK$67,625,000 (2014: HK$92,585,000).

(i)  The higher the forecast dividend income and terminal
value, the higher the fair value. The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair value.

(i)  The key inputs for the Trinomial Option Pricing Model
included net asset value/market value, exercise price,
time to maturity, risk-free interest rate and volatility of the
underlying assets.

(iv)  The higher the volatility, the higher the fair value.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of
fair value hierarchy levels as at the date of the events or

changes in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3 in the fair value hierarchy during the years ended 31st
December, 2015 and 2014 and no change in valuation

techniques used in the prior years.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of each
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included

in Level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. @ T H»)
(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd) (0 ATENE(E)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The movement in the balances of Level 3 fair value

measurement is as follows:

At Tst January, 2014 R-—FE—mE—H—H
Net unrealised gains recognised in R H At 2 T UK 25 HE R
other comprehensive income RER W FHE
during the year
Fair value changes recognised in RERNR B R R
profit or loss during the year N ERE
At 31st December, 2014 R-ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H
Net unrealised losses recognised in ~ RERE A 2 E W HER 2
other comprehensive income REREBFE

during the year
Fair value changes recognised in REARBRERZ
profit or loss during the year NEEZY
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 41(b)) HEMB AR (MiE41(b))

At 31st December, 2015 R-ZE—HEF+ZHA=+—H

All of the above gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income for the current and prior years relate
to unquoted equity investments held at the end of the
reporting period and are reported as changes of securities

investments reserve.
Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the

Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=+ HLFE

URFEFEZEHBTA (&)

F=RRATEFESBKZEHNT:

Unlisted
equity securities

classified as Financial
available-for-sale guarantee
investments liabilities
PERGERE B %
Z¥kETRAFS EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT

71,713 37)
21,802 -

- (65)

93,515 (102)
(24,971) —

- (58)
- 160
68,544 -

ERABFARFERBEFEREME
T s 2 Woes B B 18 R R s B R H

BriEmERAKRE

BERELED

- A 51 R 5 75 5

FURFEFEZZHBTA

EERRAKEIF AR EFAEZSR
TRAZEEEREQAFERS

—E-hEFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

6.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from 2014.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the capital structure
of the Group mainly consists of debts, which include borrowings
from banks and other financial institutions, pledged deposits, time
deposits, bank balances and cash, and total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves, retained profits and non-controlling
interests. The Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital structure
on the basis of a gearing ratio. The Group has a target gearing ratio
not higher than 50%, determined as the proportion of net debt to
equity. This ratio is expressed by as a percentage of net borrowings
over the total equity. Net borrowings are calculated as total
borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of financial

position) less cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd) 6.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Borrowings — current (note (i))
Borrowings — non-current (note (i))

Total debt (note (i))
Cash and cash equivalents (note (ii))

Net debt

Net debt
Listed securities investments and
treasury products (note (iii))

Net debt
(net debt less listed securities
investments and treasury products)

Total equity (note (iv))

Net debt to equity ratio
(excluding listed securities
investments and treasury products)

Net debt to equity ratio
(including listed securities
investments and treasury products)

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE =%

Bt % R AR B
—EFt- A=t HLFE

EXARARER @
BAREEFHERMAT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHTT
BE-RBMEE (HE3G)) 8,651,773 6,707,935
BE— #U.L@J M (MEE@)) 5,880,000 9,840,993
Bz (KEEG)) 14,531,773 16,548,928
RekRESEFEEER (MFEG)) (3.052,557) (5,587,906)
B 5 11,479,216 10,961,022
(EE] 11,479,216 10,961,022
MEHFEER
& (B ) (11,433,514) (5,128,784)
B F5E
(B FER LTES
HE N EER) 45,702 5,832,238
A B R (MIEEGy)) 40,325,362 41,652,593
B F R AL X
(TEELEMHEHFEER
WEEM) 28.5% 26.3%
B F R AL X
(BRELTESFRER
MEEM) 0.1% 14.0%

Notes: B3 -
(i)  Borrowings (excluding bank borrowing presented as liabilities 0
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale) are
detailed in Note 36.
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise pledged deposits, time (i)
deposits, bank balances and cash (excluding pledged deposits,
bank balances and cash presented as assets classified as held for
sale) at the end of the reporting period.
(i) Listed securities investments and treasury products are detailed in @ii)
Notes 31 and 32.
(iv) Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained (iv)

profits and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & M &
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd) 6. EXEREE @

The increase in net debt to equity ratio (excluding listed securities
investments and treasury products) was mainly due to the decrease

in equity after payment of special interim dividends.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures

Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts received and receivable
from property rental income, sales of properties held for sale,
gain/loss on sales of investments held-for-trading, hotel operation
income, commission from brokerage, settlement charges from
brokerage, cosmetic goods sold less returns and interest income

from loan financing, analysed as follows:

ERFREARARELE (TRELTESK
ENPEER) ZAALT TEARIRNE
RIS R AR s TS ATEL

MEREBME AR =B2EEBHNBER
ARETMARAR REHEAERAF LK
BESFBRAFDARBFRBEEHERE
g BN ERANKEZES M E RIS
E2HEBRMAEAVBUHER - ZELEAER
BEeAtASAMEFMNREEBEREE
GEIRE RAFEEBBET-

B EXRBEEIN ARRREERHERRL
PRIMNREAR R Z RS

WA

WA KRR ERZDERES A FHIERE
MEZHEE HEREEEZRERSE B
BOEEEBERA BLBE BERBZX
ZER MREER 2R E N R ERER
BRBWMAZEFEE DNWOT:

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAET

Property rental income WEME A 1,325,875 1,939,378

Sales of properties held for sale FIEREMEZHE 151,616 617,086
(Loss) gain on sales of investments HERIEEEZ

held-for-trading wE (BE) K (2,415) 29,074

Hotel operation income B E ZE WA 49,125 25,356

Brokerage and cosmetic income EL RIS R AL AL Sh S B WA 18,196 16,389

Interest income from loan financing EREVE A B - 5

1,542,397 2627288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

PR M

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z - —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (iii) property leasing for
non-retail; (iv) listed available-for-sale equity investments; (v) listed
investments held-for-trading and treasury products; and (vi) unlisted
investments, investment holding and brokerage. The segmentations
are based on the information about the operation of the Group that

management of the Group uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development

Property development and sales of
and trading trading properties

Property leasing

— Retail - Property leasing from retail
properties
— Non-retail . Property leasing from non-retail

properties
Listed available-for-sale ~ — Listed equity securities in available-
equity investments for-sale investments
Listed investments - Listed securities investments in
held-for-trading and investments held-for-trading,
treasury products over-the-counter trading and
structured products
Unlisted investments, - Unlisted securities investments,
investment holding trading and brokerage

and brokerage

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other
properties together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax.
No intersegment revenue is accounted for as the intersegment

revenue is mainly the rental income for administrative purpose.

LEDHE

KB R E B HIEREE AREL RRORT
BEMNZ BENETEESE-

AEBMBAANEAZRIE-(OVVEERK
BE- (ii)%%%%%ﬁia C(INEEEWEAE -
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BREMVEERRWV)ELTRE - BEER
NSl Ll BAXDERREEETE
EBRUELERR 2 AEEEEER-

ITBEHEHNT
MEBZRIEE - DEERIEE
MEIHE
MEMRE
—ZE - RETEVXHEE
—FTE - REFTEHE
HE
FEzL™ - REEREZLD
A B BRAFEFIRE
FIFEEZ - REFEEEZLH
EHEER FEHERE HIR
MEEmM KAEB I Em
FLEMEE- - FLTREHFRE-
BEER R BB MRRLIR
EY b

AEBEAMBRRIARM X MIFERERERZ KA
KEZEBE (ETBERIEIFACER)RE
EFERR T R2FRLHEARKREMERE
WHEZARERERAFESSHEREEE 2R
ERIE (WER) RO BERZRATER
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_—Z

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised leasehold land and
building for own use, deposit paid in respect of a property, advance
to a non-controlling shareholder, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable

and deferred consideration in respect of disposals of subsidiaries.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised dividend payable,
deposit received in respect of disposal of a subsidiary, tax liabilities,
bank loans (excluding a bank loan originated in the United
Kingdom), amounts due to associates, amounts due to investee
companies, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and

deferred tax liabilities.

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported

segment profit or loss remain unchanged from 2014.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and result are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property or asset location.

There was a major customer (2014: nil) who individually accounted
for over 10% of the Group's revenue. Revenue of approximately
HK$182,977,000 was derived from non-retail property leasing

segment from a single customer outside Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Operating segment information is presented below:

©

DAY

LE

w00 )

LESREMZIWT:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEZEHWRERE
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2015 BE-_F—aF1T-A=1T—HALFE
Listed
investments Unlisted
Property leasin: Listed held-for-  investments,
Property Emgﬁﬁ $ available-for-  tradingand investment
development sale equity treasury  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BIEEEZ FLTRE:
NEBRER fEzLT  LHRER  REERK fiE
E® gL F2E RaRE HEER BREH® 278 &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET TET TER TERT TET TER TET
Major cash items excluding WA Z
in revenue TERLER
- Hong Kong -&E - - - - 861,625 - - 861,625
- Other countries —HipER - - - - 4,431,956 - - 4,431,956
- - - - 5203581 - - 5203581
Revenue /0N
Revenue from external customers RENBEEZHMA
- Hong Kong -&E 50,809 586,748 447,030 - (2,415) 8,116 10,080 1,100,368
- Mainland China -hEXE 100,807 59,426 44,521 - - - 49,125 253,885
- United Kingdom ~ 5B - 5,167 182,971 - - - - 188,144
151,616 651,341 674,534 - (2.415) 8116 59205 152,307
Revenue from external customers REMBIERRERE
after non-controlling interests ZBRERA 138,914 650,156 674,098 - (2,415) 8,116 59,205 1,528,074
Attributable property sales from il NG|
associates NEHE
- Hong Kong - 6,566 - - - - - - 6,566
- Mainland China —-hEAE 102,705 - - - - - - 102,705
Attributable rental revenue from FEEBENR/ BT
associates/investee company REARABEKA
- Hong Kong -&E - 19,865 38,068 - - - - 57,933
- Mainland China RN - 170,970 67,070 - - - - 138,040
248,185 740,991 779,236 - (2,415) 8,116 59,205 1,833,318
Result ES
Segment result RXE
- Hong Kong - 32,195 541,231 429,450 - 369,579 255,685 21,159 1,655,905
— Mainland China —EARE 32,191 51,620 20,656 - - 21,802 (15,219) 111,090
- United Kingdom -5 - 5,033 178232 - - 53 - 183,318
~ Other countries ~HpER - - - - 498,789 (3,899) - 494,890
64,986 603,890 628,338 - 868,368 273,681 5,940 2,445,203
—E-0FFRH EPNER +-1:



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) =E
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2015 aHE

Share of results of associates
- Attributable property sales, net
- Hong Kong
~ Mainland China
- Attributable gross income
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- Attributable operating cost
~ Hong Kong
- Mainland China
Non-controlling interests

Other income and expenses, net

(T4 NES
~BIENEHERE
-&k
-RE AR
-ElERARR
-&ik
—REA AR
-EEEERE
-EE
—REKE
FERER

AR ARRZFR

Gain on disposal of investment property & X A¥1% 2 iz

Finance costs

Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of associates
- income tax and others

Non-controlling interests

Unallocated items

Unallocated corporate expenses, net

Unallocated finance costs

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries, net

Share of results of associates

~ gain on disposal of subsidiaries,

net of tax
Income tax expense

Unallocated non-controlling interests

Operating profit for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company

Realised fair value changes together
with their respective deferred tax on
disposals of investment properties
(including share of reslts of
associates)
~ Recognised in current year

Major non-cash items
- Unrealised fair value changes on

investment properties (including

share of results of associates)

- Deferred tax credit

BBER
AftaERERIR
BlrBendzE
—FERREL
FERER

ANBIEE
AHBZRARX
8
AEZHBER
HEMBARZ
geya
NS
—HEWBARZ
it (BHifz)
FERAY
A FRRER

LA TN 1
FEEZEEET

HERENEZ
BERATELRD
EREEECER
WE (RRE#GES
PAESSY
-REFRER

IRFALER

—RERZRENE
ZATEEY
(BEEEHE
REEA)

-ERHERR

Profit for the year attributable to %72 F#H AL

owners of the Company

KEEZER

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Listed

investments Unlisted

P leasi Listed held-for-  investments,

Property %Qﬁeg""‘ available-for-  tradingand investment

development sale equity treasury  holding and All other

and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated

BEEEZ FLTRE:

NERER gzt LwRER  REERR k-]

EE 2E *EE RERg HEER SRR At AR S8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR TER TERL TR
4,135 - - - - - - 4,135
5,106 - - - - - - 5,106
- 18,768 36,862 - - - 2,181 57811
- 70,970 61,070 - - - - 138,040
- (1,145) (6,032) - - - - (1117)
- (30,155) (12,203) - - - - (42,358)
(8,199) (1,065) (392) - - - - (9,656)
66,028 661,263 713,643 - 868,368 273,681 8,121 2,591,104
1318 - - - - - - 1318
- - 17,6719 - - - - 17,6719
- (2,768) (98,012) - (8,023) - - (108,803)
(58) @ - - - - - (66)
(13,315) (34,143) (54,058) - - - (370) (101,886)
@ - - - - - - @
59,971 624,344 579,252 - 860,345 273,681 1151 2,405,344

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

(237,082)
(208,062)
941,010

514,060
(335,676)
17135

3,096,729

(154,602)

4,171,189
13,892

1121208



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESEm
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEWREERE (B
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_ZFE—haF+ _H="1—HIFE
HK$'000
THER
Core profit (excluding major non-cash items) BRaH (FEEETEHFREER)
Operating profit for the year attributable to ALRFEEANELEEFEZKERR
owners of the Company 3,096,729
Major accumulated realised fair value changes REAFEHERENEZ
together with their respective deferred tax on FTERBCHRALATESD
disposals of investment properties in current BHRHEMEZEERE
year (including share of results of associates (BFEBLEBEDRXER
and after non-controlling interest) MRRFEERERE)
— Recognised in current year —RARFEEHER (154,602)
— Recognised in prior years —RBEFREER 13,843,651
Core profit for the year attributable to ARBEEABIEERFE Z %05 F

owners of the Company 16,785,778

"
W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2015

Assets
Segment assets
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- United Kingdom
- Other countries
Interests in associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
Advances to associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Reportable segment assets

Assets classified as held for sale
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
~ United Kingdom
- Other countries

Reportable segment liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with

assets classified as held for sale

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments

and deferred tax assets)

REMBRRME

EEDE @

FEMBMRRER
R-E-—RFF+-_A=+—H

Listed
investments Unlisted
P leasi Listed held-for-  investments,
Property rog’;}gﬁeésmg available-for-  tradingand  investment
development sale equity treasury  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEEZ  EFLTRE
NELRK fE2LT  LHRER  REBRR gl
EE gL F2E RaRE HEER BRRHR 278 &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FEL FHT TR FET FHT FEx FET
EE
Bk 5006542 10,607,954 8,230,890 - 8,624,769 333,733 41,915 32,845,803
—hEKKE - 975,946 828,809 - - - 6,654 1,811,409
- - 116,573 4,319,308 - - - - 4,435,881
-H - 1 - - 3,088,898 125,873 - 3,814,782
-&& 142,755 357,486 1,365,871 - - 11m 5,029 1,872,863
—REARE - 131,621 1,765,992 - - - - 1,897,613
E VNGRS
& 7,208 - 181 - - 2 1,126 8517
—REAR - 30,575 16,390 - - - - 46,965
ERAREE 5,156,505 12,220,166 16,527,441 - 11,713,667 1,061,330 54724 46,733,833
SIRRELE BB 9,239,271
FABIAREE 7,082,113
GRAELHE 63,055,217
&%
HEAE
&k 1,533,734 140,762 153,900 - 210 14,006 6,273 1,848,885
—REAKE - 19,086 12,667 - - - 19 3L,
—& - 73,862 2,748,353 - - - - 2,822,215
—EHER - 1 - - 5,389,995 6 - 5,390,002
PES 5 )1 1,533,734 233,711 2,914,920 - 5,390,205 14,012 6292 10,092,874
B3 AR EHE 2
EEEENBEE 1,857,996
x PANCI-Y 10,778,985
GREBBELE 22,129,855
FRBEERE
($RIER
ETHERERM) 219,801 16,451 933,700 - - - 38,927

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Other Material Items

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2015

Interest income
Finance costs

Net income (expenses)

Depreciation

Fair value changes on
investment properties

Share of results of associates

Income tax (expense) credit

Non-controlling interests

FlBMA
HHER

WA (B%) 38

e

RAMEZ
BUEBERRESE
FrisH () B E
SRR

8. &iE

w00 )

HitERIEHE
BE-F—AF+ A=+ —HIFE

Adjustments

for realised
fair value Adjustments  Consolidated
Reportable Adjustments changes and for major statement of
segments for related non-cash  comprehensive
total unallocated deferred tax items income total

BE#5

AVELE

RERBZ
DES: Ly EEBE TEFRE FE2EWE
PEAH ZRE ZRE HEZHE RRBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TER
766,523 - - - 766,523
(108,803) (208,062) - - (316,865)
657,720 (208,062) - - 449,658
- (55,832) - - (55,832)
- - (4,860) 4,694,084 4,689,224
53,671 514,060 4,869 71,105 649,705
- (335,676) (154,611) 13,892 (476,395)
(9,658) 17,135 - - 1471
TE-IFFR EFEABEEE

[0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

¥ (

&)

2EWKHERE

Listed
investments Unlisted
Property leasing Listed held-for- investments,
Property MLRE available-for- trading and investment
development sale equity treasury holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEEZ  FLTRE
NEERR BE2LW  LARER  REERR i
ER TE #TE A& HEER T B8 Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FiEn TiEn TET FiEn TiEn TET FEn
Major cash items excluding WA Z
in revenue TERSER
- Hong Kong -&8 - - - - 466,881 - - 466,881
- Other countries -HER - - - - 11,135,671 - - 11,135,671
- - - - 1160255 - - 11602552
Revenue 'ON
Revenue from external customers RENBERZMA
- Hong Kong -5 206,590 1,212,142 418318 - 29,074 5772 10,622 1,883,118
- Mainland China —~REAKE 410,496 61,159 44,095 - B . 25,356 541,106
- United Kingdom -%8 - 5576 197488 - - - - 203,064
617086 1279477 659,901 - 29,074 5772 35978 2627288
Revenue from external customers RENBERRER K
after non-controlling interests ZBEEWA 565,439 1,278,268 659,492 - 29,074 5772 35978 2,574,023
Attributable property sales from BEBENF/ &R
associates/investee company BRERTNERE
- Hong Kong -&% 1,491,160 - - - - - - 1,491,160
Attributable rental revenue from EEBRERA/#R
associates/investee company RERTHEHA
- Hong Kong -ER - 18,960 34,652 - - - - 53,612
- Mainland China —hEAE - 76,279 91,332 - - - - 167611
2,056,599 1,373,507 785,476 - 29,074 5772 35,978 4,286,406
Result ES
Segment result SREA
- Hong Kong Bk 486,893 1,162,125 393,900 - 111,291 41,559 18,119 2,213,887
~ Mainland China —REARE 236,745 54,692 38324 - - 33,169 (11,513) 351,417
- United Kingdom -& - 5446 192,878 - - - - 198324
- Other countries ~HER - - - - 114218 29 - 114247
723,638 1,222,263 625,102 - 225,509 74,757 6,606 2877875
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 484 Bt 3R &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEWREERE (B
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HBr—ZF—pmWFr+—/F=1—HIFE
Listed
investments Unlisted
Property leasing Listed held-for- investments,
Property MLRE available-for- trading and investment
development sale equity treasury holding and All other
and trading Retal Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEEZ  FLTRE
NELER BEZEW  FWRER  REERR fig
ER e #TE A& HEER Enliied B8 Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TR FhL TERL TR FhL TEL TR
Share of results of associates BEBELA%E
- Attributable property sales, net e
- Hong Kong ) 15,645 - - - - - - 15,645
- Attributable gross income —EERAER
- Hong Kong ) - 17905 33,561 - - - 1732 53,198
- Mainland China -HhERE - 76,279 91,332 - - - - 167611
~ Attributable operating cost —EEEERE
- Hong Kong &k - (1,464) (5,680) - - - - (7.144)
— Mainland China —REARE - (31,885) (14917) - - - - (46,802)
Non-controlling interests kR (24,261) (1,09) (371) - - - - (25,728)
715,022 1,282,002 729,027 - 225,509 74,757 8,338 3,034,655
Other income and expenses, net EBARBFE (61,044) 242 - - - 1410 (60,714) (120,106)
Costs of development recognised SRFMEER 2
in respect of property project in Macau R EEM A (6,503) - - - - - - (6,503)
Loss on disposals of HERENE
investment properties pd i - (6,750) - - - - - (6,750)
Finance (costs) income 85 (BR) WA - (3,071 (108,762) - 10673 - - (101,160)
Other gains and losses, net EbsRERTE (65) (5,146) - - - - - (5211)
Share of results of associates BEBELA%E
~ income tax and others -FER kA (15,911) (35,862) (38,731) - - - (107) (90,611)
Non-controlling interests FERER (16) (5 - - - - - 1)
631,483 1,231,410 581,534 - 236,182 76,167 (52,483) 2,704,293
Unallocated items RAOBER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net & Ez AFRHY
R (217577)
Unallocated finance costs KB EBER (293,858)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR Y 2917579
Income tax expense FEREY (260,390)
Unallocated non-controlling interests &A% 2 R g 17777
Operating profit for the year KA REE AR
attributable to owners of REEZEEET
the Company 4,867824
Realised fair value changes on HERENEL
disposal of investment properties BERATEED
- Recognised in current year ~REEEER (286)
Major non-cash items TEHRLER
~ Unrealised fair value changes on —RERRENE
investment properties (including ZATEED
share of results of associates) (REREES
REEH) 3,872,858
- Deferred tax credit ~EERBERR 4531
Profit for the year attributable to 42 35 A B
owners of the Company KEEZER 8,744,927
—s-nEFg  zAE¥sE 161




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESEm
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEWREERE (B
For the year ended 3 st December;, 2014 BE_—FE—MFF_HA="1+—HIFFEZE
HK$'000
FET
Core profit (excluding major non-cash items) BRaH (FEEETEHFREER)
Operating profit for the year attributable to ALRFEEANELEEFEZKE TR
owners of the Company 4,867,824
Major accumulated realised fair value changes REFEHEREYEZ
on disposals of investment properties in FTERBCHRALATESD
current year (after non-controlling interest) (MBRFEEREZ )
— Recognised in current year —RARFEEHER (286)
— Recognised in prior years —RBEFEER 54,968
Core profit for the year attributable to owners of AT EEABGEEREE 2Z0ER
the Company 4,922,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 484 Bt 3R &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

2l Y= 3 t
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contd) 8. EES ¥
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBRRBEER
At 31st December, 2014 R-F—paF+=—HA=+—H
Listed
investments Unlisted
Property lezsing . Listed held-for— inlvestments,
Property HERE available-for- trading and investment
development sale equity treasury holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
?%1‘&%??‘%2 3Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ .
NEERR . BE2EW LWRER  REBRR fig
EE TE *TE RARE HEER e LY b Fa
HK$'000 HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Fign Fiax T FiEn T Ti#n Fitn T
Assets
Segment assets
- Hong Kong 4021211 19,755,263 11,449,659 - 501,944 807,812 51,681 36,587570
- Mainland China 5,733,566 1,283,423 1,077995 - - 374931 1,788 424 10,258,339
- United Kingdom - 162219 4,903,280 - - - - 5,065,499
- Other countries - - - - 4,895,072 77,653 - 4972,725
Interests in associates
- Hong Kong -5k 34,330 524,413 1,184,676 - - 1,481 30,102 1,775,002
- Mainland China —hEKE 143,105 95,344 471,316 - - - - 709,765
Advances to associates BRBEARNE
- Hong Kong -E% 7068 210 127 - - 2 1494 8901
- Mainland China —HE KR 997681 59,893 688,166 - - - - 1,745,740
Reportable segment assets UERIBEE 10,936,961 21,880,765 19,775,219 - 5397016 1,261,879 1,871,701 61,123,541
Assets classified as held for sale N BBELEZEE 9,442,062
Unallocated corporate assets Fx: PANCIE-T- 859,328
Consolidated total assets GRAEMR 71,424,931
Liabilities &%
Segment liabiliies ARAR
- Hong Kong -B# 1,384,030 290,701 168,780 - 3 48,194 85,054 1,976,762
- Mainland China RN 459,798 42676 17844 - - - 20374 540,692
- United Kingdom —-RE - 81,934 2,915,086 - - - - 2,997020
- Other countries -EfER - - - - 1713,785 3 - 1713,788
Reportable segment liabilies AEHSRARE 1,843,828 415311 3,101,710 - 1,713,788 48,197 105428 7228262
Liabilties directly associated with B R fEHE L
assets classified as held for sale BEERRBCEE 1,759,937
Unallocated corporate liabilties FoEzARAE 20,784,139

Consolidated total liabilties GARERE 29,772,338

Additions to non-current assets ~ FREBEERE
(other than financial instruments  (£MIAR
and deferred tax assets) FEHEEERD) 968,203 30,619 74909 - - - 189,906

s
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Other Material Items

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014

Interest income
Finance costs

Net income (expenses)

Depreciation
Fair value changes on

investment properties
Costs of development recognised

in respect of property project in Macau
Share of results of associates
Income tax (expense) credit
Non-controlling interests

MBRA
HHER

WA (Fx%)F8

e

RAMEZ
FEFMERE Z
BEBELRREE
FisH (Fx) & E
FER S

REMBRRME

8. =&

i)

HiEKEH
BE-—E—EF - A=+ —HILEE

e

Adjustments Adjustments Consolidated
Reportable Adjustments for realised for major statement of
segments for fair value non-cash  comprehensive
total unallocated changes items income total
BER
QS K& ATEED TEHRD FARTENE
PDREE ZHE ZAE HEZHE BE@RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER TET
739,010 - - - 739,010
(101,160) (293,858) - - (395,018)
637,850 (293,858) - - 343,992
- (23,381) - - (23,381)
- - (286) 3777424 3,777,138
(6,503) - - - (6,503)
91,897 - - 95,434 187,331
- (260,390) - 4531 (255,859)
(25,749) 17777 - - (7972)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are:

Building management fee income

Building management fee expenses

Rental services income

Property management services,
leasing administration services and
property administration services income

Asset management and maintenance
services income

Advisory and consultancy services income

Consultancy fee income

Exchange gain, net

Reversal of impairment in respect of
other receivable and interest thereon

Forfeiture of deposits received on sales of

stock of properties

9. Hftlg A
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Hiplk ABIE:
BFEREBWRA 159,989 207,230
EFERBMY (141,678) (192,105)
18,311 15,125
AERBUA 26,137 17,636
VB IE RS
FMBITERR &
Y ZE1TBOR TS A 27,107 12,282
BEEERRERBKRA
19,864 11,556
7R M R R BR S A 2,330 312
B ERA 237 9,227
P& 5 W e F 58 8,908 -
18 o] E b U GRIE 2 RUE K
T B 7318 -
BUHEMEGFTERS
12 264
“E-REER EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET

10. REWA R

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FA&T
Financial assets at fair value through BEBEREURMAFERSER
profit or loss classified as held-for-trading: RIEEEZoMEE:
Unrealised gain arising on change in fair value A (B & &M &= 4 2 K 210 WS 24,159 44,009
Financial assets designated as at fair value BERBBEBERARMRAFELZ
through profit or loss: CRVEE
Unrealised gain (loss) arising on change in N ELYMEELEZ
fair value RER W (BE) 309,369 (446,541)
Realised loss arising on change in fair value AP EESMELZ D ERER
— Change in fair value - NFEEY (29,523) (122,538)
— Exchange component of change —E 5 & & &) (4,139) (16,551)
Net gain (loss) arising on change in fair value ETABBEEUIRBRAFEZ
of financial assets designated as at fair value TREERATESIMEELEY
through profit or loss W (BE)FHE 275,707 (585,630)
Impairment loss for an available-for-sale FEREREER
investment (3.899) (12,983)
Other investment income, net EHAabis EWAFRE 14,992 15,416
Dividend income on: MBI AZEE -
Listed investments EHRE 34,242 38,208
Unlisted investments JEETEE 32,400 420,893
Interest income MR A 762,415 738,243
1,140,016 658,156

Included in interest income are interests from bonds of
approximately HK$521,683,000 (2014: interests from bonds
and preference shares of HK$684,432,000) and imputed
interest income from deferred consideration of approximately
HK$209,265,000 (2014: nil).

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

MEWA Z R BIEEFFEL R521,683,000
BLT(ZZ—NF - BEHFERELERFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

11. OTHER EXPENSES 1. HAtbF %
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Included in other expenses are: Hufxx B

Interest on sales deposits repaid to promissory  RiE FRFIMEEEBHOE S
purchasers of property project in Macau HEEEZFEMX - 61,405
Pre-operating expenses for hotel B JE & B AT EAR 2 - 60,714

12.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 12. S| AEELHEZEE HIHlA

LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH BFEHECEEEZEHEZA

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE &

(a) Pioneer Time Disposal on 15th January, 2016 (a) R=—ZT—X%E— B+ 3HH ZPioneer
TimedH &

HE_Z-—AFE+-A=+—HILEE
A-FREREERAR ([FHAR]) (KA
Alz—HEEZ2EEEWBEAR)HEE
ZBV)AERR2E ([BBE]) (REXM
EEEERAFz—HE2ERENBA
Al (BYRARAF B EEBmEEE) 5T
N IERRRE R EREEE T o R AR
A & & & E R B 88 B Pioneer Time
Investment Limited ([Pioneer Time])
(RARRlz —MHZE2EREWBAT)
Z 2B EITRA ([Pioneer TimeH
%) o Pioneer TmelFBUREEE A
EEBRAEZWE-

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, Great
System Investment Limited (“Great System”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shengyu
(BVI) Limited (“Shengyu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Evergrande Real Estate Group Limited which is independent
of and not connected with the Company, entered into an
equity and debt transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Great System agreed to sell and Shengyu agreed to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Pioneer Time Investment
Limited (“Pioneer Time"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Pioneer Time Disposal”). Pioneer Time

held the property known as MassMutual Tower in Hong Kong.

Pioneer Time &R —ZE—<XF— 8
+ I B R(E 4 &12,448,280,000
BT (KARE) R_T—HF
+ZA=+—RH AKEEKIUZR
1,250,000,000% 7T I 5+ A ¥z & & 78 Uk
FRIE A - B 74 Pioneer TimetH & © Pioneer
Timez BERBEREBMEHREER
FESRN—_E—AF+_A=+—RHZ
A MBI RE D RIZTIRAF AFEE
HEZEEREI BIFIELECEER
December, 2015 in accordance with HKFRS 5. EREzaE.

The Pioneer Time Disposal was completed on 15th
January, 2016 at a consideration of approximately
HK$12,448,280,000 (after adjustment). As at 31st
December, 2015, a deposit of HK$1,250,000,000 has been
received by the Group and included in deposits and receipts
in advance. As a result of the Pioneer Time Disposal, the
assets and liabilities of Pioneer Time have been presented
as assets classified as held for sale and liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale respectively

in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st

Pioneer Time & 2 S 1B E HIIN AR F]
BEA-_ZT—AF+—A+-_HZAMH
E_ZE—RFE+-_A=B2ZRHAN-

Details of the Pioneer Time Disposal were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 12th November, 2015

and the circular of the Company dated 3rd December, 2015.

“E-LEFHR EASXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

12. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

(b)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Silvercord Disposal on 13th January, 2015

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, (a)(i) Super
Series Limited (“Super Series”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the Company, being the
guarantor of Super Series; (iii) Fly High Target Limited (“Fly
High Target”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau,
Luen-hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau"), a substantial shareholder
and a controlling shareholder of the Company; and (iv) Mr.
Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Fly High Target, entered
into sale and purchase agreements, namely “Silvercord First
SP Agreement” and “Silvercord Second SP Agreement”,
pursuant to which Super Series agreed to sell and Fly High
Target agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Brass Ring Limited (“Brass Ring") and Union Leader Limited
(“Union Leader") respectively, both are indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company; and (b)(i) Chinese
Estates, Limited (“CEL"), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company; (ii) the Company, being the guarantor of
CEL; (iii) Coast Field Ltd. (“Coast Field"), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the
guarantor of Coast Field, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, namely “Silvercord Third SP Agreement”, pursuant
to which CEL agreed to sell and Coast Field agreed to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Chinese Estates and
Finance, Limited (now known as Silvercord Finance Limited)
("CE Finance”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.

The disposal of Brass Ring, Union Leader, CE Finance and
their respective subsidiaries (collectively “Silvercord Group")
(“Silvercord Disposal”) was completed on 13th January,
2015. As a result of the Silvercord Disposal, the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Silvercord Group have been
presented as assets classified as held for sale and liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
respectively in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December, 2014 in accordance with HKFRS 5.

Further details of the Silvercord Disposal are set out in Note
41(d).

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

mEMBRRME

R2.IBFEHEZEE HEYA
ﬁfﬁtﬂ%ZﬁEE?ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁZﬁ
B ()

(b)

R-IB-EF-AT=ZHZESHE

HE-_Z-—MF+-_A=+—HIFE
W+ (a)(i) Super Series Limited ([Super
Series |) " ARAElz —HEEEZEHEAM
B AR (i)AR7A - ERSuper Series#&
R A ¢ (iii) Fly High Target Limited ([Fly
High Target]) - — M &8 2IZA 2 5 & ([ %)
gLl (ARA—UEEZERER
ZRIRR)EERA 2 AT R(v)BI£
WS & fEBFly High TargetfE R A - 57
VEERHR (BRAIERE—BEEHE]
RIEmE_E&W#E]) - 3Rt Super
Series/ & & K Fly High TargetR & f#
E Brass Ring Limited ( [Brass RingJ) &
Union Leader Limited ([Union Leader | )
(BEHRARFIEZEZEREMER
Az 2MEEITRA: RO)DEAE
XERAF([EE]) AREIZ—MH
BEEZBEHEEWNB AR (VAR F
TERZEZEIR A (i) Coast Field Ltd.
([Coast Field|) - —FmFIZELED
BHAZRAR RVBIZELRE R
Coast FieldEfRA 5] —HEE &
(ZBRIREF=ZEBMR]) &It =
E R E & K Coast FieldF & 38 & B #87f
BERAR (RERAEREMBERAF)
(IHEHRB]) (KRR —EEE2EH
BB AR) 22 E BITRA -

£ Brass Ring* Union Leader A 281 75
EEEEAZHBAR (HBIREE
) ([ReHEHRE—RF—A
TZHARK -BHRESLE ReEEY
HEAERABREBVEREELS
SN —NMF+—A=+—HZE&
BEMBIRR BT B2 TR BIFED
BCEERBIARIFLEC EERR
HEZ &

ReEhEZE-—SHBDHIINHFE
41(d) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

12. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

(9

Disposals of certain shops or units of an investment

property in Hong Kong (“Properties”)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Vendor”) has
entered into a series of preliminary sale and purchase
agreements (“Preliminary Agreements”) with independent
third parties and three companies wholly-owned by a close
family member of a then Director (who resigned from his
office of Director on 14th March, 2014) and a controlling
shareholder of the Company (collectively “Properties
Purchasers”). Pursuant to the Preliminary Agreements, the
Vendor would sell the Properties to the Properties Purchasers
upon the terms and conditions contained therein. Sales of
the remaining 5 shops of the Properties were completed
during the year ended 31st December, 2014. Net fair value
loss of approximately HK$286,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year ended 31st December, 2014.

The fair value of investment properties was based on the valuation

performed by independent valuers. Details of the valuers, valuation

techniques and key inputs were set out in Note 21.

mEMBRRME
—AE+-A=+-BALFE

12. BB EHEZEE BEI B
ﬁ#ﬁtﬂ%iﬁéﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
B (&)

REMERZR

HEMREB - BRENMEZETIEH
HEM ([WE]D

BEZE—=F+-A=+—AHL#F

A- ARz —EREZEHBNE
R(TERHEBYE =7 R=HHA
—MEREERZER (R _Z—NF=
ATMABEEE 2 BGE)FRAQFE
R FRERE CRKEKRKESZERB 2
RAI(RBMEBEFI)EI L —E R
NEEHE ([RRHER]) - IRIBER
Wk - B 7 AR R R IR 19 5 51 B 2 IR
MGHHEZMETYMEET - HER
TYEZAEEHERBE_S—NF
+Z A=+ —BLEFEREHK -REZE

—FE+ZA=+T—HILFEZL
SEHMBEREAERLN T EBEFEHE
#9286,000/8 JT °

M}%

D)

FEDIFENELIGERMZ (51E -

fhEEN - (HERM R E ZE8E 2 F B H
217

s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

12. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 12.
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the major classes of assets and
liabilities classified as assets held for sale and liabilities directly

associated with assets classified as held for sale correspondingly are

SIRREHEZEE "HEY A
ﬁfﬁtﬂ%ZﬁEE?&*ﬁ%ﬁZﬁ
& ()

RBER  HEBDBRIIRFIEHEZE
ENEFABIFHEZEEARBBZEE
ZEBEERAGERNNT

as follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Assets classified as held for sale NARELHEZEE
Investment properties REYE 8,657,600 9,388,280
Property, plant and equipment M HE REE 505,585 2
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and FEUWRIA - 125 - b EURERTE &
prepayments Ta T RIE 4,539 30,098
Tax recoverable CIREIEEN - 2
Pledged deposits TR 59,313 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LR 12,234 23,680
9,239,271 9,442,062
Liabilities directly associated with assets 25 BIGEHEZEE
classified as held for sale EEMEZAE
Creditors and accruals R BRTE K FEET 5B 2,910 4,661
Deposits and receipts in advance Be RIBWFIE 46,265 187,950
Tax liabilities MIBEAEE 6,214 28,000
Borrowings BE 1,785,000 1,500,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBE F 17,607 39,326
1,857,996 1,759,937
Amounts recognised in other EREEHEZARBEE
comprehensive income and REMZERSEFERAR
accumulated in equity relating to ERNAREER 2 RE
non-current assets held for sale
Properties revaluation reserve MESEFHER 127,054 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. X EinF

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REFZHFMD (KR A
(charging) crediting:
Total staff costs: EE KRB
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments BEREK(BREESEHE) (256,098) (271,205)
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RIKEF IR
net of forfeited contributions of approximately — ¥1Bk B 72 U 4% 51 49794,0007% 7T
HK$794,000 (2014: HK$1,173,000) (=Z— P04 1,173,000/ 7T ) (9,782) (8,892)
(265,880) (280,097)
Auditors’ remuneration ZERD B &
— Current year —AFE (2,858) (3,005)
— Underprovision in prior years —BTFERETR (118) (16)
Depreciation e (55.832) (23,381)
Exchange loss, net & 5 B5 18 F 8 = (4,151)
Cost of trading properties recognised BBV ERARER (71,132) (225,674)
Cost of cosmetic products recognised et f A AN T 2R (3.479) (3,669)
Cost of inventories for hotel recognised B JE 17 &K TR (5.389) (3,499)
Share of tax of associates A RN bR
(included in share of results of associates) (BaFABREB 2 R RIEE) (82,440) (23,989)
Gross proceeds on sale of investments HEREEEZREZ
held-for-trading FiS B 720,079 466,881
Carrying amount on investments HEREEEZREZ
held-for-trading disposed BREE (721,451) (436,882)
Transaction costs on investments HEREEEZREY
held-for-trading disposed 5 KA (1,043) (925)
Net (loss) gain on sales of investments AFABARZFHIEEEZREZ
held-for-trading included in revenue (B8 W= 558 (2.415) 29,074
Gross rental income from investment properties &) £ & W A 4858 1,325,875 1,939,378
Less: Direct operating expenses from BAEREEEEERAZ
investment properties that generated REMEEELERX
rental income during the year (81,303) (89,972)
Direct operating expenses from REEWREFHSHBAZ
investment properties that did not REMEERKERZ
generate rental income during the year (12,344) (2,041)
1,232,228 1,847,365
“E-0FFHR EASEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

14. FINANCE COSTS

15.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Interest on:
Bank loans
Other loans

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder

Total interest
Exchange gain on translation of
foreign currency loans, net

Other finance costs

Less: Interest capitalised to stock of properties
under development
Interest capitalised to investment

properties under development

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Included in other gains and losses, net are:

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries

— Chengdu Project (note (i))
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

— One Group (note (ii))
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

— Chongging Project (note (iii))
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries

— Silvercord Group (note (iv))
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

— Moon Ocean Group (note (v))

Underprovision for rental guarantee (note (vi))

—hETZA=tHILFE

8116 %
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
FE
RITER 324,020 483,606
HiER 17,304 22,130
KB — IR R IR 16,920 16,880
B BEE 358,244 522,616
HNEE B SR BE 5 IR 25 0 B8
(9,281) (32,803)
HaB % & 36,157 47,492
385,120 537305
BBRERPMESTE
B AR 2 FE (284) (1,251)
BrERPRENE
B R 2 FB (67,971) (141,036)
316,865 395,018
Hilsm REE TR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
Hiham REEFEEE:
HEMBAT 2 U
—RCEBIE B (MREG)) 707,492 -
HENB AR 2 WS
—OnefE & (FIFEC)) 212,332 -
HE BB R Rz W
—EEER (M) 118,421 -
HEMBAT 2 EE
—iREEE (MHEdv)) (97,235) -
HENB AR 2 WS
—Moon Oceanf: & (HfzE(v)) - 2,917,579
HEERBETE (FFEW)) (8) (5,146)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET (contd)

Notes:

0)

(i)

(iii)

)

)

(vi)

Gain on disposals of subsidiaries arose from the disposals of
the Group's entire issued share capital of Lucky Benefit Limited
(“Lucky Benefit”) and Rising Sheen Limited (“Rising Sheen"),
both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
and their respective subsidiaries (collectively “Chengdu Project”)
("Chengdu Project Disposal”) on 30th July, 2015. Chengdu
Project held property projects located at Chengdu, the PRC,
known as Splendid City, The Metropolis and Chinese Estates
Plaza, together with an investment in the PRC Partnership
(defined thereafter in Note 27 — note (iii)). Details of the
Chengdu Project Disposal are set out in Note 41(b).

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Asian East Limited (“Asian
East"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its subsidiaries (collectively “One Group”) (“One Disposal”) on
15th July, 2015. One Group held the property known as The
ONE in Hong Kong. Details of the One Disposal are set out in
Note 41(c).

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Million Castle Investments
Limited (“Million Castle”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Chongging Project”) (“Chongging Project
Disposal”) on 27th October, 2015. Million Castle indirectly held
25% interests in a property project located at Chongging, the
PRC, known as The Coronation. Details of the Chongqing Project
Disposal are set out in Note 41(a).

The amount represented a loss on the Silvercord Disposal on
13th January, 2015. Silvercord Group held the property known as
Silvercord in Hong Kong. Details of the Silvercord Disposal are set
out in Note 41(d).

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Value Eight Limited (“Value
Eight"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Moon Ocean Group”) (“Moon Ocean
Disposal”) on 31st October, 2014. Moon Ocean Group held
certain plots of land in Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC (“Macau"). Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal are set
out in Note 41(e).

The amount represented underprovision in rental guarantee
provided to the Properties Purchasers in prior years.

15.

0)

(i)

(iif)

)

)

(vi)

HtWaEREEBEFEHE @

GEE

PEMBRARZEKE N RAR=ZE—F
FEtA=THHEREEMLucky Benefit
Limited ([Lucky Benefit |) R =ER A7
(IF5=]) (BEHARARARIZEEEER
BHBRAR) 2E2HEBTRARKEESE
ZHWEBAR (FEk#Ea]) ([KEE
BHE]) -KEABEEFEMRPEKEZ
MHIER  RBRES « RN EE « #E
EENEEESZUALNTEEBLENR
& (EFER T XMFE27 — MFE (i) ) ° A EBIA
B &2 BHIINM 4 (D) -

HENBRARZWENKANR_T—AF
+ A+ 1 A HEXREE R Asian East Limited
(TAsian East |) (AARz —HEE2EH
EWBRAR) 22 HEBTRAREHEAR
Al (7 [onefE @ ) ([Onei & ) © One
EEFBEMNNEEZL BThe ONEZ W%~
Oneth & Z s 1B EFIRA K FF41(C) °

HE—FMMBARIZHEZNKRKERZ
ZT-—AFT+AZTEtEEHEAREER
Million Castle Investments Limited ( [ Million
Castle]) (ARmz—EEE2EHEN
BRra)za2BPEBaRA(EEEE])
(TEEBEREE]) - Million CastlefEi 55
—BURFEEEZAHEREZYMEIE
B 2250% e - EETEE HE 2 FIBEIRN
Bi5E41(a) »

REDER-_ZE—AF—AT=A%sH
EXERE - RafERBEUREEL R
BROZWE - RSHE ZFBHINK
T41(d) °

HEHBARZKEIRAR=-_Z—N
FHA=+—HHEEAREERValue Eight
Limited ( [Value Eight]) (A2 7]z —FEfE
BErEBAWNBRAR) 22 BETHRA
MEWE A (4% [Moon OceantE )
([Moon Oceanti&]) > Moon Oceans [
BAMNFERPIFRITERE (DRF]) 2
E T84 > Moon Ocean H & 2~ #1557
N EZAIOR

FIEDLERBEFERMEERAIEMHAE
SREARZBEHTE -

“E-LEFHR EASXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

16. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine

(2014: nine) Directors were as follows:

mEMBRRME

16. EEM €

ENSENTARES (Z2—0F: LG5
BzskEMMEMT :

2015 2014
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefit Salaries benefit
and other scheme and other scheme
Fee emoluments contributions Total Fee  emoluments  contrbutions Total
HeR BAEA EE RINER
ok 7 Ht & B ag we Ethile HE L a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER TR TR ThEL ThL ThT ThT
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung ~ BI2 %4
(note (i)) GEO) - - - - - 3,677 4 3,681
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai BleErs
(note (i)) GEIO) 50 14,152 15 14217 75 12350 14 12,439
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan L
(note (iih) GEION - 817 67 884 - 694 57 751
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan BERALT
(note (iv) GEQO) - 139 1 150 - - - -
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai REEE - 2,190 189 2,319 - 2,087 180 2,267
Ms. Lui, La-kwan REELT
(note (v)) (3G - 193 6 199 - 600 17 617

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai EIEE Y 240 - - 240 240 - - 240

Mr. Chan, Kwok-wei REELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300

Ms. Phills Loh, Laiping BB &+ 300 - - 300 300 - - 300

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SEETE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300

1,190 17491 288 18,969 1215 19,408 272 20,895

Notes: B 5

(i)  Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung resigned as executive Director and (i) BBEEER_FT—NF=FTMOHEIT
chief executive officer of the Company on 14th March, 2014. RRABZHITEERITHRAE 2B -

(i) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai was (a) re-designated from non-executive (i) BISEXEQ@B-ZT—NF=ATHAE
Director to executive Director and appointed as acting chief HAARZIFRTESHERRITESL
executive officer of the Company with effect from 14th March, EZIAEERTREH  OB-Z—NF
2014; (b) re-designated from acting chief executive officer to MA+HARBBERARZERTHARA
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 15th ERITHARE  R(OB=Z—RF+—A
April, 2014; and (c) resigned as chief executive officer of the —HREEARE ZITBRE B BB
Company and re-designated from executive Director to non- TEERERINTES
executive Director with effect from 1st November, 2015.

(i) Ms. Chan, Sze-wan was appointed as chief executive officer of the (i) FMFEZzTBE_T-—HAFT—HA—HE#E
Company with effect from 1st November, 2015. EERARAZITHAER -

(iv)  Ms. Chan, Lok-wan was appointed as executive Director with vy M#EBZXTE-_ZE—AFEtA-+TtHE
effect from 27th July, 2015. BEERRATZHITES -

(v)  Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan resigned as executive Director with effect from v) PEBEXTE_Z-—hFMA_+ttHE

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

27th April, 2015.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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16. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (contd)

17.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31st

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

December, 2015 and 2014.

Details of material interests of the Directors in transactions,
arrangements or contracts entered into by subsidiaries of the

Company are disclosed in the Directors’ Report of this annual

report.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

16. EEM < =)

EEHENEE T -RFR_T-HF+Z

B=+— B S ERRERERE AR S -

17.

(a)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2014: two) was a Director(s), details of his/their

emoluments were included in Note 16. The emoluments of

the remaining four (2014: three) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

The emoluments of the four (2014: three) individuals were

within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000

2,000,001% 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T —3,000,000/% 7T
3,000,001% 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T
4,000,001 7T —4,500,000/% 7T
4,500,001/ 7T — 5,000,000/ 7T

During the years ended 31st December, 2015 and 2014, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid

individuals, or Directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

HARBZMBRARRURS HAARZ
EENERNGSZHBENAFRZE=TS
wEE

K

EEM=

HEBREHEMAL

AEBREREHEA LT —B (ZF
—OE:WMB)RES RZMEHEBE
REEE163 5 - Harp s (ZF— M4
=R)EMAL MM T

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
11,153 11,318
446 421
11,599 11,739

ZA(ZE—mF: =2)EANALZ
MetEEmT:

Number of employees
EEA™

2015 2014

N =

REBEEZT—AFR=-Z—NF+=A
=t+—HILEFEAR NEBBE LRSI
MARE B RN AR EB R AEAEE
BHEMAZAGERTMALTHES
SR

-

—F-REEHR  FA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

17. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 17 EEME @

(b) Emoluments of senior management

(b) EREEEzME

Other than the one (2014: two) senior management whose BREINRAEES FTMA LT (M
emolument(s) has/have been disclosed in the five highest 17@)) 27— % (ZZE—HF WMEZ) 5 Rk
paid individuals (Note 17(a)), the emoluments of the EREZHEIN MRRFR [ SRITH
remaining senior management whose profiles are included ABBEN ] ANRSBRERERE M
in the “Profiles of Senior Executives” section of this annual RELT

report, were within the following bands:

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

18. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Other than Hong Kong

(Overprovision) underprovision in prior years:

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Other than Hong Kong

Deferred tax:
Current year charge

Overprovision in prior years

Number of employees

EEAH
2015 2014
1,500,001 7t —2,000,000/% 7T 1 2
2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000 7T 1 -
18. FIEHAX
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FH# T FHET
B
= ERiE
BAFEH 112,077 152,687
BB LA R 218,050 65,490
330,127 218,177
BAFE (BEEE) BETR:
BEMNGEH 399 270
BB AN @ (16,482) 14,293
(16,083) 14,563
RIEFIE -
AEFEFET M 162,351 23,126
BEFERERE - @)
162,351 23,119
476,395 255,859

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for PRC subsidiaries are calculated at PRC Enterprise Income Tax
rate of 25% (2014: 25%). Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, included in the
deferred tax charge for the year was an amount of approximately
HK$99,000 in respect of the Silvercord Group where the relevant
deferred tax liabilittes have been presented as liabilities directly

associated with assets classified as held for sale.

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

18. FTBFHBAX @

BEFEBHIBIERNFE 2 HTERREN
B FE165% (ZE—HF:165%)5tE -
EWNBARZHEACEMSHDIEPEME
FrigBi& 2500 ( Z & —V04 : 250 ) 51 & «
BEREEEZBIENREAR AR ZE
TR ETE-

HE-Z-RAF+-RA=+—RHIFERAZE
ERIES HBERARRSREZ 25 4999,000
B HERZEENIRRER 2N EN S
FIFEHEZEERRMBEZaE-

REEZRERXHREEAE2ZERGHREZ
BB ADE MR

2015 2014
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TER THEx

Profit before tax FR 7% Al A 8,196,126 9,008,758
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate & & FIEHi K £ 16.5%

of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZE—M%F:16.5%)

AEZHEA 1,352,361 16.5 1,486,445 165

Tax effect of share of results of BEHe RERL

associates BB E (107,201) (1.3) (30,910) (0.3)
Tax effect of income not taxable BB S EARBMAZ

for tax purposes Mz 2 (947,194) (11.6) (1,400,091) (15.5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BRI E S AR 2

for tax purposes Mz e 263,732 3.2 146,469 1.6
Tax effect on accelerated accounting B WBEERE (REHE) 2

depreciation over tax depreciation MEEHFTEERRBIEZ

previously over (not) provided BB E 577 - (6,810) (0.1
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERRAAERZ

not recognised HBER (39,708) (0.5) (31,264) (0.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FHERZFKEEZHETE 46,500 0.6 64,627 0.7
(Overprovision) underprovision in BEFE (BEEE)

prior years BETR (16,083) (0.2) 14,556 0.2
Effect of different tax rates of HEMREEREE

subsidiaries operating MEAREMR

in other jurisdictions TRAREzZE (76,589) (0.9) 12,837 0.1
Tax charge for the year AEEHRBELH 476,395 5.8 255,859 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

19. DIVIDENDS

(@) Final dividend for 2014 paid on 5th June, 2015  (a)
of HK1 cent (2013: HK50 cents) per share

(b) Interim dividend for 2015 paid on
14th September, 2015 of HK30 cents

(2014: HK30 cents) per share

(c) Special interim dividend declared on
16th December, 2014 and paid on
13th January, 2015 of HK$4 per share

(d) Special interim dividend paid on

15th July, 2015 of HK$2.6 per share

(e) Special interim dividend paid on

14th September, 2015 of HK$1.2 per share

(f)  Special interim dividend paid on

31st October, 2014 of HK$2.55 per share

Total dividends paid

—

mEMBRRME

19. K&

RIZ-RAFRXARABIRNZ

T-EREBRE SR

(b)) RZEZ-RFAATEBDIRN

—T-RFFHRSER30
A (ZZ—m4 3008 (0)

(0 RZE-—OF+ZA+ BEIK

YR-ZB-AF-A+=HE
IR 2 55 R B R A 4B T

(d) RZFE-RFtA+HABRN

ZERIh R EEMR2.6/8 T

() R-E—REAATMAEEEN

ZERITR R EERI2BT

H m-Z-MFE+A=+—H

2558 T

2R B %R

On 21st December, 2015, the board of Directors declared a

conditional special interim dividend of HK$2 per share, which is

conditional upon completion of the Pioneer Time Disposal.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the completion of

the Pioneer Time Disposal took place on 15th January, 2016 and

the payment of the conditional special interim dividend was made

on 20th January, 2016.

Final dividend for the year of HK1 cent (2014: HK1 cent) per share
has been proposed by the board of Directors and is subject to

shareholders' approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Bk 25 R HRE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAER FAT
19,076 953,810
572,286 572,286
7,630,476 -
4,959,810 -
2,289,143 -
- 4,864,428
15,470,791 6,390,524

R_ZE—RAFE+=-—A=-+—H B2k
WaEEEZERPEREER2E T BF
Pioneer Timei MR 1& F AI{EE ©

RIREEIRTE > Pioneer TimeHER ZZT — X
F—A+RBAREK TR T —NE—
AR AT B 11 2 R 51 BARR 2

m
—+

EEgRZRTRAFEZRAR SR IB

—E-mE L) BFRERRARAFZ
FEERREF RS LHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz

20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. BRE A

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RAREAEANBEZBRERARBERNT
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BIBATEEE
data:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Eamings: B

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners

of the Company

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic and diluted

earnings per share

FEERERNNEERN 2 AT

AAREBANEBGEARFEZ
i Al 7,727,208 8,744,927

Number of shares
BHEE

2015 2014
R 8iE
AEEREAREERA
il

¥ IR A 9 35
1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079

Diluted eamings per share for the years ended 31st December, HEZZ—AFER-ZZ—NOF+ZA=1+—
2015 and 2014 were the same as the basic earnings per share as HIEFE AR UEBREER R EAMmFE

there were no diluting events during both years.

ZEREERNESRERRFER -

"

—E-EFER  EABEE

]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

At 1st January, 2014

Additions

Construction costs incurred

Overprovision of construction costs
incurred in prior years

Transfer from properties under
construction at cost to completed
properties at fair value

Transfer to property, plant and
equipment (Note 22)

Transfer from stock of properties

Transfer to assets classified as held
for sale

Exchange adjustments

Increase in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
— unrealised

Disposals

At 31st December, 2014

Additions

Construction costs incurred

Transfer to stock of properties

Transfer from properties under
construction at cost to completed
properties at fair value

Transfer to assets classified as held
for sale

Exchange adjustments

(Decrease) increase in fair value
recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
- realised
— unrealised

Disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 41(b), (c))

Disposal

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2015

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

R-ZZ—-ME—-A—H
NE

EEZBERA
BEFERENNREREE

emmAz By R BEs
BRVEZERME

HBRENE BEREE
(MizE22)

RmEFEER

BRENABELEZEE

Eiﬁ%
REA2ERERRER
ARRERI

X873
e

—mE+=-A=+—H
nE
EAZBRERAE
BEREVEFE
mRAz B RBEEE
BRFEZERNE

BREJARBFHEZEE

B 3
REAZERERREDRZ
AFE R D)

-BER

—REHR
HENB AR

(MizE41(b) ()
&

fREE
R-ZB-EF+ZR=1+—-H

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5
—RE+-A=+—AILEE

21. REWEE

Fair value Cost
NVE B
Properties Properties
Completed under under
properties  construction  construction Total
358/ E e Lk IS EEhyE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER TET TET
40,506,665 534,000 4,511,949 45,552,614
54,457 - - 54,457
- 33,790 934,413 968,203
(2,075) - - (2,075)
128,768 - (128,768) -
- - (1,003,774) (1,003,774)
18,926 - - 18,926
(9,295,080) - - (9,295,080)
(287,565) - (157,137) (444,702)
3,619,014 65,210 - 3,684,224
(3,870) - - (3,870)
34,739,240 633,000 4,156,683 39,528,923
19,203 = = 19,203
= 95,570 124,231 219,801
- (958,000) - (958,000)
840,901 - (840,901) -
(8,657,600) - = (8,657,600)
(218,246) - (4,410) (222,656)
(4,860) = (4,860)
4,464,654 229,430 = 4,694,084
(9,171,029) = (3,435,603)  (12,606,632)
(71,000) = = (71,000)
21,941,263 = = 21,941,263




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes (including those
classified as held for sale) are measured using the fair value model

and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Property valuations as at 31st December, 2015 and 2014 were
carried out by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.l. Appraisals”) and
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers Appraisal”),
independent qualified professional valuers, in respect of the Group's
investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the
investment property in the United Kingdom, the valuations as at
31st December, 2015 and 2014 were carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), another independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
discussed with the independent qualified professional valuers about
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for Level 3 fair

value measurements.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at 31st
December, 2015 are signed by the respective director of B.l.
Appraisals, Vigers Appraisal and Peak Vision Appraisals, who are
members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed
in accordance with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2012 Edition”
published by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or “The
RICS Valuation — Professional Standards January 2014" published
by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

21. REWE @)

BRBEXANBAARRESHEREEZ
AEBMEYMERER (BRI AFELEZY
F)DEBAFEREAGE XD BRARY
FIREME-

B AEREEGHEMREBBEIBRFEERR
A (MR BB AT ) RV B & E sT (B R
BERAF (BRG] ERAEER T
—AFER-_E—NF+_A=+—BUuREE
RABAEZIREMEEITYEMLE - BT
REBZIEEME EMEBRS —BUEER
BFEMEERRETEERAA (DREFTE])
RZE—RAFR-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H
HETTIRE o E AT BB 7h A a1 AR RE b BE R 48

RBEMR AEBECEREERBIAERE
EMEMTRAEBEAF AR FEFEZ
EERM R 28 -

RZZE—RAF+_A=+—RH REWEH
B E A RABEER G - Bs HTaE i ROR 855
BB ER (RABTENEMBEEER
HERFFAEMBEEE) BB -RFMHE
TESTERBREMBGARM 2 [EER A
B MR T —ZFRA] R HERE
FRIERBEMEM Z [RICSHE-BXRE
“E-mE—A) | #Te
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at the end of each reporting period based on its
market value and by adopting investment method, and/or direct
comparison method, as appropriate. The investment method relying
on the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current
term leases, term yield rate, assumptions about rental income from
future reversion leases in light of current market conditions, the
assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by
the valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors,
including term yield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such yield
rates were adopted after considering the investment sentiments
and market expectations of properties of similar nature. Direct
comparison method assumes each of these properties is capable of
being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available

in the relevant markets.

For the Group's investment properties under construction at fair
value, their fair values are determined by direct comparison method
by making reference to comparable transactions as available in the
relevant markets. It has also taken into account the construction
costs that will be expended to complete the developments to reflect
the development potential of the properties and the quality of the
completed developments. The key assumptions include present
value of completed properties, period of development, outstanding
construction costs, finance costs, other professional costs, risk
associated with completing the projects and generating income after

completion and investors’ return as a percentage of value or cost.

For the Group's investment properties under construction at cost,
when their fair values were not reliably measurable, they were
measured at cost, less any impairment loss, until the earlier of the
date of construction is completed and the date at which fair value

become reliably measurable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

21.

mEMBRRME

BREWE @

BEREWMEZ N TERSREHRBIEET
B WERWREER, RERLEE (RER
BRME) MEREE - REEXTIEREEARL
HEBWA - WIAHSBEMERREE 2 Bt R
— R ERRBEE  ARKREBSER
BEREVMEZAFERR (RHBE)RAB
HOBMRZEASRA BHBRZzEHE K
REFMAHAREFHOMSHERAZ
BRE BREEAXRERORE - REFTTE
HERZR (BREEHHR 2@ H®E R EF DR
R ) B 78 F i (B B 4F L 4 i - B RE [ 3R R 0 4%
MBEEERRERANTSEHBLUEEY X
2B BEELBARRZENES BT NA
MREHER2RE@EM S LA B Z

EEE-

RARERATEZBEZTRENENS &
REEDLBERM S LMEZ A HERR
HNBELBEETE - A FETEARRBTK
BREB B BERAE  ARRYIE 2 %
RENNEREBEKEAZEE - BREBRE
EERYMEZRE BRY REIZERAE-
MHER HUMEXEM HEEKEBRABZ
R - DA B SE PR 1R TS M A BB 3 [0 A 1
BIRAZBANLL -

RARERRAZ BEPREYMEMS X
R EEER S EE R - BIIR AR AR AR
BEEFE BEETKERZ AAFERER
ASEMEE B (LNBREERE) BIE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 21. RENE
The following tables analysed the investment properties which TEARBERRUQNFEAZE 2R EYWE
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period Z=WMARE (ERABBMBRELELE3
into the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value 5 [AFEEFZE]) DT R E3E#E— 25
Measurement” which is further elaborated in Note 3. it

At 31st December, 2015
R=Z2-AF+=A=+—-H
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
DNEE &% -t F=
HK$000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$000
THERT THERT THER THERT

Recurring fair value REMEALENE:
measurements:
Completed properties (note) SERACE (H3E) 30,598,863 - 2,016,554 28,582,309
At 31st December, 2014
RZZE-—WFE+-A=+—H
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
~NEE FE—R E F=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TR TET
Recurring fair value REMNFETE:
measurements:
Completed properties (note) SERCE (H5E) 44,127,520 - 2,266,656 41,860,864
Properties under construction % 633,000 - - 633,000
44,760,520 - 2,266,656 42,493,864
Note: Included those classified as held for sale of approximately MizE: BiE9 K% =4 48,657600,000% T
HK$8,657,600,000 (2014: HK$9,388,280,000) which were — T — Y4 :9,388,280,000/% 7T ) A F
categorised as Level 3 fair value measurement. Bt B2l RFHEHEZYE-
Certain investment properties located in Hong Kong and Mainland DERE_RAFEFEZETUREER
China categorised as Level 2 fair value measurement are TR AREREMEAERELBOAEE - 2Z 7
determined using direct comparison method with reference to the HUEBMEZSRERE MEBRCHEUR
recent selling prices of comparable properties on a price per square MEMYMEZMARGCE BT TREE-

foot basis which are adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations

of the related properties.
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Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on
investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value

measurement at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Properties held for investment
in Hong Kong
UREBZBIEREME

Properties under construction
in Hong Kong
AREEZEZRNE

Properties held for investment
in the United Kingdom
URREZBIEREME

Properties held for investment
in Mainland China

URFEAEZHERENE

Total
ot

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation
of rental income potential, nature of the property and prevailing
market condition. Market rent per square foot is the market rent
taking into account the direct comparable market transactions to the

related properties. Estimated development costs are the costs to be

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Fair value

ARE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
23,156,440 35,230,700
- 633,000
4,037,118 4,720,079
1,388,751 1,910,085
28,582,309 42,493,864

expended to complete the properties.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the
reversionary yield and the estimated development costs, while

positively correlated to the market rent per square foot.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

mEMBRRME

21. REWE @

Valuation techniques
ER

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

BERIBERREZZAG

Direct comparison method
BERLEE

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

ERLBERREEZAG

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

BERIBERREZZAG

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

ATE

Significant unobservable inputs
EAFTBREE

(1) Reversionary yield; and
EROHE R

(2) Market rent per square foot
BYIFRzmHAE

Estimated development costs

that 2 ERMA

(1) Reversionary yield; and
EHREHE: R
Market rent per square foot

¥RRzMHEE

2

=

a

=

Reversionary yield; and
EROHRE R

(2) Market rent per square foot
BYIFRzmHAE

RBEHADEAE=RATEN B RE
Wy HERER 2 RITR T BRE Y 2
m

Range
&

2.25% to 5.00%
(2014: 4.00% to
6.50%)

225BZ5008
(ZZ—me:
400EZ650E)

4.50% to 4.75%
(2014: 4.50% to
5.00%)

450B 24758
(ZF—mfF:
450BE500E)

7.50% to 9.00%
(2014: 5.50% to
9.00%)

750E £9.00E
(ZZ—me:
550E£9.008)

EREHmETIF LB EESRAERL Y
EUERERTRAGHZEER -FFHTRZH
SRS RERME DS HEERLR
RHEHZMGEE B ZBERKATIRT
XD 55 8 ST 2 PR ©

BRERORELEE 2 BERAA
b e F I RzZmSHEERKEL-
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 21.

Movements of investment properties which are categorised as Level

BREWE @

PERE=MATEFBZERENERNEN
BHmT

3 fair value measurement during the year are as follows:

At 1st January

Additions

Construction costs incurred

Overprovision of construction costs incurred
in prior years

Transfer from properties under construction
at cost to completed properties at fair value

Transfer (to) from stock of properties

Exchange adjustments

(Decrease) increase in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
— realised
— unrealised

Disposals of subsidiaries

Disposals

Carrying amounts
At 31st December

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurement during the years ended 31st December, 2015 and
2014 and no change in valuation techniques used in prior years. In

estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use equates

to the highest and best use of the properties.

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
m—H—8 42,493,864 38,811,870
RNE 14,391 12,679
BEHEZBREKAE 95,570 33,790
B FEREN B
- (2,075)
KAz By EEEE
BN FEZ BRI 840,901 128,768
EE(Z)EBMEFE (958,000) 18,926
P W A% (216,645) (287,778)
REE2ERSREERZ
DA O 2) 180
—B#R (4,860) -
— KRB 4,947,397 3,781,554
BB A (18,559,309) -
k= (71,000) (3,870)
BREE
R+=—A=+-—H 28,582,309 42,493,864

—E-hEFRH

4+
it

REE_E—hAFER_ZFT—NF+_A=1+—
HIEFER B=RAFEFEZREMEL
M A DB AT 2 A (E B B S AT
WM EEE - NMESMECATE WEZE
AARERE&Ea R&ERR-

A

[

£

]
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22. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2.ME¥E - BREREKHE
Hotel Furnitures, Yachts and
Leasehold landand fixtures and motor
land Buildings buildings equipment vehicles Total
BEELE B
HELH g7 kiEF RERRE ERRAE ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAT FAL FAL FAL FAL
Cost 2
At Tst January, 2014 R-E-ME—F—A 445430 98,970 - 65,508 110,476 720,384
Additions NE 28,899 5,036 - 192,348 14,577 240,860
Transfer from investment properties feREmEER (1)
(Note 21) 12,671 40,179 950,924 - - 1,003,774
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale  BEZET| AfELEZ B E
(Note 12) (Mzx12) - - - (37) - (37)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 41(e)) HEMBAR (M) - - - (381) (580) (961)
Disposals/witten off HE /s - - - (2214) (8,044) (10,258)
Exchange adjustments EHAE 158 28 - (503) (195) (512)
At 31st December, 2014 RZE-ME+=A=1—H 487,158 144,213 950,924 254,121 116,234 1,953,250
Additions NE = = 33,859 10,198 5,101 49,158
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale  #EZ | AFEHE 2 EE
(Note 12) (Ms2) (a45,430) (98,970) = (120) o (544,520)
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 41(b), (¢)) ~ HEMBAR (MzE41(b) () (12,655) (40,127) (983,521) (207,801) (5.433) (1,249,537)
Disposals/written off HE /s - - - (6,577) (4,826) (11,403)
Exchange adjustments ER A% (1,629) (333) (1,262) (370) (280) (3,874)
At 31st December, 2015 R-Z-RF+-A=+-AH 27,404 4,783 - 50,051 110,796 193,074
Depreciation &
At st January, 2014 RZE-RE-A—AH 9,463 22,800 - 46,003 92,783 171,049
Charge for the year KEEHE 1636 3122 2273 7169 9,181 23,381
Capitalised to stock of properties held for sale &7 A3 {EL & 2 MEFEER - - - 149 - 149
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale  BEZET| AfELEZEE
(Note 12) (Mzx12) - - - (35) - (35)
Elimination upon disposal of subsidiaries & M B2 R1BS 484
(Note 41(e)) (MiE41(e)) - - - (225) (47) (696)
Elimination upon disposals/written off HE /MR - - - (752) (7817) (8,569)
Exchange adjustments R AR (4) (5) (22) (221 (104) (356)
At 31st December, 2014 RZZE-RF+=A=1—H 11,095 25,917 2,251 52,088 93,572 184,923
Charge for the year TEEHE 1,686 2,906 16,279 24,756 10,205 55,832
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale SR Z 5| AR ELE 2 EE
(Note 12) (Mzx12) (11,493) (27,416) - (26) - (38,935)
Elimination upon disposals of subsidiaries & fit B2 RIE £ 8
(Note 41(b), (0)) (HE410)- ) (a22) (1.210) (18,530) (28,399) (923) (49,486)
Elimination upon disposals/written off HE /e 4 - - - (4.74) (4,808) (9,549)
Exchange adjustments E R (42) (9) - 10 (240) (251)
At 315t December, 2015 WZE-RF+=A=1+—H 822 188 - 43,718 97,806 142,534
Carrying amounts REE
At 31st December, 2015 R-Z-E%+=-A=1+-A 26,622 4,595 - 6,333 12,990 50,540
At 31st December, 2014 RZE-WE+=A=1—H 476,063 118,296 948,673 202,633 22,662 1,768,327
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. ML EE
Trading and
exchange
rights Trademark Total
SERESE B Fok o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TET
Cost A
At st January, 2014, R-ZE—N&E—F—AH-
31st December, 2014 and “2-NUE+-_A=+—HAK
31st December, 2015 —E-RF+ZA=+—H 2,705 14,300 17,005

Amortisation and impairment B RRE

At Tst January, 2014, R-_ZE-WmE—-HA—H"
31st December, 2014 and —E-ME+ZA=1+—HRK
31st December, 2015 “E-AFt+-A=1+—H 2,705 14,300 17,005
Carrying amounts fREE
At 31st December, 2015 R-ZZE-AF+=-HA=1+—H - - -
At 31st December, 2014 RZE—NOF+=A=+—H - - -
The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such BV EEABREEBFE WAERE
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five RAFHH-
years.
GOODWILL 24, B
HK$'000
FAT
Cost %N
At st January, 2014, 31st December, 2014 RZE—NF—A—H ZE—NEF+=-A=+—H
and 31st December, 2015 r—E—RAF+-_A=+—H 370,686
Impairment WAE
At 1st January, 2014, 31st December, 2014 R-ZE—NE—fF—B - —T—MNE+-F=+—H
and 31st December, 2015 RZZ-—RF+-_HA=+—H 47,748
Carrying amounts BREIE
At 31st December, 2015 R-ZZBE-HEF+ZA=+—8H 322,938

At 31st December, 2014 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 322,938

"
W

“E-LEFHR  EABEE

]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

24. GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
certain business combinations has been allocated to the Group's
CGUs, which in all cases were determined to be investment
properties owned by subsidiaries. The carrying amount of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) was allocated to CGUs with

the following places of operation:

United Kingdom B
Hong Kong E0

The recoverable amount for the CGU operated in the United
Kingdom has been determined based on value-in-use calculation
using five-year cash flow projections approved by the Directors. The
pre-tax discount rate of approximately 7.74% (2014: 7.85%) per
annum for the United Kingdom property business was applied to
the cash flow projection when assessing the recoverability of the
CGU containing goodwill. Full impairment for goodwill of the other

businesses in Hong Kong was recognised in prior years.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of the cash flow projections. Key assumptions
included gross margin and discount rates which are determined by
the Directors based on past performance and its expectation for
market development. The values assigned to key assumptions are
based on historical experience, current market condition, approved
forecasts and consistent with external information sources. Gross
margin is budgeted gross margin. The discount rates used were
determined with reference to weighted average cost of capital of
similar companies in the industry reflected specific risks relating
to the industry. The Directors believe that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their respective aggregate
recoverable amount. During the years ended 31st December, 2015
and 2014, the Directors determined that there was no impairment

of the goodwill.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5
—RE+-A=+—AILEE

24. & ()

BERENE

RETREAR RETEBEHELEZHE
ENREAEEZRSELEMN REZETF
REBMNBARMBEA ZREME HEEE
B(NERRBEREBE) P EETRKEEHE
ZHREELEBM:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTAT
322,938 322,938
322,938 322,938

REBLE 7 BSELEMZEHE A lKE
SHEIORBEESHECATRSRETA I
LEFRAEAAELIET ENHEREZHE
SEABNZAINOEER EARRESRE
%E°E\J’§i%%%ﬁ%w}ﬁfﬂﬁfﬁw’wmr

—MOF 785 )t HE MR BB HAM
ﬁ%ZFﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ{ﬂEziEﬂ@EﬂEEEA TEE
TR -

REATRERAS R EZABREMAFT - E
BREEFHEFREBARRLAHMSER
BREE ZEMRHRE T BRRAMAEE
VABTE &5 & AT TR S S HEE TR S IKE -
W FEINPER KR - EFERTGFEEERN X

MATERA 2 SR E T2 MENFR R R 2 h0HE
FHERKAETE - W RREBITEARBZEFE
Rk -EBR2EE FAZERIAUELAE LR
ZEREH IS HER e EL B RAERR
BHASELSEM 2 AHATKRESEARE -
BE_Z-hFR_ZF-HUF+_-_A=+—
BUEEER EXFERELERERSE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

PSR MG

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z - —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. Bt A TR

Cost of investment in associates:

— Unlisted —JEET

Share of post-acquisition profits and

other comprehensive income, Hip 2wl
net of dividends received BB WAL B

The Company provided corporate guarantee to secure bank loans
granted to its associates in prior years. The fair value of the financial
guarantee contract at initial recognition was determined by Norton
Appraisals Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), independent qualified
professional valuer, and it was recognised as interests in associates
and financial guarantee liabilities in the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31st December,
2015 are set out in Note 50.

The investment properties held by the Group's principal associates
were revalued as at 31st December, 2015 by B.l. Appraisals. B.l.
Appraisals continues to adopt investment method and/or direct
comparison method as the valuation methodologies. The valuation
methods and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair

values of investment properties are detailed in Note 21.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

BEB SRR

BEWBEREN R

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAT
1,204,413 283,696
2,566,063 2,201,071
3,770,476 2,484,767

ARBRBEFERFARERESEBE
RAERRITERZER - WHEREREON S
BRAZATERBLIABERERMGHEMEN
BIRFF AR AR ([ EHEEFGEEE
WERARE 266 MBI MER AR A
BeErrgaE I BERAG:

AEBR-_ZE—HAF+-_A=+—HzZEZ
B2 N R FFIB E I R B FE50 ©

AEBTIEBERRZREMECHRBE
BAER —_ZT-—AF+_A=1—HETE
il o RAB BB ST ii‘%m%&é&&/‘iﬁ&
HWEERMEN E BRRARETREMER
BZEETER T ZRRNM 215 -

PrB B E R R AR S AP BR N ANAR & B 75
HERA-

4+
it

—ER-AFFR A

[

£

]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (contd) 25.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

material associates, Get Wisdom Limited and Finedale Industries

BENTIREZE @)

AEESEHENF (REERATDAMESRE

XBERAR) ZMBERBEZ BT -

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Limited, is set out below.

Get Wisdom Limited

Non-current assets FERBNEE

Current assets MENVE B

Current liabilities mEa &

Non-current liabilities EmBAE

Net assets AEFE

Revenue WA

Profit for the year AN E s

Other comprehensive expenses for the year RNEFHEM P E X

Total comprehensive income for the year AERZTHERHERE

Reconciliation of the summarised financial /N s TR
information presented to the carrying B 75 & R it 9 R

amount of its interest in the associate:

Net assets at 1st January

R—RA—BZEERE

Profit for the year AN S
Other comprehensive expenses for the year RNEFHEM P E X
Capital contribution BARFE

Net assets at 31st December

Interest held by the Group

Group's interest in the associate and

the carrying amount

R+ZA=+—HZEE

AEBHA 2w

AEBzBERRERR
FRmE

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BEERALT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,397,376 2,650,400
- 504,099
(6.688) (992,019)
- (1,438,379)
3,390,688 724,101
117,567 167,302
1,039,567 53,909
(214,414) (9,251)
825,153 44,658
724,101 679,443
1,039,567 53,909
(214,414) (9,251)
1,841,434 -
F1E 3,390,688 724,101
50% 50%
1,695,344 362,051




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (contd) 25. BEE N E R (m)

Finedale Industries Limited EHEEFRAT
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FET
Non-current assets FERBNEE 3,172,000 2,998,000
Current assets MEEE 243,841 173,168
Current liabilities mBaE (48,322) (45,772)
Net assets EEFE 3,367,519 3,125,396
Revenue KA 86,071 83,992
Profit for the year ANEE v A 242,123 301,086
Total comprehensive income for the year REEE2EKELRE 242,123 301,086
Reconciliation of the summarised financial BN Rl s < BRI (B B
information presented to the carrying B IE B R $1 B
amount of its interest in the associate:
Net assets at 1st January R—A—BZEEFE 3,125,396 2,824,310
Profit for the year REE 242,123 301,086
Net assets at 31st December R+-—A=+—BZ2EEFE 3,367,519 3,125,396
Interest held by the Group RNEBB B2 ER 33.33% 33.33%
Group's interest in the associate and REBZEE AR R
the carrying amount BRTEAE 1,122,506 1,041,799

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
unaudited financial statements of the associates which were
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs adjusted for the differences
arising from accounting policies and different financial year end

dates between the Group and the associates.

—E-hEFRH

-

EA

A EE R RBREE 2 QR 2 KRR EAZ Y5 W
KRB 228 REPBRRREEUBRS
R TRy ok N A RN TR
REMBFLAREHBERNRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Aggregate financial information of associates
material:

Group's share of results for the year
Group's share of other comprehensive

expenses for the year

Group's share of total comprehensive

(expenses) income for the year

Group's aggregate interests in these associates $$7§A§Z%

and the carrying amounts

—hETZA=tHILFE

(Cont'd) 25.

that are individually not

AEBBIEARFEEE
AEBBAERFE
H 2@

$EE%E$¢E

/\_JZ
2R IRMEE

Included in share of results of associates for the year ended

31st December, 2015 mainly comprised share of an associate's
gain on disposal of subsidiaries (net of tax) of approximately
HK$514,060,000. The associate (50% interest) disposed of the
company that ultimately held the office building namely Platinum
located at Shanghai, the PRC (“Shanghai Platinum Disposal”). The
Shanghai Platinum Disposal was completed on 30th September,

2015.

26. ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

Interest-bearing advances to associates

Interest-free advances to associates

26.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

The advances to associates are unsecured. As at 31st December,
2015, for the advances to associates of approximately
HK$55,482,000 (2014: HK$756,960,000), the Group will not
demand for repayment within one year from the end of the
reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-
current. As at 31st December, 2014, the remaining amount of
approximately HK$997,681,000 was expected to be repayable in
or after 2016 and the amount is therefore shown as non-current.
The interest-bearing advances to associates bear interest at the
prevailing market rates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

BENTIREZE @)

ERIZFER 2B & R BEE

M

BB B

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
49,214 60,015

(73,331) (12,247)
(24,117) 47,768
952,626 1,080,917

HE-_T—RAF+-A=+—HILFEBEHLYH
EAREETERERE—MBEAREH
HEE ATz e (BRELE) £514,060,000
BT o B2 R E) (1550008 25 ) H & &R
BURTPEEBEEFTEREZHAEZR
AI(TEEBFHEEE]) - EEHREERT
—HFhLA=Z+HZ=EK-

(16 2 7 500

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

48,089 67,443

7,393 1,687,198

55,482 1,754,641

BB D ARAA R R -0
F+-B=+—8" iﬂﬁwm 215 %

55,482,000/ 7T ( = P4 4F : 756,960,000
%ﬁ%$%s\ﬁﬁxwﬁ¢%$i?
fﬁmgﬁvl%aﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ#mﬁﬁ
HEoRZE—NOMFF+=RA=+— E BREEA
997,681 ooo,arcz KRBFBHR —FT—NFk
ZBEE Ikﬁxﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬁ
BN BREAER 2 MISEERN X
B
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Unlisted equity securities:
— Incorporated in Hong Kong (note (i))

— Incorporated elsewhere

Club debentures 2EES

Total HEE

Analysed for reporting purpose as: EmERBRZ DT
Non-current JERBEIME
Current MENIEE

Notes:

(i)

(notes (i), (iii) and (iv))

At 31st December, 2015, included in available-for-sale
investments in an unlisted equity security incorporated in Hong
Kong was the investment in New Hong Kong Tunnel with carrying
amount of approximately HK$67,625,000. The franchise rights
held by New Hong Kong Tunnel will expire in 2016. The Directors
expect that the investment in New Hong Kong Tunnel would then
be realised and the amount is therefore shown as current asset.

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group has invested
approximately US$83,625,000 in an exempted limited
partnership formed under the Exempted Limited Partnership
Law (Revised) of the Cayman lIslands (“Cayman Islands
Partnership”). The Cayman lIslands Partnership is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment loss (if any) because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
consider that its fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
Directors considered that no impairment loss was required for the
investment in the Cayman Islands Partnership at 31st December,
2015.

The Cayman Islands Partnership has a term of ten years from the
date of initial closing. Purposes of the Cayman Islands Partnership
are to achieve exceptional returns by acquiring, holding and
disposing of equity, equity-related securities, high-yield structured
financial products, independently or with others, in companies
with various operations or such other activities.

EETRAES

—REB MRS (H3EG))

—RE AR MR
GEION@YIO)

=
w

)

(i)

27. HFERE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
68,834 93,805
725,859 128,847
794,693 222,652
16,581 16,581
811,274 239,233
743,649 239,233
67,625 -
811,274 239,233

R-ZBE—RAF+-_A=1+—8 #HERE
ZIELTRAZESFFBERESFMARL
BB E - EIRM{E 446762500008
oM BRBERAZEEENEFR SR
CE-AFER-ERTERHEEREY
BEBRE M EE B ZREIER
BEE -

R-E—RE+-_A=1+—H0 r£EC#
B #83,625000F TR —HiLHESHEE
BEBRAEBDEE (KIEF]) Rz ERH
SEREELE(HEREABLE]) -
HRETHEREABLEZABEATE
BAREE s BREAZBEERE EERA
Reer st EH A FE i BHEHE
ABCERKAINRERERSRE (InE)
ANE-R-_Z—HF+_A=+—"H E=F
REBZHESHEABLECRERESES
R R EEE -

REREARLEMVTHIERERHL+
F-HERBAELCEZENRERBEY
FEEMARBE FHHERBESEED
ZRBZEA -BABEESIEREZ
EHUMBERIEMZZHURISEE
B B 3R o

“E-LEFHR EASXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(iii)

)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group has invested
approximately RMB48,205,000 in an exempted limited
partnership registered under the Partnership Enterprise Law
of the PRC ("PRC Partnership”). Prior to the Chengdu Project
Disposal, the Group had further contributed approximately
RMB251,795,000 to the PRC Partnership.

The PRC Partnership has a term of ten years from the date of
initial closing. Purposes of the PRC Partnership are to generate
long-term capital appreciation by acquiring, holding and disposing
of equity, equity-related securities, independently or with others,
in established or less established companies (or their parents)
with substantial operations in the PRC; or such other activities as
deems necessary.

The PRC Partnership is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss (if any) because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the Directors consider that
its fair value cannot be measured reliably. During the year ended
31st December, 2014, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$12,983,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the investment in the PRC
Partnership. The PRC Partnership was deconsolidated to the
Group upon completion of the Chengdu Project Disposal on 30th
July, 2015 (Note 41(b)).

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group subscribed 10,000 shares
in a private investment fund at US$1,000 each, the fund and its
management company are exempted companies with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

The investment is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
loss (if any) because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the Directors consider that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Directors considered that
no impairment loss was required for the investment at 31st
December, 2015 (2014: nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

mEMBRRME

BisE: ()

(iii)

)

R-ZZE—NFEF+_A=+—H A&£EEP
REH ANR 48,205,000 FHA E
XXM ERECERABRLE([HE
ARLE]D) - RAHBEELEN ~A&H
RPBEERECEEE T FTENARY
251,795,000 °

hRIABEEMTISELERERIMTF-
TEABEEZBENRBEBBINEA M
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 B ZEZZ

27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

28.

(Cont'd)

For unlisted equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong measured
at fair values, details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in
Note 5(c).

Save as disclosed in notes (i), (i), (i) and (iv) above, certain
unlisted equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong and unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the
United States of America are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (if any) because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the Directors consider that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably. During the year
ended 31st December, 2015, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$3,899,000 (2014: nil) was recognised in relation to an
investment in unlisted equity securities incorporated in the United
States of America, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

The club debentures classified as available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any). During
the years ended 31st December, 2015 and 2014, the Directors
considered that there was no impairment of the club debentures
since the market prices less costs to sell are higher than their

carrying amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, available-for-sale investments
totaling approximately HK$742,730,000 (2014: HK$145,718,000)

were stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ADVANCES TO AN INVESTEE
COMPANY AND A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

(a) The advance made to an investee company is unsecured
and interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment
within one year and the advance is therefore shown as non-

current.

(b) The advance made to a non-controlling shareholder is
unsecured and interest-free. The Group will not demand
for repayment within one year and the advance is therefore

shown as non-current.

27.

28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

(b)

(

Pledged deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks and
other financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group. Deposits amounting to approximately
HK$237,506,000 (including assets classified as held for sale)
(2014: HK$429,689,000) have been pledged to secure
short-term borrowings and are therefore classified as current
assets. The remaining deposits amounting to approximately
HK$24,557,000 (2014: HK$438,994,000) have been
pledged to secure long-term borrowings and are therefore

classified as non-current assets.

The deposits carry interest rates at prevailing market rates.
The pledged deposits will be released upon the repayment of
relevant borrowings.

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly

amounts due from clearing house, brokers and clients.
Time deposits, bank balances and cash
The time deposits carry interests at prevailing market deposit

rates and mature within one month. The Group does not hold

collateral over the balances.

30. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Completed properties SRR
Properties under development held for sale FEHEZBRPYE

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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30. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

31.

As at 31st December, 2015, the Directors reviewed the carrying
amounts of the properties under development held for sale and the
completed properties with reference to current market situation and
the estimated selling price of the properties under development
held for sale and the completed properties provided by B.I.
Appraisals and Norton Appraisals. No impairment loss was made
during the years ended 31st December, 2015 and 2014.

All properties under development held for sale are expected to
be completed within one year (2014: with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$577,163,000 were expected to be completed

after one year).

INVESTMENTS HELD-FOR-TRADING

Listed investments: iEE:

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

The fair values of the investments held-for-trading are determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock

Exchange.

As at 31st December, 2015, listed equity securities with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$189,891,000 (2014:
HK$472,551,000) were available to be loaned to financial
institutions (2014: a financial institution) for earning lending fee
income and the same or substantially the same securities will
be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the securities pooled lending agreements. Listed
equity securities with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$142,736,000 (2014: nil) were on loan at the end of the

reporting period.

REBEB LM 2 BRAE S

30. MEEFEE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Bonds: B
Non-current EMEBEE
Current mENEE

As at 31st December, 2015, bonds with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$3,800,111,000 (2014: HK$909,309,000)
were available to be loaned to financial institutions (2014: a
financial institution) for earning lending fee income and the same
or substantially the same securities will be returned to the Group,
pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the securities
pooled lending agreements. Bonds with aggregate carrying amounts
of approximately HK$548,687,000 (2014: HK$82,956,000) were

on loan at the end of the reporting period.

Major terms of the bonds are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
US$23,000,000 2017
US$232,125,000 2018
US$34,000,000 2019
US$241,000,000 2020
US$34,195,000 2022
US$76,000,000 2023
US$70,000,000 2025
US$12,000,000 2041
US$21,000,000 2042
US$14,000,000 2043
US$10,000,000 2045
US$20,000,000 2072
US$20,000,000 2073
US$32,000,000 2075
EUR2,000,000 2075
US$455,150,000 Perpetual
SGD75,000,000 Perpetual
GBP16,000,000 Perpetual
EUR16,000,000 Perpetual
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 484 Bt 8 sR &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Cont'd)

The bonds denominated in US$ carry fixed rate range from 4.000%
to 13.250% per annum of which US$1,150,150,000 are callable,
the bond denominated in SGD carries fixed rate of 5.900% per
annum is callable, the bonds denominated in GBP carry fixed rate
range from 6.875% to 7.000% per annum are callable and the
bonds denominated in EUR carry fixed rate range from 5.125% to

12.500% per annum are callable.

The bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair values at
the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are determined by

reference to market bid prices quoted by financial institutions and

brokers.

INVENTORIES

Finished goods e
Raw materials R
Consumables SEFE M@

All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.
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2015 2014
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34. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

34. BUWERTE - 1€ - HttEWERTE
RENS A

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables U E 538 13,794 113,372
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REREAE (1,479) (1,887)

12,315 111,485

Deposits and prepayments Be RIBRAFIE 280,251 366,479

Other receivables H e kIE 7,072,207 167,000

7,364,773 644,964

Analysed for reporting purpose as: EmERBRZ DT

Non-current e B IEE 3,998,358 -

Current MENIEE 3,366,415 644,964

7,364,773 644,964

Included in trade receivables mainly comprised rental receivables
billed in advance and settlements from tenants which are expected
upon receipts of billings, properties sales proceeds receivables and

receivable from hotel operation.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements. Rental in respect of leased properties are payable in
advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle their accounts
according to the payment terms as stated in the respective

contracts.
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34. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER 34. BWHRTE - 1€ - HiEBWIRIR
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd) RFENKIE @)
The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of BESHRAZERBHEI 2 ERESK
allowance for doubtful debts), presented based on the respective B (B RERE) RREHRZERR S ITH
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period: Ik
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
TR FHAT
0 - 30 days TE=1+H 2,443 17,619
31 - 60 days =+t—H=Z=,~+H 649 85,866
61 — 90 days ANT—BEATH 362 299
Over 90 days At+BUE 8,861 7,701
12,315 111,485
The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are BEE B ERERE EWE S HIE RiKD
past due but not impaired: T
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
0 - 30 days TE=1H 1,303 12,154
31 - 60 days =+t—H=ZX~+H 320 21,775
61 — 90 days At—BZEh+H - -
Over 90 days At+BUE 8,373 7,236
9,996 41,165

s
i

—T-REER rexeg 201

[



202

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

34. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

At 1st January m—A—H
Amount recovered during the year REE B U B RIE

Impairment losses (reversed)

recognised in respect of trade receivables REEE
Disposal of subsidiaries &S E 2 A
At 31st December R+=RAR=+—H

For those past due but not impaired receivables, except for the sale
of properties developed by the Group, although the Group does
not hold any collateral as security, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial settlement
after the end of the reporting period, and considers that the
amounts are still recoverable and no further credit provision is

required in excess of allowance for doubtful debts.

Trade receivables over 90 days comprising rental receivables of
approximately HK$8,373,000 (2014: HK$7,236,000) which are
sufficiently covered by rental deposits received from the respective
tenants, and no allowance is required for these receivables under

the Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.

Included in debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are consideration receivables of approximately HK$6,808,466,000
in respect of deferred considerations of the Chengdu Project

Disposal and the Chongging Project Disposal.
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34. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The consideration of the Chengdu Project Disposal was
HK$6,500,000,000 of which 10% was received from Shengyu as
at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the equity
and debt transfer agreement of the Chengdu Project Disposal dated
14th July, 2015, the remaining 90% of the cash consideration
receivable from the Chengdu Project Disposal amounting to
HK$5,850,000,000 would be received in 4 instalments within 24
months from the date of the disposal agreement. As at the end of
the reporting period, the 90% of the cash consideration receivable
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost was recorded as other receivables in which the
amount of approximately HK$3,158,744,000 to be received after
one year was shown as non-current.

The consideration of the Chongging Project Disposal was
HK$1,750,000,000 of which 15% was received from Shengyu
as at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the
equity and debt receivable transfer agreement of the Chongging
Project Disposal dated 19th October, 2015, the remaining 85%
of the cash consideration receivable from the Chongging Project
Disposal amounting to HK$1,487,500,000 would be received in
4 instalments within 24 months from the date of the disposal
agreement. As at the end of the reporting period, the 85% of the
cash consideration receivable initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost was recorded as other
receivables in which the amount of approximately HK$839,614,000
to be received after one year was shown as non-current.

Included in other receivables is the outstanding claim receivable
from Shantou City Planning and State-owned Land Resources
Bureau (“Chenghai Bureau”) with the principal amount of
approximately RMB45,512,000 (equivalent to HK$53,640,000)
(2014: RMB49,107,000 (equivalent to HK$61,281,000)) for
the recovery of the down payment made by the Group for the
acquisition of the property interests located in Chenghai Royal
Garden, Shantou, PRC. The down payment was fully impaired in
prior years. On 5th December, 2012, the Shantou City Intermediate
People's Court (“Intermediate Court”) delivered a judgment in
favour of the Group and upheld the majority claims of the Group.
On 26th February, 2014, the High People’s Court of Guangdong
Province declared its judgment on 3rd December, 2013, which
upheld the ruling of the Intermediate Court and dismissed the
appeals of the Group and Chenghai Bureau, became effective
on 23rd February, 2014. During the year ended 31st December,
2015, the Group received RMB6,000,000 (2014: nil) including
the interest as partial satisfaction of the enforcement. Up to the
date of the approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
enforcement of the judgment is still in progress.

34. BUWERTE - 1€ - HttEWERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5
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35. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of
approximately HK$64,975,000 (2014: HK$416,771,000).

The following is the aged analysis of trade payables at the end of

the reporting period:

0 — 90 days
Over 90 days

36. BORROWINGS

Secured bank loans repayable
within a period of:
Less than one year
More than one year but within two years

More than two years but within five years

Other secured loans repayable within one year

Less: Amounts due within one year

Amounts due after one year

35. B BRIA R EET B

JT) °
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ATEHE

36. 6 &
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JERNREREARECREEMNESEREEY
64,975,000/ 7T ( —Z — U : 416,771,0007%

ENEZERERBERRZREONAT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
50,813 27961
14,162 388,810
64,975 416,771
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
3,261,994 4,994,263
175,000 7.969,143
5,705,000 1,871,850
9,141,994 14,835,256
5,389,779 1,713,672
14,531,773 16,548,928
(8.651,773) (6,707,935)
5,880,000 9,840,993
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36. BORROWINGS (contd)

The bank loans denominated in HK$ are variable-rate borrowings
which carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 0.70% to 2.00% or
Prime minus 3.90% (2014: HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.35% or cost of
fund plus 2.25%) per annum.

The loan denominated in GBP from a financial institution carries
interest at a fixed rate of 5.97% (2014: 5.97%) per annum. The
weighted average effective interest rate is 3.50% (2014: 3.500%)

per annum.

As at 31st December, 2014, the variable-rate bank loans
denominated in RMB carried interest at 110% of People's Bank of
China base rate per annum as announced by the People’s Bank of
China. The bank loan has been deconsolidated to the Group upon

completion of the Chengdu Project Disposal.

Other loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at costs
of funds of individual financial institutions plus 0.35% to 0.75%
(2014: 0.25% to 0.35%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

than HK$ are set out below:

us$ EY
GBP e
SGD g T
EUR X 7T
RMB AR

36. (6 E (@)

AT BEZRITERAZEGE  FERE
FIRITREREM0.70E E2.00E T 5 sk iZ &
BEAEHINE (ZT—MF : FFRTH
EFR BN 25EE235BNERITE SR AN
2.25[) °

NREHE 2 SR IEE IR TE B ERN=E597
EitE (ZZ—F:5.978) « MEFHER
FERERAIS0E (ZZ—NF :3.50F) °

R-ZE-—WF+-A=1T—R RAR%:E
ZEFBBOTEFRFEARRITAMZH
ANRRITELEFFEZ 11005 8 < 1R IE
BHEZKE ZRTEXRTERAEELES
N

EMERBZEEE FERERNSRMEEE
£ KA NN0.35E £0.75/E (= F — M :0.25

EBZE0.35E):t& -

AEBUBTANINEBEZBERT

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FTEx THET
3,712,264 10,140
2,788,263 3,173,538
411,880 -
52,988 —

- 1,871,850
6,965,395 5,055,528

“E-LEFHR EASXEE

"
W
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the sale and
purchase agreements for sales of the Properties, the Vendor is
only required to deliver vacant possession of the Properties to the
Properties Purchasers two years (or, at the right of the Vendor, for
a further period of not more than six months) after completion
("Deferred Vacant Possession Period"). The Vendor shall guarantee
the Properties Purchasers the monthly rental income (“Guaranteed
Monthly Rental Income”), which is payable monthly in arrears,

during the Deferred Vacant Possession Period.

Provision for rental guarantee represented the best estimate by the
management of the Group on the shortfall between the expected
monthly rental income receivable from tenants and the Guaranteed
Monthly Rental Income during the Deferred Vacant Possession
Period.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

37. PROVISIONS 37. BfE
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHERT FA&T
Provision for rental guarantee: HE BEREE -
At 1st January n—HA—H 28,818 57,943
Recognised for the year RNEEHER - 3,627
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEREIR 8 5,146
Reduction during the year AR E EAHR (27,577) (37,898)
At 31st December R+=-—A=+—H 1,249 28,818
Analysed for reporting purpose as: TR ERiE 2 DI
Current mENEE 1,249 27,561
Non-current ERBIEE - 1,257
1,249 28,818

RIBERSWEZ BB A OHMNZHRR
Wl BEHBARR SERMER (REH B
WieBZ A ER) MMER SR EENEL
ZEREEE((ZREAEARN)) - HI B
RMEBHREEEAENENEARE K
ATRESABSMAD (U8 ABKZH
ZENE

HeRERBEEEASEEEEREEEEAE
e ARMERESRALRES A
MEWAZ ZRAER 2 RIEME -
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year

were as follows:

38. R4

RAFERARRZBAEEMT :

Number of shares Share capital
ROHE [
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRAE.10ET 2 EBR
Authorised: EERA
At Tst January and 31st December R—A—-BEk+ZA=+—H 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRERRA:
At Tst January and 31st December R—A-BE+ZA=+—A 1,907,619,079  1,907619,079 190,762 190,762

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES,
INVESTEE COMPANIES AND NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to associates, investee companies and non-
controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free, except
for a principal amount of approximately HK$180,578,000 (2014:
HK$163,698,000) due to a non-controlling shareholder carries
interest at 11.25% per annum from 1st January to 31st October,
2015 and interest-free thereafter (from 1st January to 31st
December, 2014: 11.25% per annum). The associates, investee
companies and non-controlling shareholders will not demand for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period

and the amounts are therefore shown as non-current.

30. REBEQNT EZRERQNT

B I 2 I R SR AR IE

REBENT BEXZIE QR RIEERRRR
B REERI2S BRRE—HIFZERRE
B2 KN4 49180,578,000/ 7t (=T — U 4F
163,698,000 L) Bt B (BT —HF —
B—BE+A=+—BFMERAE11.25B KK
thEE(H-_Z—NF—A—HZ=+=A
=F—H:1125F) )RIE - ZEHENA] 5
REERNARIFERBRETGRIREHARE—
FRERKEER WZEFBEIEERDIEE -

s

—F-REEHR  FA

[

ES L]
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40. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the

current and prior reporting periods:

REMBRRME

0. IEER I

BT 78 7 4 B 7 4 4 AR T 1 98 45 AR
fEtiBEY T EREHERE (BREE) R
HED

Accelerated
Investment tax
properties  depreciation Tax losses Total
RENE MERERE HBEE bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET Tz TR
At 1st January, 2014 R-E-mE—f—R 668,520 33,235 (29,307) 672,248
Exchange adjustments s - 230 333 563
Charged to the consolidated statement ~ R4R& 2 EMREHREIMNMR
of comprehensive income (Note 18) (HzE18) 8,329 4,452 10,338 23,119
Transferred to liabilities directly BRI BRHELEZ
associated with assets classified BEEHEECEE
as held for sale (Note 12) (FfzE12) (41,583) 2,253 4 (39,326)
At 31st December, 2014 RZF-RMF+-A=1+—H 635,066 40,170 (18,632) 656,604
Exchange adjustments B X R (48) 144 97 193
Charged to the consolidated statement R4 & 2B ERE NG
of comprehensive income (Note 18)  (Hi718) 142,944 4,027 15,281 162,252
Transferred to liabilities directly BRI AREHEL
associated with assets classified BREEENREZEE
as held for sale (Note 12) (Fi5E12) (18,060) 453 - (17.607)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMHBAT
(Note 41(b), () (H5E41(b)* (0)) (253,963) 6,821 - (247,142)
At 31st December, 2015 R=2-E%+=A=+-8 505,939 51,615 (3.254) 554,300

For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement

of financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets

have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE
Deferred tax assets BRI IEE E

208
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A BRRBR 225 ETRERER
BREECHFHIE M BRE MG ZBEER
BT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
558,580 667,841

(4,280) (11,237)
554,300 656,604




40. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd)

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KMz

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE =%

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
major unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability

of the future profit streams.

IR E
WA E 1R

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s unused tax
losses not recognised of approximately HK$7,693,000 (2014:
HK$178,081,000) will expire in one to five years. Other
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely and

subject to the confirmation from the respective tax authority.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Disposals of subsidiaries

(a) Chongqing Project Disposal on 27th October, 2015

On 19th October, 2015, Evergo Holdings (China) Company
Limited (“Evergo”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Shengyu entered into an equity and debt
receivable transfer agreement, pursuant to which Evergo
agreed to sell and Shengyu agreed to acquire the entire

issued share capital of Million Castle.

The Chongging Project Disposal was completed on 27th
October, 2015 at a consideration of HK$1,750,000,000.
Upon completion, Million Castle ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company and its results, assets and liabilities were

ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Details of the Chongging Project Disposal were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 19th October, 2015.

40.

41.

—hAFE+T-A=t+—HLFE

EERIE (2

REEHRR REEEUTEBATER R
M ARER L T BIRENIAEE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(103,700) (103,123)
(412,727) (445,166)
(516,427) (548,289)

RIRE R - ANEBR — 2 T F R 5 R
RZAERHEEIEL7693,0008 7T (=ZF
—PO4 178,081,000/ 7T ) ° HeA KRR 2
SR B A R B A 88 - WA SRR RIS B i

2
et
A

(@ R-E-ZF+A=-+tHAZEEEH
HE

RZZE—hETATIB EXS&HE
(FB)BRAB([EER]) (ARF
2 —HEEEEEENBEAR) HREET
S —IEfRRE R R B R R iR s o SR UL
FERRELE REER SR EMilion
Castlez 2 #B 2 B ITAR AN -

BEEEEHER-_Z—AF+A=-tT+
HEmK RER/ 750000000/%73 »
SERX 1% - Million Castle "B ARAQ T Z —
FMEAR HEE EERBEBEETH
AAREEZGEER BERBEN-

EFRBLEZFHBEHIINARAER
HR—_F-hAFtA+HhBZAMAe-

-

—F-REEHR  FA

[

£

]

209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(a)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chongqing Project Disposal on 27th October, 2015

(Cont'd)

The net assets of Million Castle as at
the date of disposal were as follows:

Interest in an associate

Advance to an associate

Amount due to the Group

Net assets disposed of
Sale of amount due to the Group
Release of translation reserve upon disposal

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration received

Present value of deferred consideration (note)

Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration

Cash consideration receivable (note)

Cash consideration received

Expenses incurred for disposal

41. ¥ S @

HEMRB QR (8)

HE (&)

Million Castlei & B H >
BEEFEOT

— B g A AR

BT — B A RIRIE

REREBERIE

HEBEFE
HERBAKENA
WA B 8 [a] 2 [ 5 A
HE—RMHEARZ WS

AT B 75 A3 A
BEYHRERE
EEREZIRE ()

HEMREEZHAX

HEREEZRER
REHE
fEHR & RE ()

A

EWREH(E
HEMEEZHX
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(a) R-FE—FF+H=

TtHZEEFEER

2015
HK$°000
FExT

73,522
1,532,321
(1,531,542)

74,301
1,531,542

(107,383)
118,421

262,500
1,354,829

1,617,329
(aa8)

1,750,000
(1,487,500)

262,500
(aa8)

262,052
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Chongqing Project Disposal on 27th October, 2015
(Cont'd)

The gain on the Chongging Project Disposal was included in
other gains and losses, net (Note 15(iii)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Note: The deferred consideration represents the consideration
of HK$1,487,500,000 receivable in cash by instalments
within 24 months from the date of the equity and debt
receivable transfer agreement.

Chengdu Project Disposal on 30th July, 2015

On 14th July, 2015, Evergo and Shengyu entered into an
equity and debt transfer agreement, pursuant to which Evergo
agreed to sell and Shengyu agreed to acquire the entire

issued share capital of Lucky Benefit and Rising Sheen.

The Chengdu Project Disposal was completed on 30th
July, 2015 at a consideration of HK$6,500,000,000. Upon
completion, the Chengdu Project ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company and their consolidated results, assets and
liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with those of the

Group.

Details of the Chengdu Project Disposal were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 14th July, 2015.

—hAFE+T-A=t+—HLFE

41. EEE B @

HEMRB QR (8)

(a)

(b)

R-E-—ZF+A-+EtAZEEER
HE (#&)

EFEHBEREZHEEFALERE
e = 2 s R EEFE (M
15(ii) ) A

PR IR AAB TY FE B A b o A B HE o
i H R EA RS B
B U HL 2 8 I KB 1,487,500,000

BT

R-E-—RFLtA=Z1+HZHAEHERH

T

%

—AFEA+MA BEERHER
AT —IERRIE B R A o U
EEXmRENE REEREE S Lucky
Benefitk At sm 2 2B BT A

KREEERER-_Z—RAFLA=1H
52X L {8 £6,500,000,000/% Tt ° A 58
Btg EVBE THAARRZHEBA
A HGAEE BEERABECDTHIA
REBZREEE BERBEN

KRR HEZHIBE&#IRARAR
WA—ET-AFLtATHAZRAMAe

s

“E-hFFR EABXEE
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41. ¥EE B @

HEMRB QR (8)

41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(b) Chengdu Project Disposal on 30th July, 2015 (Cont'd) (b) R-FE-—HZFLtA=+HZHKZEEH

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

E(#)

2015
HK$ 000
FEx
The consolidated net assets of KREEENEERRZ
the Chengdu Project as at the date of BEEEFENT
disposal were as follows:
Investment properties KEMHE 4,941,632
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB MEE 1,198,461
Available-for-sale investment HERE 361,054
Pledged deposit AT 409,071
Stock of properties MERE 855,386
Inventories eSS 1,425
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and JEURERTE & - B EURERTE &
prepayments AT IR 98,708
Tax recoverable A Y B % R 14,156
Time deposits, bank balances and cash EEFEH RITEBRRE S 656,772
Creditors and accruals FEAT BRI R ERT FRIE (358,699)
Deposits and receipts in advance e R FIE (128,635)
Tax liabilities MIBEE (595)
Financial guarantee liabilities WBEREE (160)
Borrowings BE (1,869,450)
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHBEEE (231,667)
Amount due to the Group RBAREEFIA (4,604,511)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 1,342,948
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXRBREBFIE 4,604,511
Release of translation reserve upon disposal S R B 2 BE R (774,867)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries M B A F 2z W 707,492

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(b)

41.

Chengdu Project Disposal on 30th July, 2015 (Cont'd)

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration received

Present value of deferred consideration (note)

Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration

Cash consideration receivable (note)

Cash consideration received

Expenses incurred for disposal

Time deposits, bank balances and cash
disposed of

Pledged deposit disposed of

EY 30t )

HEMRB QR (8)

b) R-ZF-—FZFLtA=1THZHEHBEELRHL

E (&)
2015
HK$°000
F#ET
ATE AR A
BUWRERE 650,000
BEEREZRE (M) 5,244,372
5,894,372
HEMEEZHY (14,288)
5,880,084
HEREAZRESREFE:
BeRE 6,500,000
FEWR 2 RE (FFE) (5.850,000)
BEYIR S RE 650,000
HEMEE ML (14,288)
BHEZEHER BITEH
KB (656,772)
BHEZEEFR (409,071)
(430,131)

The gain on the Chengdu Project Disposal was included in

other gains and losses, net (Note 15(i)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Note: The deferred consideration represents the consideration
of HK$5,850,000,000 receivable in cash by instalments
within 24 months from the date of the equity and debt

transfer agreement.

RMBEREHEZWEEHAGAEEE
Weak ik 2 H b U s e B 1R F BB (P 3
15@1) ) A °

st BN (ETYIBRERRAE L E RS E 1
FASE-_TIOEAARNSHNES
U BY 2 f& Y X &5,850,000,0007%8
7_Eo

"

—E-EFER  EABEE

]
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(9

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Disposal of the One Group to a connected person on
15th July, 2015

On 12th December, 2014, (i) Rich Lucky Limited (“Rich
Lucky"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
(i) the Company, being the guarantor of Rich Lucky; (iii)
Market Victory Limited (“Market Victory”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the
guarantor of Market Victory, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Rich Lucky agreed to sell and
Market Victory agreed to acquire the entire issued share

capital of Asian East.

The One Disposal was completed on 15th July, 2015 at a
consideration of approximately HK$5,020,556,000. Upon
completion, the One Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company and its consolidated results, assets and liabilities

were ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Upon completion of the One Disposal, the Group
recorded gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$212,332,000. The gain was mainly derived from the
decrease in fair value of the investment properties of
HK$215,000,000 due to revaluation of the investment
properties as at 30th June, 2015 (which is carried out
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies on
revaluation of the Group's investment properties as at
reporting date) as compared with the property valuation
under the sale and purchase agreement of the One Disposal
dated 12th December, 2014.

Details of the One Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 12th December,
2014, 15th July, 2015 and 13th August, 2015 and the
circular of the Company dated 7th January, 2015.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REMBRRME

41. ¥EE B @

HEMRB QR (8)

(9

R-ZF-—HFLHA+HHHLHEOneEH
THEAL

W=—T—m&+=HA+=8" () Rich
Lucky Limited ([Rich Lucky]) ' &RAA]
2 —HEEZEREMRB LG (VAR
Al YEARRich Lucky#{R A ¢ (i) Market
Victory Limited ([Market Victory |) » —

RIS 5T 4 - VBB Market Victory B R A -

I —IBEE W - #E Ik - Rich Lucky[A
= H & KMarket Victory[d & B8 B Asian
Eastz 2B 2 BATAR AN

OnetER—_ZE—RAFLATHHTEK
R B 41 A5,020,556,0007% T ° 1A 52 X
& -OnekETHAARBZHWEBEAR
HigA#E AERBEETHIAR
SEZRAXRE EERABERN-

A Onei E5E 14 « A5 EER13 L E NS
AN A2 WEE#212,332,00008 7T © 52 W 25
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd) 41. £S5/t @
Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd) HEKBAR (B)
(c) Disposal of the One Group to a connected person on () R-F—FZFLtA+EHAHEOneE
15th July, 2015 (Cont'd) FEHEAL (#)
2015
HK$°000
FET
The consolidated net assets of the One Group OneERAHEHEZ
as at the date of disposal were as follows: FAEBEFRENT:
Investment properties wEME 7,665,000
Equipment B 1,590
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and JEUNERTE e« B EURARIAE &
prepayments AT IR 34,808
Bank balances and cash WITHBRIE S 37,625
Creditors and accruals FEAS BRI K E R FR IR (17,026)
Deposits and receipts in advance & R FIE (158,596)
Tax liabilities BMIBABE (4,370)
Borrowings BE (2,738,000)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE (15,475)
Amount due to the Group REAREEFIE (2,203,689)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 2,601,867
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXRBAREBRIE 2,203,689
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERE ARz 212,332
5,017,888
Satisfied by: ATF A
Cash consideration ReERE 5,020,556
Expenses incurred for disposal PEMEEZRAX (2,668)
5,017,888
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREEZRERAFRE:
Cash consideration RERE 5,020,556
Settled by special interim dividend (note) VARF Rl R EARR B s A5 (B EE) (3.478,022)
Net cash consideration received BWReREFE 1,542,534
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAX (2,668)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEZRITEHR LIRS (37,625)
1,502,241
—s-nEFg zAS¥sE 215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(9

(d)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Disposal of the One Group to a connected person on
15th July, 2015 (Cont'd)

The gain on the One Disposal was included in other gains
and losses, net (Note 15(ii)) in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Note: Market Victory has elected to settle the consideration

by procuring Mr. Joseph Lau’s entitlement on the
special interim dividend (Note 19(d)) in an amount of
approximately HK$3,478,022,000.

Disposal of the Silvercord Group to connected
persons on 13th January, 2015

The Silvercord Disposal was completed on 13th
January, 2015 at a total consideration of approximately
HK$7,656,149,000. Upon completion, the Silvercord
Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company and its
consolidated results, assets and liabilities were ceased to be

consolidated with those of the Group.

Upon completion of the Silvercord Disposal, the Group
recorded loss on disposals of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$97,235,000. The loss was mainly derived from the
increase in fair value of the investment properties of
HK$93,200,000 due to revaluation of the investment
properties as at 31st December, 2014 (which is carried
out in accordance with the Group's accounting policies
on revaluation of the Group's investment properties as at
reporting date) as compared with the property valuation
under the sale and purchase agreements of the Silvercord
Disposal dated 1st September, 2014.

Details of the Silvercord Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 2nd September,
2014 and 13th January, 2015 and the circular of the
Company dated 23rd September, 2014.
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41. ¥EE B @
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R-E—AFL+F+HHAHLEOneEH
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3,478,022,000/ It °

R-E-AF-FA+=ZHHERBEH
FTHEAL
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd) 4. KBS
Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd) HEKBAR (B)
(d) Disposal of the Silvercord Group to connected d R-FE-FZF-—HA1+=ZHAHERSEE
persons on 13th January, 2015 (Cont'd) FHEAL ()
2015
HK$ 000
FTEx
The consolidated net assets of RSEERNEERRZ
the Silvercord Group as at the date of FEBEFRENT:
disposal were as follows:
Investment properties wEME 9,388,280
Equipment B 3
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and JEURERTE e B EURBRTE &
prepayments AT RIE 48,917
Tax recoverable BIRqEE RN 1
Bank balances and cash IRITAEBR RIS 95,018
Amount due from the Group REEXREFIE 424,226
Creditors and accruals FERTERIA KR FEET IR (7.192)
Deposits and receipts in advance e R FIE (217,539)
Tax liabilities MIEEE (18,714)
Borrowings BE (1,500,000)
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHBEAEE (39.425)
Amount due to the Group REBAREEKE (7.538,215)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 635,360
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXRBAREBRIE 7,538,215
Assumption of amount due from the Group AEREE R ERIE (424,226)
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HENBARZEE (97.235)
7,652,114
Satisfied by: ATRA AR A
Cash consideration RERE 7,656,149
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAZ (4,035)
7,652,114
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREE RS MAFHE:
Cash consideration RERE 7,656,149
Settled by special interim dividend (note) VARE Bl o B AR S 32 A< (PR &E) (5.350,803)
Net cash consideration received BYER S REFH 2,305,346
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZHX (4,035)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHEZRITEHRLERS (95.018)
2,206,293
—s-nEFg zAsxsE 217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Disposal of the Silvercord Group to connected

persons on 13th January, 2015 (Cont'd)

The loss on the Silvercord Disposal was included in other
gains and losses, net (Note 15(iv)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Note: Fly High Target has elected to settle the consideration

by procuring Mr. Joseph Lau’s entitlement on the
special interim dividend (Note 19(c)) in an amount of
approximately HK$5,350,803,000.

Disposal of the Moon Ocean Group to a connected
person on 31st October, 2014

On 1st September, 2014, (i) Data Dynasty Limited (“Data
Dynasty”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; (ii) the Company, being the guarantor of Data
Dynasty; (iii) One Midland Limited (“One Midland"), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr.
Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of One Midland, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement, namely “Moon Ocean
SP Agreement’, pursuant to which Data Dynasty agreed to
sell and One Midland agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Value Eight. The Moon Ocean Disposal
was completed on 31st October, 2014 at a consideration
of approximately HK$4,876,162,000 (after adjustment).
Upon completion, the Moon Ocean Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company and its consolidated results,
assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with

those of the Group.

Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 2nd September, 2014
and the circular of the Company dated 23rd September,
2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 484 Bt 3R &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

41. £SO m)

HENBRR (8)

41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(e) Disposal of the Moon Ocean Group to a connected (e R=-—ZFE—WFL+H=+—HHEMoon

person on 31st October, 2014 (Cont'd) OceanfE B FREA £ (&)
2014
HK$'000
FAT
The consolidated net liabilities of Moon Oceanfs B 7 & B Hi 2
the Moon Ocean Group as at FEABFENT
the date of disposal were as follows:
Equipment B 265
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and JEUNERTE e B EURBRTE &
prepayments TafTRIE 1,972,919
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 1,234
Creditors and accruals FEAT BRI K FERT 3R IR (3,594)
Deposits received Bdize (15,986)
Amount due to the Group KB REERIE (4,358,618)
Net liabilities disposed of HEBEFEE (2,403,780)
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXBAREENIEA 4,358,618
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMH B AR Z WS 2,917.579
4,872,417
Satisfied by: IATS R Z A
Cash consideration HE2RE 4,876,162
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAX (3,745)
4,872,417
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREE RS MAFHE:
Cash consideration HeRE 4,876,162
Settled by special interim dividend (note) VARE Bl o B AR S 32 A (PR &E) (3,411,137)
Net cash consideration received BEWRIBEREFEE 1,465,025
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRAX (3,745)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEZRITEH LIRS (1,234)
1,460,046
—=-ngFH  FAEx£E 219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R& Bt 8RR M &

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

41. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposals of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(e) Disposal of the Moon Ocean Group to a connected
person on 31st October, 2014 (Cont'd)

The gain on the Moon Ocean Disposal was included in
other gains and losses, net (Note 15(v)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Note: One Midland has elected to settle the consideration by
procuring Mr. Joseph Lau's entitlement on the special
interim dividend for 2014 (Note 19(f)) in an amount of
approximately HK$3,411,137,000.

42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group did not have major non-cash transactions.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZZ

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the

assets pledged by the Group to secure general banking and other

Bt M R AR B
—EFt- A=t HLFE

43. EEEA

RBERR  AEEARGAHAEEG R
—RBITLEBERBENRBFR HME

loan facilities and to secure the securities transactions, granted to HzEERBESWWOT :
the Group are analysed as follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Investment properties (note) wmEWE (M) 26,527,838 44,156,883
Property, plant and equipment (note) M- BB REE () 505,491 1,509,343
Stock of properties MEFE 958,000 -
Investments held-for-trading BIEEBEZRE 364,244 472,551
Financial assets designated as at fair value BERBBERURBRAFEZ
through profit or loss ERMEE 11,069,270 4,576,112
Non-current pledged deposits FEMENEIRF K 24,557 438,994
Current pledged deposits (note) TR BV 3R F R (M EE) 237,506 429,689
39,686,906 51,583,572
As at 31st December, 2015 and 2014, interests in certain RZE—REFER-_ZE—NF+=_/=+—8"
subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged as part of the RARARRETHBARIZEREERER
security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group. As REEERETRITEE 2L ER - RN _F
at 31st December 2014, the Group has subordinated and assigned —mHE+ZA=+—B AEEDHBEE QT

its advances to associates of approximately HK$1,679,399,000
to financial institutions to secure general banking credit facilities

granted to associates.

Note: Included the respective items presented as assets classified as
held for sale.

27
BEZBRIT-REESHEANZEHE QRN
T8 #91,679,399,000/8 7T # 55 M 1% & 7 & Al ik
o

it REREEE 27 RABEHEZEE-

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

44, B KEE

Authorised and contracted for:

Development expenditure of properties
in Hong Kong

Development expenditure of properties
in Mainland China (note (i))

Renovation of properties

Investee company's contribution

Capital investment in limited partnership
(notes (i) and (iii))

SHERD R
EEMEERRAX

PR AREY EERFA S
(HIEEG))

B

BIEERGZEE

BRAEBLEZEAKE
(B3 G B2 (i) )

Purchase of equipment

BERE

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group's associate had capital

commitments which were authorised and contracted for of
approximately HK$877,856,000, of which the Group's share of
commitments amounted to approximately HK$219,464,000.

The capital commitments no longer exist upon completion of the

Chongging Project Disposal.

Notes:

0)

(i)

(i)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

The capital commitments relating to Chengdu properties no
longer exist upon completion of the Chengdu Project Disposal.

The Group entered into a subscription agreement for
commitment in contribution of US$100,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$774,990,000) in the Cayman lIslands
Partnership. Up to the end of the reporting period, approximately
US$83,625,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$648,214,000)
among the contribution has been paid by the Group.

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the Group
entered into a subscription agreement for commitment in
contribution of RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$353,580,000) in the PRC Partnership. Prior to the Chengdu
Project Disposal, the Group had fully contributed to the fund. The
subsidiary holding the fund has been deconsolidated from the
Group upon completion of the Chengdu Project Disposal.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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2015 2014
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FET FET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

45 FIRBBEREE

Contingent Liabilities RAREE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of RSB R RERRITHA 2 RTT
banking facilities in lieu of the cash public FERUREBERSARER
utility deposit jointly utilised by subsidiaries fFamm—ERITIRME 2 &R 15,000 15,000
Guarantees given to banks in respect of REENFIERZRITEER
banking facilities utilised by associates MRITIRME Z ER (M)
(note (i) - 829,592
Repurchase guarantees given to banks BB AR 2 MEERERIRT
in respect of mortgage facilities given to REEFIRIB 2 EEER
property purchasers by subsidiaries (note (ii)) (B E(N) ) - 19,672
15,000 864,264

Notes:

(i)  The contingent liabilities no longer exist upon completion of the
Shanghai Platinum Disposal and the Chongging Project Disposal.

(i) The contingent liabilities no longer exist upon completion of the
Chengdu Project Disposal.

Buy Option and Sale Option on shares of Grandday Group
Limited (“Grandday”)

On 5th September, 2012, the Company and Loyal Pride Limited
("Vendor of Grandday”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement for the
disposal of 49 shares of Grandday (“Sale Shares"), representing
490 of the entire issued share capital of Grandday, with Dynamic
Crand Limited (“Purchaser of Grandday”) at a total consideration
of US$500,000,000 (“Grandday Disposal”) (“Agreement”), which
was satisfied by way of cash of US$200,000,000 and loan note
issued by the Purchaser of Grandday in the principal amount of
US$300,000,000 (“Loan Note"). The Grandday Disposal was
completed on 7th September, 2012 and the Loan Note was fully
redeemed on 6th March, 2013 with share charge over the Sale

Shares released on the same date.

GEE

() RLEBFXHERBEERBHRETKE.
ZERABBEIBFE-

(i) MEEBERHERRE ZERARET
B

HBEZEEERLA ([HE])RGZEAEE
R EEER

RZE——FNARAB AR MEEEFR
RAE([BEER]) (ARmz—HMBE2
& %A B A a)) EDynamic Grand Limited
(TR EF ]I YEE R LEHE 249
Bt ([HERG]) RERBEZIPE E
TR 2 499% - X {& 42 88 /500,000,000 7T
([EAEEE]) ((HE]) - MREURE X
£$200,000,000E C R BAE B HF 8T AN A
300,000,000F L2 ERZE ([EREE]) -
PRHEENR - E——FNAtERKEZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

(Cont'd)
Contingent Liabilities (Cont'd)

Buy Option and Sale Option on shares of Grandday Group
Limited (“Grandday”) (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, pursuant to the Agreement, in case of
certain events (as defined in the Agreement) occurred, the Vendor
of Grandday shall have an option to purchase all but not some of
the Sale Shares from the Purchaser of Grandday (“Buy Option”) and
the Purchaser of Grandday shall have an option to sell all but not

some of the Sale Shares to the Vendor of Grandday (“Sale Option").

For as long as any of the indentures security as defined in the
Agreement (“Indentures Security”) remains outstanding, if, on
or before 20th January, 2016, an event of default as defined
in the Agreement occurs and such event of default agreed in
the Agreement has not been waived, remedied or cured or is
otherwise continuing as at 20th January, 2016; or if a demand
is made on Grandday and/or Lucky Grow Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Grandday, under any of the Indentures
Security and/or any enforcement action is taken under any of the
Indentures Security, the Purchaser of Grandday shall sell and the
Vendor of Grandday shall purchase all but not some of the Sale
Shares (“Automatic Sale”). As at the date of the approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Buy Option and the Sale

Option were expired.

Details of the Grandday Disposal including the Buy Option, the
Sale Option, the Indentures Security, the Automatic Sale and the
redemption of the Loan Note were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 5th September, 2012 and 6th March, 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #iZ - —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS 45. FARABBREE @

(Cont'd)
Contingent Assets

Post-completion development upside sharing or
compensation upside sharing on the case of Moon Ocean
Ltd. (“Moon Ocean”)

Subject to completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal on 31st
October, 2014, (a) if judgments are made in favour of Moon
Ocean in the appeals to its legal case in Macau (“Appeals”) and
have become final and the title to the Macau land previously held
by Moon Ocean (“Macau Land") is vested on Moon Ocean again,
One Midland, being the buyer of the Moon Ocean Group, shall
pay to Data Dynasty, being the vendor of the Moon Ocean Group,
the development upside sharing pursuant to the Moon Ocean SP
Agreement; or (b) if judgments are made against Moon Ocean in
the Appeals and have become final, One Midland shall pay to Data
Dynasty the compensation upside sharing pursuant to the Moon

Ocean SP Agreement.

The arrangement of the development upside sharing or the
compensation upside sharing (as the case may be) allows the
Group to share the possible upside or compensation in relation to
the Macau Land and the La Scala project post completion of the

Moon Ocean SP Agreement.

The aggregate amount of all the development upside sharing or the
compensation upside sharing (as the case may be) payable by One
Midland to Data Dynasty shall be subject to a maximum amount of
HK$12,500,000,000.

The Directors consider the aggregate amount of all the
development upside sharing or the compensation upside sharing
(as the case may be) payable by One Midland to Data Dynasty and
the maximum amount of HK$12,500,000,000 for the development
upside sharing or the compensation upside sharing (as the
case may be) are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

X Moon Ocean Ltd. ([ Moon Ocean |) =
5T 7 B % 75 18 (B 58 7 18 715 8 E

MZZE—MF+ A =+—H5TMKMoon Ocean
HEEMRTIR T » (a)fiMoon OceanZE il [A) )&
PR3 E5F ([ E3F])) 2 8RB F M Moon
Ocean ' WX & & 2 &k - TiMoon OceanR B
R L (R T ) 22 EBARE
#Moon Ocean - BlOne Midland (fE AMoon
Oceant @ & 75 ) 7B R #EMoon Ocean® & #
## [AIData Dynasty (£ &Moon Oceanfk B &
F)XHEESEEE: (b)) EiF 2 &R
AF|FMoon Ocean * I i A & 2 & & - AOne
Midland# 8 #£Moon OceanE Z #} &% [f1Data
DynastyX i # {8 D 15 12 8 o

e (HEEHFEIIGEE (RERME)
2 Z PR AN B Al FAMoon Ocean B & 1% 58
B DG FhIRPT i R )G o mE T B Al B
IR B ERHE -

One Midland /& Data Dynasty 2 FT A B85 (h
BEIEESEE (RBRMTE) B2 &
=% %8 4 12,500,000,000/% 7T °

EERAEOne MidlandfEf F Data DynastyZ
FTAEMES IS ERMES HEE (RIS

e ) R RRAE MGG ERFES 1Eifa
(RIERME) Z &= % §812,500,000,0007%
TBATEE WRHEARRRRARNGZKRE

28 2

e

-

—E-hEFRH EABXEE

225



226

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
(Cont'd)

Contingent Assets (Cont'd)

Post-completion development upside sharing or
compensation upside sharing on the case of Moon Ocean
Ltd. (“Moon Ocean”) (Cont'd)

Up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial

statements, the Appeals are still in progress.

Details of the development upside sharing and the compensation
upside sharing were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 2nd September, 2014 and the circular of the Company dated
23rd September, 2014.

46. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

mEMBRRME

45 FIREBBEREE »

HREE (B)

#Moon Ocean Ltd. ([ Moon Ocean |) =
ST % 5 IE (B B 1 18 S ()

RERRRGARBRE RS %S LHRDE
GLE

1
i3

¥

D (REEREEDHBEZFIBEEHY
RARBASHA-—ZT—NEALA-BZAH
F—E-NFAA-ZF+=B2@BEHA-

Minimum lease payments paid under operating AN EF G BT 2 & EMAL

leases in respect of premises during the year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases, which fall due as follows:

Xz &RIEBEEK

46. EEHEHN
TEBARHEA
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
5B 2,623 4,240

RBERR AEERTAIRELEREH A
BEEBEES KB ZAEN T HRE D

2015 2014

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FER FE&T

Within one year F—FR 1,022 1,894
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF (BEERMTF) 156 747
1,178 2,641

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an

average term of one to two years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

46. OPERATING LEASES (contd)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$1,325,875,000 (2014: HK$1,939,378,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$93,647,000 (2014: HK$92,013,000).

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate
annual rental yields of 1.67% to 9.67% (2014: 1.28% to 9.30%)
on an ongoing basis. Most of the properties held have committed

tenants ranged from two to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year E—FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years AFNAE

47. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme") and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme"). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the
Group are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging
from 5% to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the
employees. From 1st December, 2000, newly joined employees
are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$10,576,000 (2014:
HK$10,065,000) represented contributions payable to these

schemes by the Group for the year.

E_EFRF(BREEMT)

46. EEEN @
AEEBE LA

RAFERBDz2WERSKADNAR
1,325,875,0008 7T ( =& —FH4 : 1,939,378,000
PETT)  HNBRBA L 4993,647000/8 0 (=2 — 1
£:92,013,000/8 7T ) °

REEZHEMEFEH A FEIISEF1.67%
£9.67% (ZZ— P04 : 1.28%%9.30% ) 2
ST RFD AR E P AEMERE
Hh—_Ez=%-

RBEYR  AEE S EBPH T RRRE

e REERTA
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
880,771 1,316,851
1,238,697 1,633,802
790,648 1,064,055
2,910,116 4,014,708

47. BRIRERFHE

AEE2EBEBFEHRFRNGE ZBER
Rt &) ([BZRKETE)) KRB RTEESF
g ([fEeat8l)) o N B[R B X RAKG S
e 1B & % Bl 2 5% 10%¢f3t 35X (1R F & 8 IR
BFEE) A-_TTTFE+_A-—REMAR
SEzHEBHAESMBESE B RE
BB REEES IR NI Z LR -

REGEE2AKRIRERINGBZERBLENS
10,576,000 7T ( —Z — PO 4F : 10,065,000
7o) A ERAFEE R ZSEEMN 24

o
A °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Transactions:

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

Income received from associates:
Secretarial fee
Management fee
Interest income
Accountancy fee
Consultancy fee
Income received from a controlling shareholder
of the Company (“Controlling Shareholder”)/
companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder/a company controlled by
a close family member of the Controlling
Shareholder/a then Director/a close family
member of the Controlling Shareholder:
Rental services
Property management services,
leasing administration services and
property administration services
Asset management and maintenance services
Advisory and consultancy services
Other ordinary services
— brokerage commission
Licence fee received from companies controlled
by the Controlling Shareholder
Licence fee paid to companies controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder
Rent and building management fee received
from a then Director
Rent and building management fee paid to

associates
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2015
HK$000
FTEx

10

48
2,950
120
237

26,137

27,107
19,864
2,330

473

1,418

268

2,685

2

DT EESN  ANEE

2014
HK$'000
TAT

10
48
3,998

9,227

17,636

12,282
11,556
312

484

713

919

2,586



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. ERBEALRFZ @

(Cont'd)
Transactions: (Cont'd) x5 (&)
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Consideration received for the disposals of WWEERR IR R 2 EHA 2 A7)
subsidiaries to companies wholly-owned EREEMB AR ZRE
by the Controlling Shareholder (note (i)) (BEEQ)) 12,676,705 4,876,162
Deposit received for the disposal of the Group's  WEN—(IFEHITEEIER L EARE
stock of properties to a non-executive Director ~ B %F & 251 & (KEEGD))
(note (ii)) 6,206 -
Consideration received for the disposal of W — I BR 2 ESAET T2
the Group's stock of properties to close family ~ REKEEALEREE Y
members of a then Director (note (iii)) FE 2 RAE (HEEEi)) - 51,205
Consideration received for the disposal of the WeER — i B AR AR SR B R & ) 2
Group's investment properties to companies KEKEEZEMRBZAFMER
wholly-owned by a close family member of HEAEEREMEIRE
the Controlling Shareholder (note (iv)) (F5EGV) ) - 39,096
Deposits together with interest thereon RIEFI R ERERNE T -
repaid to:
A company wholly-owned by a close family —FE R R R B R ) 2
member of the Controlling Shareholder REXERERF 2R - 9,509
A company wholly-owned by a then Director —HHERCEFE2EREZ
NS - 7,945
Companies wholly-owned by a close family ZHBEERKRREERZT 2
member of the Controlling Shareholder REXEREREFZ AT - 2,409
TE-IFFR EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Secretarial fee, accountancy fee and consultancy fee were charged
based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by central
administrative departments of the Group. Management fee, licence
fee, rent and building management fee were determined on terms
similar to those applicable to transactions with unrelated parties.
Interest income was charged at the prevailing market rates based on

outstanding balances during the year.

Rental services, property management services, leasing
administration services and property administration services, asset
management and maintenance services, advisory and consultancy
services and other ordinary services (the contract for services
with effect from 1st November, 2014 (details were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 31st October, 2014)
superseded all previous contracts for services (details were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 14th
December, 2012, 15th July, 2013 and 19th March, 2014)) were
charged at the terms agreed by both parties. These related party
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
as detailed on Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these
continuing connected transactions are disclosed in “Connected

Transactions” section in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Considerations and deposit received for the disposals of the Group's
investment properties and stock of properties were determined with
reference to the prevailing market values. Considerations received
for the disposals of subsidiaries was determined after arm's
length negotiations between both parties with reference to the
consolidated net asset value of the respective subsidiaries at their
respective date of completion (2014: with reference to the total
investment costs relating to the Macau Land in the Moon Ocean

Disposal).

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

mEMBRRME

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. EXBEEA LR =)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

48. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. ERBEEA TR F (&)
(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Notes:

0)

(i)

(iii)

)

Details of the One Disposal (Note 41(c)) were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 12th December, 2014,
15th July, 2015 and 13th August, 2015 and the circular of the
Company dated 7th January, 2015.

Details of the Silvercord Disposal (Note 41(d)) were set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 2nd September,
2014 and 13th January, 2015 and the circular of the Company
dated 23rd September, 2014.

Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal (Note 41(e)) were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 2nd September, 2014
and the circular of the Company dated 23rd September, 2014.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, a subsidiary owned
as to 70% by the Company accepted a tender from a non-
executive Director for purchase of a residential unit together with
a car packing space of 55 Conduit Road, the Group's stock of
property held for sale, at a consideration of HK$124,118,000
million with deposit received of approximately HK$6,206,000
as at 31st December, 2015. The transaction is expected to be
completed in 2016. Details of the disposal were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 21st December, 2015.

As set out in the Company's announcement dated 19th February,
2014, close family members of a then Director entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement for acquisition of a
residential unit, a car parking space and a motorcycle parking
space of One WanChai, the Group's stock of property held for
sale, at a consideration of approximately HK$51,205,000. The
transaction was completed on 14th April, 2014.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into preliminary sale
and purchase agreements with three companies wholly-owned
by a close family member of the Controlling Shareholder in
respect of the sale of three shops of Causeway Place with an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$39,096,000 (after
discount). The transactions were completed on 7th October,
2014.

Balances:

Details of the balances with related parties at the end of the

reporting period are set out in Notes 26 and 39.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes

16 and 17. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives

is recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the approval

of the board of Directors having regard to the performance of

individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group

and the prevailing market condition as appropriate.

R

P & -
®

(i)

(iif)

)

(%)

Oneth & (MizH41(0)) 2 HBEFHINR AR
ARAE_T—NF+_A+=H =T
—EFtA+REER-ZE—RENA+=
Az AMUAER—_E—AF—A+tAZEBK
Wo

RS E (HE41(d)) Z B BMIRA
ARAMA-T-—MWENA-_AR_ZT
—HE-A+ZAZARAR-T—NF
NB-+ZBZ@EIA-

Moon Oceant & (Hf5E41(e) ) ZFHIEE
FIRAABIAEA-Z—NFAA=-RY
AHR-ZE—NEAA-F=ZAZRBHA-

REE-_Z—AFE+_A=+—BIFE"
— AR BME7T0%RHE 2 B A Rl —
NIERTEFZIRE AB B BB AR
(FEEETZEBIELEZMERTE)Z
—EAFEENER—ELREBEMA RE
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ZAMAE HERZEBEHRBRINZR
EXERBAZTER (AEEET ZHFHEL
EZWMERE) 2 —EFEEMER—EL
REBEN—AEEHEVVREESE
i 1B 4 551,205,000 7T - 2B 5
RZZE—mNFMNA+TATK-

REE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—HLHF
B ARQRz—HEE2EREHBRF
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M 3E26 %39 o
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The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31st

December, 2015 which principally affected the results or assets of

the Group.

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Alpha Team Limited
Both Talent Limited
TRERAT

Cardin Factory Limited
EABERAR

Chinese Estates, Limited

EAEXARAA

Chinese Estates
(Harcourt House) Limited

Chinese Estates
(Windsor House) Limited

Conduit Road
Development Limited
TREFRFBRAA

Country Homes Limited

Dollar Union Limited

ERYERRAF

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation/
operation
A&
R

British Virgin Islands

REEBRES

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
)

mEMBRRME

49. FEM B A RIFHTRE

BMBRARIZFHE
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Class of share/ share capital/ paid-up share capital/
registered registered registered capital
capital held capital  held by the Company
FiERe,/ BERTRME AATMBHERE/
TERERER BAE/EMEL AMERZED T
Directly  Indirectly
B &
Ordinary Us$1 - 100%
TRK 1%7T
Ordinary HK$1 - 100%
EER 1%
Ordinary HK$2 - 100%
Efal 28T
Ordinary HK$1,000 100% -
ERR 1,000/ 7T
Ordinary HK$200 - 100%
EEl 2008 T
Ordinary HK$100 - 100%
Bl 1007 7T
Non-voting HK$2
deferred 2ETT
ERZEELTR
Ordinary HK$10,000 - 70%
LRk 10,000/ 7T
Ordinary HK$200 - 100%
LBk 200% 7
Non-voting HK$164,400
deferred ordinary 164,400/ 7
BRER
BIEEER
Non-voting HK$1,000
deferred founder 1,000/ 7T
BRERE
BRI AR
Ordinary HK$100 - 87.5%*
AR 100 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

EERANLETHMBARIZFBESRERG
RIUE - TRAFEER-_FT—RAF+=
A=+ B8AEEZEEXNEEEEEY

Principal activities

TEEK

Investment holding

REER

Property development

NEER

Property trading

Investment holding
and provision of

management services

REERR
REE RS

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NEEE

Property development

NEER

Property investment

NERE

Property trading



(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary
WELREMH

Estate Rose Limited

Ever Ideal Limited

Evergo China Holdings Limited

Evergo Holdings (China)
Company Limited

BEXesE (hE)
BERRA

Evergo Holdings
Company Limited
EXefEARAR

Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited

REERBERAR

Fair Eagle Futures
Company Limited
REHEERAT

Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited
REEHARAF

Flying Ease Limited
AL ERRA

Clobal Stage Limited

Grandhall Secretarial
Services Limited
HRWERBERATF

Harbour Trade Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

Place of
incorporation/
operation
B3l

British Virgin Islands
RBAARES

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBEBRES/
BE

Bermuda/
Hong Kong
EE.5-74

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KBERARES/
0

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
R

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands
REEAREE

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands
REEAREE

Class of share/

registered
capital held
Figke/
&R

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
el

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
Rl

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
TR

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
TR

Ordinary
gl
Ordinary

gl

Ordinary
il

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRTRAR
BA/EREE

US$1
[ES

US$1
ES

HK$100,775,869.10
100,775,869.107% 7T

US$2,509,454
2,509,454F T

HK$1,000
1,000 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

HK$228,000,000
228,000,000/ 7

US$1
ES

US$1
IE

HK$10,000
10,000/ 75

US$1
IE

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
KARFHEHRRE
EMERZED I
Directly  Indirectly
B k3

100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

—E-hEFRH

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. X EKE A Az E @

Principal activities

TEEK

Securities investment

Securities investment

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BARER

Investment holding
REER

Securities margin
financing

Brokering and dealing
in futures contracts
HEANELREE

Provision of brokerage
RELLRS
Securities investment
HERE

Securities investment

Secretarial services

WERS

Securities investment

4+
it

A

[

£

]
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(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary
WELREMH

Hillsborough Holdings Limited

Lucky Way Company Ltd.
(Business name:
Lucky Path Limited)
(RB2H:

Lucky Path Limited )

Oriental Master Ltd.
Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Limited
RE (MBE)BRAA

Paul Y. Holdings
Company Limited

Perfect World Company Limited
BENEERERLA

Pinecrest International Limited

Pioneer Time
Investment Limited

Rich Honour Limited

SEERAT

River Court Properties Limited

Smart Ocean Limited
Speed Win Limited
MEER LA

Stable Castle Limited
ZAERATA

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

Place of
incorporation/
operation
B3l

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBEARHS/
Bk

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBEARES/
Bk

British Virgin Islands
RBRAREE

Hong Kong
BA

Cayman Islands/
Hong Kong

MEHS/
0

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KBERRES/
9

Hong Kong
BE

Isle of Man

H5BB

British Virgin Islands
RBRAREE

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
BE

Class of share/

registered
capital held
Figke/
&R

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
Rl

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
gl

Ordinary
gl

Ordinary
TR

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
Rl

Ordinary
Bl
Ordinary
EEK

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
LEK

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

mEMBRRME

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRTRAR
BA/EREE

US$1
[ES

US$1
[ES

US$1
[ES

HK$2
258 TT

HK$70,715,005.70
70,715,005.707% 7T

HK$10,000
10,000 7T

US$1
1=

US$1
IE

HK$2
2ETT
GBP2
Qg

US$1
E
HK$2
25T

HK$1
187

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
KARFHEHRRE
EMERZED I
Directly  Indirectly
B k3

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. X EKE A Az E @

Principal activities

TEEK

Property investment

NERE

Securities investment

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

BERER

Estate management

nEER

Investment holding

RERK

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

REZR

Property investment

MERE
Investment holding
REER

Property trading

Property development

NEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. X EKE A Az E @

(Cont'd)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital  held by the Company
Name of subsidiary AL ke, BRTRHZE AARMBHRKA  Principal activities
G- YNCEE KEwE ERERER BE/EMEL EMERZED I TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
B k3
Sun Power Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
Hong Kong EER (E HHERA
ERERRES/
B
The House of Kwong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Cosmetics distribution
Sang Hong Limited 0 Egilie 500,000 7T and trading
BEZERAA LR ERES
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
FRAERAF EEERRES el 17T REZK
View Success Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Property investment
Investments Limited & gl 2ETT NERE
RIREBRRA
B (AR)GEER PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100%  Property investment
BRARS HE EMER 500,000% 7T NELE
(Evergo (Beijing) Corporate
Management Co., Ltd.) *
BxaREME(LB)BERAFS PRC Registered US$10,500,000 - 100%  Property investment
(Evergo Real Estate (Shanghai) ~ H & AfER 10,500,000% 7T MERE

Company Limited) »

IR E BR S E 3R & B - I KB A R
BITEMEBRES -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at

the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting

period.

* 75% owned by the Group and 25% owned by Power Jade * RE BB 75% K Power Jade Limited§ 8
Limited 25%

& Wholly foreign-owned enterprise A N

-

—E-aEER #Asz£E 235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf %8 3R & M 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_-Z

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all associates would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the associates as at 31st
December, 2015 which principally affected the results or assets of

the Group.

—hETZA=tHILFE

50. T EHE N TS

EERBIHEHHEARZHESS
Eeh TRAFER =T

RIT

BiE A

—RET=

Place of Class of share/
incorporation/ registered
operation capital held
Name of associate SRR ke,
HENTER Fdodioh s HEREXE
Best Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
FHEBRAA B el
Direct Win Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary
BRERERAT B LEK
Ever Sure Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
KinREERAT EE LREK
Finedale Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
EHREXBERAR BE LB
Get Wisdom Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary
GEBRA EEERRES el
Power Jade Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary
(Business name: Hong Kong TR
Power Jade Capital Limited) ~ HBABERES/
(RBERE: BE
Power Jade Capital Limited )
The Kwong Sang Hong Bermuda Ordinary
International Limited BRE Bl
RAEMAERRAA PRC Registered
Oriental Arts Building Co,, Ltd! HMER
t Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

A E-i— FHARBZRXEREEREEY

B

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BORSR
BA/EMER

HK$1
1B
HK$900
900/ T

HK$2
2B
HK$9,999
9,999/ 7T

Us$12
1ETL

US$20
20ETL

HK$100,000
100,0007% 7T

US$24,920,000
24,920,000% T

REZFHF

Proportion of
equity attributable
indirectly

to the Company
AR BEES
BRAZBED

25%

33.33%

50%

33.33%

50%

50%

50%

50%

i FINEE DR

Principal activities

TEEK

Property investment
and trading
NEREREE

Property trading

Property trading

Property investment

NELRE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BRER

Investment holding

BARR

Property investment
and hotel operation

MERERBEXH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 51. AR Bl BRRBRE #E
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B AaEE 5,136,191 5,140,216
Loans to subsidiaries WERRIER 2,689,362 3,194,192
7,825,553 8,334,408
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries VNS = F ] 446,632 3,848,693
Other assets Hu&EE 776 3,893
Time deposits and bank balances TE BT AR SRTT S 4 1,875,747 1,984,361
2,323,155 5,836,947
Current liabilities REBAEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries REKBARRIEA 54,721 78,481
Other liabilities HEmaE 1,041 2,023
Dividend payable FEH AR B, - 7630,476
55,762 7,710,980
Net current assets (liabilities) REBEE (BE)RE 2,267,393 (1,874,033)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBAE 10,092,946 6,460,375
Equity attributable to owners of KAREBAZ
the Company PEAL B AR 22
Share capital (Note 38) M7 (MI5E38) 190,762 190,762
Capital redemption reserve B ARFEE 138,062 138,062
Other reserves HAnfFEE 9 9
Retained eamnings R A 5,871,060 2,963,506
Total equity BAERETRE 6,199,893 3,292,339
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Loans from subsidiaries WEBAREE 2,680,927 3,167,974
Amount due to an associate KB —EHE R R RIA 1,212,126 -
Financial guarantee liabilities BBERAR - 62
3,893,053 3,168,036
10,092,946 6,460,375
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on BEEEENR T —"F-A+RAERE
15th March, 2016 and signed on its behalf by: R THNINEERREFSEE
Chan, Sze-wan PR = 88 Lam, Kwong-wai MR E
Director - Director EE
—E-REFHR EASx=Em 237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

52.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1st January, 2014

Profit for the year

Interim dividend for 2014 paid

Final dividend for 2013 paid

Special interim dividend for
2014 paid

Special interim dividend declared
in 2014

At 31st December, 2014

Profit for the year
Interim dividend for 2015 paid
Final dividend for 2014 paid
Special interim dividends

for 2015 paid

At 31st December, 2015

RZE—HFE—HA—H
A E 55

EN T -mFER RS
ENZZE-—=FREKRS

ENZE—mMF
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions after the end

of the reporting period:

(a) Disposal of Pioneer Time on 15th January, 2016

Details of the Pioneer Time Disposal were disclosed in Note

12(a) and the announcement of the Company dated 15th

January, 2016.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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51. AR R BN WK K

(%)
KRB ZRERD
Capital
redemption Other Retained
reserve reserves earnings
EAXEE #E Hit B REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
138,062 1,496,727 5,864,758
- - 9,623,030
- - (572,286)
- - (953,810)
- (1,496,718) (3,367,710)
- - (7,630,476)
138,062 9 2,963,506
= = 10,747,869
- - (572,286)
= = (19,076)
= = (7,248,953)
138,062 9 5,871,060

52. MEMARKREE

MBmREMEBYRBEEN A%

BRHERRRENATRS

(@) R=F—X"F—HA+HH L EPioneer

Time

Pioneer TimeH & Z F15ERKIFE12()
UEAAGBIBSA-ZT—AF—A+Hh
HZ A AMmAHEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KMz
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HEZ T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

52. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Cont'd)

(b)

Windsor Disposal

On 23rd December, 2015, China Entertainment and Land
Investment Company, Limited (“CELIC"), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company; the Company, being the
guarantor of CELIC; Magic Square Limited (“Magic Square”),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and Mr. Joseph
Lau, being the guarantor of Magic Square, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which CELIC
agreed to sell and Magic Square agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Keep Speed Limited ("Keep Speed”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a
consideration equal to the aggregate of (a) the net asset
value or liability of Keep Speed as at the date of completion;
and (b) the aggregate face amount of all sums due or owing
by Keep Speed to other members of the Group (other
than the Jumbo Grace Group (as defined below)) less the
aggregate face amount of all sums due and owing to Keep
Speed by any member of the Group (other than the Jumbo
Grace Group) as at the date of completion.

On the same date, Good Top Limited (“Good Top"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; the
Company, being the guarantor of Good Top; Best Range
Limited (“Best Range"), a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Joseph Lau; and Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Best
Range, entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which Good Top agreed to sell and Best Range agreed
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Jumbo Grace
Limited (“Jumbo Grace"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and its subsidiary (holding the property
known as Windsor House in Hong Kong) (collectively “Jumbo
Grace Group”) at a consideration equal to the aggregate
of (a) the consolidated net asset value or liability of the
Jumbo Grace Group as at the date of completion; and (b)
the aggregate face amount of all sums due or owing by the
Jumbo Grace Group to other members of the Group (other
than Keep Speed and the Jumbo Grace Group) less the
aggregate face amount of all sums due and owing to any
company of the Jumbo Grace Group by any member of the
Group (other than Keep Speed and the Jumbo Grace Group)
as at the date of completion.

52. REHIREZEIE o)

(b)

o

SEREHE
RZZ—RAF+ZA=+=A FER
DEEBERAR ([HREZE]) (KQF
Z—HEEREZEHREMBRAR) AR
Al ERTIREE PR A - Magic Square
Limited ([Magic Square]) (—HE 2
BIERETERB AT R BIEH
754 0 {E BMagic SquareE{R A+ 5] 3L
—HEEME B PREEFREH
& K Magic Squarefd E i B Keep Speed
Limited ([Keep Speed |) (&RA®Z—
MHEE2EHRBEMBLRR) 22 HEE
TlRA - RERATZERM  (a) Keep
SpeedR X A v EEN B EFE:
K (b) Keep Speedi Tt hk A HAFE < 3k 45
RAEBHA K S AR (Jumbo Gracef
H(EERTXORIN ZE2BRIELE
B4 BASEE TR E AR (Jumbo
Graceft B R A1) 172k B B JE 1 2 A& R
Keep Speedz & &8 5K 18 2 HEI{E 4B 78 o

M@ B Good Top Limited ([Good
Topl) (ARAz—HEZEHEMH
BRAE): ANRE fERGood Top#E R
A+ Best Range Limited ( [Best Range )
(—MHREgETE2ERABZAR)
K BI& 0 5o & - E A Best RangeER A -
I —IHE & o UL - Good TopE &
& K Best Range[Rl E#& & Jumbo Grace
Limited ([Jumbo Grace|) (KRR Z
—HEEZEBRERBAR) 223
BITRAREMBRR (BELREE
EREERE2WME) (HHE[Jumbo
Gracek B ]) - REBU T ZEF  (a)
Jumbo Crace(R BN TXK BBz 456 &
Esk B & FE  &(b) Jumbo Grace®
ARIER A B s R A S B H MK B
‘A ] (Keep Speed &z Jumbo Gracef [l Bk
SN 2 B2E B MELRE  RAEEE
] B 2 7] (Keep Speed 2 Jumbo Grace
EEBRIN) R TEAK B BRER R A R
Jumbo Gracef& B 2 ARz 2 &5/ 1E 2 H
B4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 #Z =T —AF+-_A=+—HILFE

52. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Cont'd)

(b)

(9

Windsor Disposal (Cont'd)

Details of the disposal of Keep Speed and the Jumbo
Grace Group (“Windsor Disposal”) were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23rd December, 2015

and the circular of the Company dated 15th January, 2016.

On 2nd February, 2016, the Windsor Disposal was duly
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting. The Windsor Disposal has
not yet completed up to the date of the approval of these

consolidated financial statements.

Acquisition of a property in the United Kingdom

In March 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire a
freehold property situate at 12/14 St. George Street, Mayfair,
London at a consideration of GBP121,700,000. Completion
of the acquisition shall take place on or before 15th April,
2016.

53. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 15th March, 2016.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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52. REHAREEE o)
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Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

Results

Revenue

Profit before tax from
continuing operations
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HK$)
Basic and diluted (note)

Final and interim dividends per share

(HK cents)

Special dividend per share (HK cents)

£

LION

REFBLEERZ
BRH AR
B %

TEEREBELERY
i H

TEEREER RS
FB2 8

REREN

fE1h
AREHEA
FEBER

FEM(ET)
HERREE (M)

BRABRPHRE
(&)
BREHIBRE GEIL)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFMBHRE

For the year ended 31st December
HET-A=t-BLEE

AEEBENFZXE EERAGRHRENT:

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TR TR
(Restated)

(E31)

1,542,397 2,627288 6,452,726 2,433,544 527,792
8,196,126 9,008,758 6,945,040 10,113,939 3,624,745
(476,395) (255,859) (443919)  (299,090) (115,888)
1,119,731 8,752,899 6,501,121 9,814,849 3,508,857
- - 501 5,667 10,847
1,719,731 8,752,899 6,501,622 9,820,516 3,519,704
1127,208 8,744,927 6,317,737 9,794,937 3,497816
(7.477) 7972 183,885 25,579 21,888
1,119,731 8,752,899 6,501,622 9,820,516 3,519,704
4.05 458 3.31 5.14 1.83

31 31 70 21 2

380 655 130 100 -

Note: The calculation of the basic and diluted eamings per share is based on ~ Hff&F :
the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the years and on
the weighted average number of shares in issue during the relevant
years. Diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no diluting events during the relevant years.

BREAREBRNDREEFERARFHES
AR R EEEED ETRG 2 NEFH
B E -ANYEBERR WEWRFR 2B
B AN BERREKR RN HER -

“E-LEFHR EASXEE



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY FHF B E

At 31st December
Rt=-A=t+-AH
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TEL TEL
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEGE 63,055217 71424931 75810226 74529259 61511597
Total liabilities BERE (22,729,855)  (29,772,338)  (28,620,461)  (28,550,934)  (25,143,590)
Total equity BAERBE 40,325,362 41,652,593 47189765 45978325 36,368,007
Attributable to: JEf
Owners of the Company AVNGIEZZ=DN 40,247,600 41567354 47,103,748 45546522 35651332
Non-controlling interests RS 71,762 85239 86,017 431,803 716,675
40,325,362  41,652593 47189765 45978325 36,368,007
Net asset value per share attributable to ARRHEAEEGR
owners of the Company (HK$) BEFEGEL) 21.10 21.79 24.69 23.88 18.69
Number of shares issued BETRHEAR 1,907,619,079 1,907619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907619,079 1,907,619,079
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
ETEWERMKR

The following table sets forth the Group's major properties as at 31st December, 2015:

TRENAEER -_T-—RF+-_A=+—HzE2MW%:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG BRY=
Properties held for investment FEREME
Category of Group’s
the lease interest
Location Lot number Usage term 8
i 2 R A% HBER PRz
1. Windsor House* The Remaining Portions of Commercial Long 100%
311 Gloucester Road Inland Lot Nos. 7717 and 7718 [EES R
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Section A of Inland Lot No. 781 and
(including 157 car parking spaces) Sections A and C of Inland Lot No. 782
EERE* WIERTTTRTT185: 84 T 5 5
BRWEESTITESNR PR 78157 AR Ik
(BfE1571E=S L) i B 7823 AR CER

* The Group entered into a disposal agreement to dispose the companies holding Windsor House. Such transaction is expected to be completed in

2016
AEEFTY - DHEBBAHESBEEENEZ AR -BHZARHBN T~ REFTK

2. Harcourt House Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Long 100%
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd, in Inland Lot No. 8573 [EES £
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors, M ER85735% 2
rooms 1004 and 1805) HtTEnsmnE

39 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

(including 113 car parking spaces)
ERAE
EEFETITEN
(7-849+2223.25"
265274 - 1004 %1805 Z [ 4))
(BEN3MEEA)

3. MassMutual Tower* Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Long 100%
38 Gloucester Road in Inland Lot Nos. 3287 and 6936 RS 5231
Wanchai, Hong Kong N30 ER3287 1693655 2
(including 55 car parking ETEnsmnE
spaces on basement)
XEEBAE*
BB EFELITER
(BIEME 255 ER)

*

The Group disposed the company holding MassMutual Tower in January 2016
AEEER_Z-—RE-ALEREXHERRNEZ AT

—E-nE5R wAExsE 243



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES * E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

8

4. Causeway Place*
Various shops on ground floor,
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and
their respective portions of exterior walls,
together with flats C, I, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q
(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor
Hong Kong Mansion
nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and
nos. 2-10 Great George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
8 it
ERNEE
BEME1-75 K
AR 12-105%
BEERE
W g g Rg
ATEHR
HZHD 2 SMEER
3EC I ) K L*N-0-P:Q
(BREEEL2TAR) RHER

* Certain shops have been sold
ETEERER

5. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 391 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
BEENEBRE
BEEISRETEN
(BE3ME TS B RT7EE)

6.  Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including 194 private car parking spaces
and 24 motorcycle parking spaces)
BiH=1
ERTENE
LB
(BE194EALR BB RAEBEEHA)

7. Coronation Circle
1 Yau Cheung Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including 238 private car parking spaces
and 25 motorcycle parking spaces)
hEE
BEAANE
RANE5R
(BHE2Z8ERREEM RS EAEEEEN)

ERBYEw

BFEREWE (F)
Lot number Usage
R A%
Certain parts or shares of and Residential/
in Inland Lot No. 7742 Commercial
WILERT7425% 2 T/ E%
EFHokHE
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 I%
BREABERN5HRZ
EFHokHE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot Nos. [EES
11167 and 11168
FLEEAHER
11167111685 2
ETFHoRHE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073 [EES

NBEAHIER 1107358 2
EFSosmnE

244 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Category of
the lease
term

AR

Long
&H

Medium

o 8]

Medium

o 8

Medium

]

Group’s
interest
3
Frik s

100%

33.33%

25%

15%



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES I E ¥ £ &k

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd) -2/ E XD
Property held for sale BEHEDE
Approx.
saleable
floor area Group’s
(square feet) interest
Location Lot number EREBNY Usage 8
1t 2 e BR 4 5% (EAR) A& Frit s
1. 55 Conduit Road Remaining Portion of 78,741% Residential 70%
No. 55 Conduit Road Section A of F=x
Hong Kong Inland Lot No. 2138
B Sub-section 1 of
N Section A of
FEEs5% Inland Lot No. 2138 and

Inland Lot No. 2612

M ER21385RAR B2 T 32
AL ER21385ARR 1 9 B ]2
M1 B 26125

* Certain units have been pre-sold
ETEAEES

*  Excluding all car parking spaces area

TEYERAEA 2 iR
Properties under development held for sale BEHEZBRPYE
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area
completion (square feet) (square feet) Group's
Stage of date wEEE ) interest
Location Lot number completion ftst NE LEENERE Usage 55
% bR TRER Eod=k (FER) (FER) i} Pk
1. No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace* Section M of Superstructure Fourth quarter 12,030 40,726 Residential 100%
Mid-Levels East Inland Lot No. 2302 work in progress of 2016 T=E
Hong Kong and the Extension LERETR —Z-RF
BEREL thereto and ETH Eu=
EEENR Section X of

Inand Lot No. 2302
and the Extension
thereto

MHLER 23025 MER I
HERDBHUR
ML 230257 XE I
HERSH

* Under redevelopment

BEH

—e-ngEEH  zAExsmE 245
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES * E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties under development held for sale (Cont'd)

Location
5

2. One South Lane**
Western District
Hong Kong
BERR
HESHY

* Under redevelopment

et

Stage of
Lot number completion
BERES TR
Remaining Portion of Superstructure

Sub-section 2 of and fitting-out

Section C waorks in progress
Remaining Portion of LERER
Section A of REIR
Sub-section 1 of #i7H

Section C

Remaining Portion of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C and
Remaining Portion of
Section C

Section A of
Sub-section 2 of
Section C

Sub-section 1 of
Section A of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C

Section B of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C

Sub-section 3 of
Section C of

Inland Lot No. 1300
A3 £ 130037
CEB2R B er T H 7
CR1DBARDER T E 7
CRIDBBRTHA R
CEREATE 2

CBR27 BAE D
CRIPBABD 1B
C& 19 BBE 7
CR3NE

* Certain units have been pre-sold

ETENDRE

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

ERBYEw

BFELEZBRTYWE (F)

Estimated

Approx. gross

site area floor area

Estimated (square (square

completion feet) feet)

date HWEEE fast

fbst HE BEEEE

THREH (FER) (FAR)

Second quarter 4192 41,353
of 2016
—TRF
F-%

Usage
R&

Residential/
Commercial

/%

Group's
interest
-
Ptz

100%



PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

o B

1. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
tRFEEEE
TG RE
R=IRILEE - ROTEE15R

2. Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
RAEBEBXE
EtRTHGE
RERILE R REOHR

3. Evergo Tower
(excluding unit no. 3 on 9th floor)
1325 Central Huaihai Road and 1 Baoging Road
Xuhui District, Shanghai

BEEXBKE

FEmHhER

AP 122550 B E B 15k
(T BIEEIR)

4. Lowu Commercial Plaza
79 retail shops on 1st floor
Jianshe Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
BN ERE
BRE R =
BREBIETOETEEH

PROPERTY IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Property held for investment

Location

b Bh

1. River Court
116-129 Fleet Street
London, EC4, United Kingdom
River Court
B fm BECA
Fleet Street 116-12935%

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES I E ¥ K&

b B P ) 3
BFEREWME
Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& AR
Hotel/Commercial Short
BIE 5= H
Commercial Short
EES g B
Commercial Medium
[EES et
Commercial Short
[EES 2 HA
L B W) 3£
BFEREME
Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& HEER
Commercial Freehold
[EES KA SERE

—E-hEFRH

Group's
interest
&
Fri e

50%

50%

100%

100%

Group’s
interest
%
Frib R

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

YIS R R MY R

PROPERTY IN HONG KONG

Property held for development

Stage of

Name of project Lot number completion
HE AR 15 B 4R 55 TR
1. Kwun Tong Town New Kowloon Foundation

Centre Project Inland Lot No. 6514 work in progress

Development Areas 2 and 3 MNE WEIRETH

Kwun Tong Town Centre AHER65145

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BETHOFE

BENE

BEMHO

FIRE-ERR

BEEWR

BERREDE

Approx.

site area

(square

Estimated feet)

completion WRER

date HE

CHEA =R (FAR)

First quarter 234,160
of 2021
—E-—F
53

Estimated
gross

floor area
(square
feet)

&t
BEREEE
(FAFR)

1,853,561

Note:  The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with the Urban Renewal Authority

Wi NERREDBBEEATEERRILZERBEARE

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Usage
S

Residential/
Commercial

e/ H%

Group's
interest
%8
Ptz

10%
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